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Our visiOn and missiOn

Who we are:

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Limited (Armscor) is established in terms of the Armaments Corporation 
of South Africa, Limited Act (Act 51 of 2003), as amended (called the Armscor Act). It is therefore a state-owned company 
(SOC) as contemplated in the Companies Act, 2008. Furthermore, it is listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms of the 
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended (the PFMA). It is further regulated by the Regulations issued 
in terms of the PFMA and those of the Companies Act, 2008.

The Minister of Defence and Military Veterans is the executive authority responsible for Armscor.

The objectives of the Corporation are: 
a)  to meet the defence matériel requirements of the Department effectively, efficiently and economically; and
b)  to meet the defence technology, research, development, analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the 

Department effectively, efficiently and economically.

The Corporation must adhere to accepted corporate governance principles, best business practices and 
generally accepted accounting practices within a framework of established norms and standards that reflect 
fairness, equity, transparency, economy, efficiency, accountability and lawfulness. 

Armscor’s vision is to become 
the premier technology and 
acquisition agency for the 

South African government and 
governments of the SADC region.

Armscor believes that its values 
constitute the building blocks of 
the manner in which it conducts 
its business. We believe in the 

highest standards and are 
committed to equal opportunities, 
transparency and accountability.

We pledge commitment to the 
following values:

•	 Leading	by	example
•	 Results	driven
•	 Customer	focus
•	 Care	and	respect	for	others
•	 Excellence
•	 Teamwork	
•	 Integrity

Armscor’s mission is to 
meet the defence matériel, 

defence technology, research, 
development, analysis, test and 
evaluation requirements of the 

Department of Defence and 
other organs of state effectively, 

efficiently and economically.
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WHaT WE dO
The Armscor Act provides that –
(1) The Corporation must: 
 a)  acquire such defence matériel on behalf of 

the Department of Defence as the Department 
may require; 

 b)  manage such technology projects as may be 
required by the Department of Defence; 

 c)  establish a programme management system 
in support of the acquisition and technology 
projects contemplated in paragraphs (a) and 
(b);

 d)  provide for a quality assurance capability in 
support of –

  (i)  the acquisition and technology projects 
contemplated in paragraphs (a) and 
(b); and 

  (ii)  any other service contemplated in this 
section required by the Department of 
Defence; 

 e)  maintain a system for tender and contract 
management in respect of defence matériel 
and, if required in a service level agreement 
or if requested in writing by the Secretary 
for Defence, the procurement of commercial 
matériel; 

 f)  dispose of defence matériel in consultation 
with the person who originally manufactured 
the matériel; 

 g)  establish a compliance administration system 
for the Department of Defence as required by 
applicable international law, the National 
Convention Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act 
41 of 2002), and the Non-Proliferation of 
Weapons of Mass Destruction Act, 1993 (Act 
87 of 1993); 

 h)  support and maintain such strategic and 
essential defence industrial capabilities, 
resources and technologies as may be 
identified by the Department of Defence;

 i) provide defence operational research; 
 j)  establish a defence industrial participation 

programme management system; 
 k)  provide marketing support to defence-related 

industries in respect of defence matériel, in 
consultation with the Department of Defence 
and the defence-related industries in question; 

 l)  manage facilities identified as strategic by 
the Department of Defence in a service level 
agreement; and 

  m)  maintain such special capabilities and 
facilities as are regarded by the Corporation 
not to be commercially viable, but which may 
be required by the Department of Defence for 
security or strategic reasons. 

(2)  a).  The Corporation may, with the approval of the 
Minister –

  (i)  exploit such commercial opportunities 
as may arise out of the Corporation’s 
duty to acquire defence matériel or to 
manage technology projects; 

  (ii)  procure commercial matériel on behalf 
of any organ of state at the request of 
the organ of state in question, and 

  (iii)  subject to the National Conventional 
Arms Control Act, 2002 (Act 41 of 
2002), the Regulation of Foreign 
Military Assistance Act, 1998 (Act 15 
of 1998), and the Non-Proliferation 
of Weapons of Mass Destruction Act, 
1993 (Act 87 of 1993), perform 
any function which the Corporation 
may perform for or on behalf of the 
Department of Defence in terms of 
this Act or on behalf of any sovereign 
State.

 b)  The Minister may impose such conditions in 
respect of the performance of a function as 
may be necessary in the national interest.

01 CORPORATE PROFILE
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GOvErnanCE 
Armscor adheres to the principles of good corporate 
governance enshrined in the Public Finance Management 
Act (Act 1 of 1999) as amended (the PFMA). The observance 
of these principles ensures that Armscor maintains the 
integrity of its operations, thus gaining credibility from and 
confidence of its important stakeholders. 

Good corporate governance and stakeholder confidence 
are fundamental elements in determining the nature of the 
relationship between Armscor, its shareholder represented 
by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans, the 
defence industry, and the South African public as a whole.

To ensure proper governance, there are structures that 
provide the lead and serve as a link between the Board and 
Management. These structures are Company Secretariat, 
Internal Audit and Corporate Compliance.

Internal Audit as a critical pillar of governance is taking a 
lead role in the combined assurance model to coordinate 
the assurance efforts to ensure adequate coverage of key 
strategic risks facing the organisation.

The objective of the internal auditing function is to provide 
independent, objective assurance and consulting services 
designed to add value and improve the organisation’s 
operations. It helps the organisation accomplish its objectives 
by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate 
and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 
and governance processes. In this regard, Internal Audit 
reports fuctionally to the Audit and Risk Committee of the 
Board of Directors and administratively to the CEO.
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OrGanisaTiOnaL rEPOrTinG sTruCTurE 

THE BOard - Appointed by the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans

The management and control resides with the Board of Directors, led by a non-executive Chairman and the Deputy.   
To execute its responsibilities effectively and to maintain accountability, the Board established a number of committees:

•	 Acquisition	Committee
•	 Audit	and	Risk	Committee
•	 Technology	and	Industry	Support	Committee
•	 Human	Resources,	Social	and	Ethics	Committee

Support Functions

Armscor Department of 
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Minister of Defence and Military Veterans

Chairman of 
Armscor
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Corporate 
Finance Quality Corporate 
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Human 

Resources
IT and  
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Marketing 

& Business 
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Research and 
Development Dockyard
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DivisionsArmscor Board  
of Directors

Department of Defence

Secretary for 
Defence

Services and Divisions

Chief of the 
SANDF

CEO

Executing Functions

Internal AuditCompany 
Secretariat
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THE BOard OF dirECTOrs

CHairman OF THE armsCOr BOard | viCE admiraL (rET) J mudimu

Vice Admiral Mudimu is a former Chief of the South African Navy; prior to this he was the 
Chief of Naval Staff and he has also served as an Inspector General of the Navy.

He	served	in	Umkhonto	we	Sizwe	(MK)	High	Command	until	integration	of	the	armed	forces	
to	form	the	South	African	National	Defence	Force	(SANDF).	He	was	appointed	MK	Chief	
of Staff Personnel and Training and later Director – Integration of the Non Statutory Forces.

He	holds	a	Master’s	Degree	 in	Military	Science,	Honours	Degree	 in	Public	Management	
and Governance, Associate Degree in Safety and Security, Executive Course in Defence 
Development,	Diploma	in	Human	Resource	Management,	Diploma	in	Personnel	and	Training,	
Certificate	in	Journalism.	He	also	received	the	singular	honour	of	being	conferred	with	a	Doctor	
of	Technology	in	Applied	Sciences	(honoris	causa)	by	the	Durban	University	of	Technology.

dEPuTY CHairPErsOn | amBassadOr T sKWEYiYa 

Ambassador	Skweyiya	 is	 the	 former	South	African	Ambassador	 to	France	and	UNESCO.
She joined the Department of Foreign Affairs (now Department of International Relations and 
Cooperation) in 1995 and became the first female Deputy Director General charged with 
managing South Africa’s relations with Asia and the Middle East.

This portfolio entailed, amongst other things, overseeing the smooth transition of South Africa’s 
diplomatic relations from the Republic of Taiwan to the People’s Republic of China. She was 
also	appointed	South	Africa’s	Ambassador	to	France	and	the	United	Nations	Educational,	
Scientific	and	Cultural	Organisation	(UNESCO).

Ambassador Skweyiya holds a Master’s Degree in Political Science and Philosophy, Germany.

nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr and CHairPErsOn OF THE Human rEsOurCEs, 
sOCiaL and ETHiCs COmmiTTEE OF THE BOard | adv. vL dE La HunT

Advocate	De	la	Hunt	is	currently	practising	as	an	Advocate	and	member	of	the	Cape	Bar.	She	
runs a general litigation practice, with a focus on administrative law and regulatory compliance.

She	was	previously	a	Fellow	at	the	Refugee	Studies	at	the	University	of	Oxford,	Legal	Advisor	
to	the	Minister	of	Correctional	Services,	Legal	Adviser	to	the	Minister	of	Home	Affairs,	Director,	
University	of	Cape	Town	Law	Clinic,	and	Fellow,	Legal	Resources	Centre,	Cape	Town.	

Adv.	De	 la	Hunt	was	previously	an	Executive	Committee	Member:	Association	of	University	
Legal Aid Institutions, Executive Member: National Consortium on Refugee Affairs, Chairperson: 
Cape Town Refugee Forum, Member of NICRO Women’s Support Centre, Member of the 
National Association of Democratic Lawyers, Commissioner of the Small Claims Court, 
Arbitration Panellist, Independent Mediation Services of South Africa and Member of the Law 
Society	of	the	Cape	of	Good	Hope.

She	holds	a	BA,	LLB	and	LLM	degrees	from	the	University	of	Cape	Town.
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nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr and CHairPErsOn OF THE audiT and risK 
COmmiTTEE OF THE BOard | dr m KHanYiLE

Dr	Khanyile	 is	currently	 the	Managing	Director	of	Masharps	College	and	also	serves	as	an	
external supervisor for Masters and Doctoral students at the Graduate School of Business 
Leadership	(SBL),	University	of	South	Africa	(UNISA).		He	was	previously	an	executive	at	Barclays	
Africa	Group	serving	as	General	Manager:	Strategy	and	Business	Sustainment.	He	had	also	
worked at the Department of Defence as Director: Planning and Programming, in the Policy and 
Planning	Division.	He	served	as	a	Senior	Researcher	at	the	Centre	for	Military	Studies	(CEMIS),	
which	is	part	of	the	Faculty	of	Military	Studies	of	the	University	of	Stellenbosch.

Dr	Khanyile	holds	a	PhD	in	International	Politics	(University	of	Pretoria),	MBL	from	UNISA	and	
MA	from	Stellenbosch	University.	He	has	studied	at	various	international	academic	institutions	
such	as	Christien-Albrechts	University,	Germany;	Ashridge	College,	England;	and	Post-Graduate	
Naval	School,	USA.	He	has	an	interest	in	and	vast	experience	of	strategy	development,	value	
extraction, executive project management, mobile payment solutions, and biometric technology.

nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr | mr rm vOKWana

Mr	Vokwana	is	currently	a	businessman.	His	interests	are	divided	into	construction	through	Upahla	
Construction	(Pty)	Ltd,	and	timber	supplies/mining	equipment	and	manufacturing,	through	Kemac	
Close	Corporation.	He	is	the	Executive	Chairman	and	Shareholder	of	both	entities.

He	was	Deputy	Director	General	–	Secretariat	of	the	Defence	Service	Commission,	Department	
of Defence, a businessman involved in mining, manufacturing, ICT and financial services, and 
senior manager at the National Intelligence Agency and the South African Secret Service. 
Previous to this he worked for the African National Congress in exile and in South Africa.

Mr	 Vokwana	 holds	 a	 National	 Diploma	 in	 Human	 Resource	 Management	 from	 
Peninsula Technikon.

nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr and CHairPErsOn OF THE aCQuisiTiOn COmmiTTEE 
OF THE BOard | mr BmF mOBu (dECEasEd 08 maY 2015)

Mr Mobu was the General Manager: Tactical Procurement of Eskom South Africa. The depth and 
breadth of his knowledge of the procurement/acquisition environment is unsurpassed.

He	was	previously	the	Group	Procurement	Specialist	at	Airports	Company	South	Africa,	Executive:	
Procurement Services at State Information Technology Agency, Group Executive: Supply Chain 
Management at the South African Post Office, Sourcing Manager at Telkom SA and Project 
Coordinator at Siemens Telecommunications.

He	was	also	the	Chairperson	of	the	State	Owned	Enterprise	Procurement	Forum	and	a	member	
of the Chartered Institute of Purchasing and Supply.

He	held,	amongst	others,	a	National	Diploma	in	Public	Administration	from	Technikon	Northern	
Gauteng and a BTech Degree in Public Management from Pretoria Technikon.

nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr | adv. s BaLOYi

Advocate Baloyi is currently practising as an Advocate and member of the Victoria Mxenge 
Group of Advocates, Johannesburg Bar. 

Her	 practice	 covers	 administrative	 law,	 competition	 law,	 construction	 and	 engineering,	
commercial litigation, general litigation, constitutional law, employment law, labour law 
and local government law. She previously practised as an attorney and also worked as a 
Researcher for Justice Albie Sachs at the Constitutional Court.

She also served as the stand-in Counsel for Advocate Ishmael Semenya as part of the SAPS 
Legal Team at the Marikana Commission of Inquiry.

She	holds	B.	Proc.	LLB	degrees	from	University	of	South	Africa.
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nOn-EXECuTivE dirECTOr | mr n TYiBiLiKa

Mr	Tyibilika	is	a	businessman	with	two	main	interests	–	an	Engineering	Projects	House	focused	
on design, development, system integration, installation, commissioning and consulting, and 
a	Steel	Service	Centre	that	supplies	all	steel	grades	cut	to	size.

He	was	a	Manufacturing	Manager	for	Coca	Cola	Canners	of	South	Africa,	Consultant	for	
the Pebble Bed Modular Reactor project in the development of a supply chain strategy and 
network, Executive Manager, Production for Denel LIW, Senior Maintenance Engineer for 
Eskom	Hydro	and	Water,	Design/Projects	Engineer	 for	Caltex	Refinery	and	Maintenance	
Engineer for Amcoal.

Mr Tyibilika is a registered Professional Engineer with the Engineering Council of South Africa, 
holds a Government Certificate of Competence (Factories) and is a Member of the SA Institute 
of Mechanical Engineers.

He	holds	a	BSc.	Mechanical	Engineering	from	University	of	Cape	Town	and	has	completed	
an	Executive	Development	programme	with	the	UNISA	School	of	Business	Leadership.

EXECuTivE BOard mEmBEr and aCTinG CHiEF EXECuTivE OFFiCEr |  
mr Js mKWanazi

Mr	Mkwanazi	was	appointed	as	 the	Acting	Chief	Executive	Officer	 in	November	2009.	
Before his appointment to this position, he was General Manager: Acquisition.
He	possesses	the	following	academic	qualifications:
•	 MBL
•	 Total	Quality	Management	(TQM)	Programme	
•	 MSc	(with	specialisation	in	Project	Management)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Operations Management, Project Management, 
Quality	Management,	and	Acquisition.
His	appointment	is	linked	to	his	position	as	Acting	Chief	Executive	Officer.

EXECuTivE BOard mEmBEr and CHiEF FinanCiaL OFFiCEr | mr JG GrOBLEr

Mr	 Grobler	 was	 appointed	 to	 his	 current	 position	 on	 1	 August	 2008.	 His	 academic	
qualifications include:
•	 CA	(SA)
•	 MBL
•	 MCom	(Tax)

areas of expertise: Financial Management and Corporate Governance.
His	appointment	is	linked	to	his	position	as	Chief	Financial	Officer.

COmPanY sECrETarY | adv. B sEnnE

Advocate	Senne	was	appointed	to	this	position	on	01	May	2011.	His	academic	qualifications	
include:
•	 BJuris	
•	 LLB
•	 Bar	Exam	(Society	of	Advocates)

areas of expertise: Governance, Legal and Strategy.
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EXECuTivE manaGEmEnT 

CHiEF FinanCiaL OFFiCEr | mr JG GrOBLEr

His	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 CA	(SA)
•	 MBL
•	 M.Com	(	Tax)

areas of expertise: Financial Management and Corporate Governance

aCTinG CHiEF EXECuTivE OFFiCEr | mr Js mKWanazi 

Mr	Mkwanazi	was	appointed	as	 the	Acting	Chief	 Executive	Officer	 in	November	2009	
until 30 April 2015. Before his appointment to this position, he was General Manager: 
Acquisition.
His	academic	qualifications	include:	
•	 MBL
•	 Total	Quality	Management	(TQM)	Programme	
•	 MSc	(with	specialisation	in	Project	Management)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Operations Management, Project 
Management,	Quality	Management,	and	Acquisition.

GEnEraL manaGEr: rEsEarCH and dEvELOPmEnT | mr TC raman

Mr	Raman	was	appointed	to	this	position	on	01	April	2014.	His	academic	qualifications	
include:
•	 Bsc.	Eng	(Hons.)	(Mechanical)
•	 MBA	Aerospace
•	 Armscor	Leadership	Development	Programme

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Programme Management, Technology 
Management and Analysis, and System design.

aCTinG GEnEraL manaGEr: aCQuisiTiOn | mr d GriEsEL
Mr Griesel was appointed as Acting General Manager: Acquisition in November 2009 
until	30	April	2015.	His	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 BSc	Eng.	(Electronic)
•	 BSc	Eng.	(Hons)	(Electronic)
•	 Pr.	Eng.
•	 AEP	(Unisa)

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Acquisition Process, Telecommunications and 
Systems Design.
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GEnEraL manaGEr: dOCKYard | mr TT GOduKa

His	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 B	Eng	(Mechanical)
•	 Post	Graduate	Diploma	in	Business	Management

areas of expertise: Operations Management, Engineering Management, and Strategic 
Management.

aCTinG GEnEraL manaGEr: QuaLiTY | ms rH ramGOLam

Her	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 BSc	Chemical	Engineering
•	 MSc	in	Management	(Defence	Acquisition)
•	 MSc	in	Software	Engineering
•	 Executive	National	Security	Programme	(ENSP	20/09)

areas of expertise: Acquisition management, Software engineering, and Chemical 
Engineering.

GEnEraL manaGEr: COrPOraTE COmPLianCE | adv. Cvv ramPHELE

Her	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 BJuris
•	 LLB
•	 Bar	Examination	(Society	of	Advocates)

areas of expertise: Corporate Compliance and Risk Management, Corporate Law, and 
Corporate Governance.

GEnEraL manaGEr: Human rEsOurCEs | mr sP mBada 

His	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 BJuris
•	 BA	Hons
•	 MAP
•	 LLB

areas of expertise: Strategic	Management,	HR	Management,	IR	Management	and	
Training Management.
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CHiEF inFOrmaTiOn OFFiCEr | mr n maBasO

Mr	Mabaso	was	appointed	as	Chief	Information	Officer	on	01	February	2015.	His	
academic qualifications include the following: 
•	 BSc	(Computer	Science	and	Applied	Mathematics)
•	 MBA
•	 AIIM	and	ITIL	certificates

areas of expertise: Innovation;	Knowledge	Commons;	Strategic	Management	of	Technology.

GEnEraL manaGEr: marKETinG and BusinEss dEvELOPmEnT | ms JL mziLi

Her	academic	qualifications	include:
•	 BCom	(Hons)	Business	Management	
•	 BCom
•	 MBA
•	 Certificate	in	Strategic	Management
•	 Certificate	in	Financial	Performance	Measurement	and	Control

areas of expertise: Strategic Management, Strategic Marketing, Business Development 
and Financial Management.
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mr KEvin WaKEFOrd
Mr	Wakeford	graduated	from	the	University	of	Port	Elizabeth	with	a	BA	(Hon)	cum	laude	for	which	he	received	academic	
colours.	In	the	early	1990s,	during	his	studies,	he	worked	as	a	Surgical	Representative	for	Hospital	Products	in	the	Eastern	
Cape and was later appointed a Regional Coordinator for the Institute for a Democratic Alternative for South Africa (IDASA). 
He	then	joined	Firestone	South	Africa	as	a	Marketing	Coordinator.	Shortly	after	completing	his	studies	he	started	working	for	
the Consultative Business Movement as Regional Manager and two years later he was appointed as National Marketing 
Manager of Group Credit Company.

He	is	a	former	Chief	Executive	Officer	(CEO)	of	the	Port	Elizabeth	Regional	Chamber	of	Commerce	and	Industry,	and	he	was	
one of the founding members and promoter of the multi-billion rand Coega Development Project. After that he was appointed 
CEO of the South African Chamber of Business (SACOB). During this time he served on multi-lateral bodies including the 
National Economic Development Labour Council (NEDLAC), Proudly South African, Business South Africa, and the Arbitration 
Foundation	of	Southern	Africa.	He	has	represented	SACOB	internationally	at	the	World	Trade	Organisation	(WTO)	and	the	
World Economic Forum (WEF).

He	was	the	key	initiator	of	the	establishment	of	a	Commission	of	Inquiry	into	the	rapid	depreciation	of	the	rand	in	200.	He	has	
served as Special Economic Advisor to the Premier of the Eastern Cape Provincial Government and as Special Turnaround 
Project	Advisor	to	the	Minister	of	Home	Affairs.	In	addition,	he	serves	on	a	variety	of	listed	and	private	companies	as	Director.

Mr	Wakeford	is	the	newly	appointed	Chief	Executive	Officer	of	Armscor.	His	role	is	to	transform	Armscor	and	to	realign	it	
with the changing environment of the Defence Industry both locally and globally, and to ensure that the state’s defence and 
security procurement agency remains relevant and delivers timeously to the client.

ARmsCOR’s NEw CEO 
FROm 1 mAy 2015
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ChAIRmAN’s REPORT

INTRODUCTION

I have the unequalled honour and privilege of presenting 
this Annual Report on behalf of the Board of Directors 
of Armscor. 

The report will show our honest attempt at authoring a new 
chapter of hope for Armscor, inspired, as we are, by the 
seminal words of Leonardo da Vinci (1452 – 1519), and 
I quote:

“I have been impressed with urgency of doing. 
Knowing is not enough; we must apply.  

Being willing is not enough; we must do”. 

As the report will show, we have sought to know, apply, 
and do all the things that our legislative mandate calls for. 
In so doing, we have used inclusiveness, consultation, 
compliance and responsiveness as our leitmotif.  

This is because of our firm belief in the willingness of others 
to share in their wisdom and support, our burning desire to 
serve our main client, being the Department of Defence and 
Millitary Veterans, and our acceptance that despite our best 
efforts, we can always do better if we open ourselves to the 
guidance of others.

GETTING TO KNOW THE OPERATIONS 
AND THE PEOPLE

The above observations form the basis of our starting point, 
being the collective intelligence of our human capital. During 
the year under review, we traversed the length and breadth 
of this country to visit our facilities at Gerotek, Alkantpan and 
Protechnik	 (including	 Hazmat,	 Ergotech	 and	 Flamengro),	
Dockyard and Institute for Maritime Technology. 

We went out to meet as many of our stakeholders as 
possible, including the DOD, AMD, Denel, the dti and a 
variety of industry players, both locally and internationally. 
The details of our engagements will be set out more fully in 
the Director’s Report, suffice to state that our engagements 
have begun to bear fruit. An atmosphere of inclusiveness, 
camaraderie and partnership has begun permeating our 
dealings with everyone who has a legitimate interest in the 
defence environment in South Africa. 

The feedback we receive is that there is an effective 
change in the mood within the defence environment. We 
are now authoring a new chapter of hope, where we 
can share ideas openly and freely, understanding that it 
is only through mutual cooperation that we can serve the 
interests of our client, being the Department of Defence 
and Military Veterans.

A NEW STRATEGIC DIRECTION

Armed with the above understanding, the Board and 
Executive Management undertook a strategy breakaway 
in November 2014. The session was attended by all our 
major	stakeholders,	 from	the	Honourable	Minister	Mapisa	
– Nqakula, to the Secretary for Defence, the Office of the 
Chief of the South African National Defence Force, the 
AMD and the Council for Scientific and Industrial Research 
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(CSIR). We were privileged to receive their valuable inputs, 
which formed the basis of our deliberations for the next few 
days. 

We emerged with the refrain “On Time – In Time” as our 
clarion call to our staff, suppliers and other partners, to 
provide the products and services required by our main 
client, being the South African National Defence Force, so 
that they can in turn fulfil their national mandate both locally 
and abroad. This emphasis on delivering to our client is 
important to us because of our firm belief that if we cannot 
get down to basics and perform well on this front, everything 
else we do pales away into insignificance. 

BOARD ARRANGEMENTS

In light of the new strategic direction that Armscor has taken, 
we reformed our committees by retaining those committees that 
are required by law, and gave a sharper focus to our mandate 
by reducing our committees to four in total. This means that the 
Audit	and	Risk	Committee	and	the	Human	Resources,	Social	
and Ethics Committees remained in place. 

We also retained the Acquisition Committee, which deals 
with the main business of Armscor. We then created a 
Technology and Industry Support Committee, which is 
by definition, focused on technology development and 
exploitation, as well as supporting the industry in line with 
our legislation. 

APPOINTMENT OF THE CEO

After many years of Armscor having an acting CEO in the 
person	of	Mr.	Sipho	Mkwanazi,	we	were	able	to	appoint	
Mr.	 Kevin	Wakeford,	 who	 had	 taken	 over	 the	 executive	
leadership of Armscor at the time of writing this report. 
We wish him well and undertake to provide him with the 
required	 support,	 while	 we	 thank	Mr.	Mkwanazi	 for	 the	
work he has done all these years.

THE PORTFOLIO COMMITTEE

We are grateful to the Portfolio Committee on Defence 
and Millitary Veterans for its oversight work, guidance and 
support. We remain committed to an accountable delivery 
of services under its watchful eye. 

THE SHAREHOLDER

The	Honourable	Minister	of	Defence	and	Millitary	Veterans	
has entrusted us with the honour and privilege of serving the 
country as members of the Board of Armscor. We pledge 
our commitment to serve the people of this country under 
her direction.

CONCLUSION

Finally, I as Chairman, should thank all those who have 
contributed to the attainment of our goals for the year. These 
include the Board itself, management, staff, our clients and 
suppliers. We look forward to another year of good work.

Vice Admiral (ret) J Mudimu

CHAIRMAN
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INTRODUCTION

In line with our obligations to Parliament and the people of 
the Republic of South Africa, we are proud and humbled 
by the opportunity to once again report back on how we 
performed in the delivery of our mandate during the period 
under review. We do so at the time when our country has 
just celebrated 20 years of freedom, a very significant 
moment in the history of our country. As an organisation 
with its own past, Armscor has not been left untouched by 
the changes that have been sweeping through our country 
over the past years. We have had the tough challenge of 
ensuring that we position this great organisation in line with 
the broad changes taking place in the country, and to do 
so with clarity of purpose, to ensure that we also position 
this organisation for the future. I am therefore proud and truly 
privileged to have been part of this national project.    

Despite the challenging and tough economic conditions 
punctuated with sharp budget cuts, Armscor continued to 
make substantial progress in executing its mandate during 
the period under review. It has to be said that these cuts 
are by no means a reflection of lost confidence in the 
organisation, its operations or its mandate. These cuts 
should rather be understood in the broad context of the 
global economic melt-down over the past few years, which 
has had far-reaching effects on the expenditure policy 
for governments throughout the world. Closer to home, 
however, these budget cuts have to be understood within 
the specific context of seriously pressing socio-economic 
conditions, a large part of which was bequeathed to us by 
the apartheid legacy, which to this date our government is 
working hard to undo. The budget cuts therefore have, and 
continue to force us as Armscor to think in different ways 
where resourcefulness becomes the way of doing business. 
Ours is far too serious a mandate that cannot be amended, 
especially due to shrinking economic resources. 

Despite this scenario, Armscor performed satisfactorily in the 
2014/15 financial year, fulfilling our mandate of being an 
agency of the Department of Defence that can meet its main 
client’s needs and requirements in an efficient and cost-
effective manner. As we pointed out in the previous annual 
report, this requirement for us to be lean and mean in our 
operations should not be understood to mean the lowering 

of standards in terms of the quality of services that we render 
to our client, the Department of Defence. 
As an acquisition agency for the South African National 
Defence Force (SANDF) Armscor retains key strategic 
capabilities on which our service to the primary client is 
anchored. These strategic capabilities entail Acquisition, 
Research and Development and Naval Dockyard. Despite 
the economic challenges highlighted above, we have 
continued to provide quality-driven service to our client in 
all these key strategic areas. Of course, there are areas 
where challenges were encountered, such as projects 
running slightly longer than initially planned, due to budget 
constraints and inefficiencies in the process, but overall, we 
are encouraged by our performance during the year under 
review.   

The programmatic performance of all these three strategic 
areas is outlined in detail in this annual report. As will be 
seen in the various highlights of our performance, there are 
areas where performance in each of these programmes 
was outstanding, but there are also areas where we feel as 
a corporation we could have performed better. We learn 
from these shortcomings, and always look out for ways 
in which we can improve in those areas where we feel 
our performance has not been impressive. Ours is a vital 
mandate with very severe and immediate consequences if 
not diligently carried out. Where we have fallen short, we 
have been able to jointly work with our client in looking at 
ways in which improvements can be made. 

As a state-owned company, we are in the unique position 
of working with some of the sharpest minds in the field 
of engineering and science. These are the people who 
are at the centre of driving the sustainability of Armscor, 
especially in the technical area. Of course, as is the case 
with the rest of the country, we continue to be affected by 
challenges, especially from the supply side in as far as 
stock is concerned. Through our human resources plans 
we continue to pursue goals in the area of attracting and 
retaining these skills through training programmes both 
locally and internationally, as part of the overall strategy 
of making our people the best in the field. Without such 
people, there can be no service to the client to talk about. 

It is perhaps appropriate that I also take this opportunity to 
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thank members of the Portfolio Committee on Defence and 
Military Veterans for the dynamic interaction we have had 
with them during the period under review. Your guidance 
on how to perform our mandate in certain areas has been 
greatly valued and I am sure it is the guidance that you 
will continue to provide even in the new financial year. 
The project of building this country into the great nation 
that it can be is intrinsically linked to our ability as South 
Africa to work together in a way that enhances each 
other’s performance and allows space for the expression 
of creativity. On a personal note, I truly feel that you have 
allowed for that space.
 
From the financial performance point of view, we are 
encouraged by the report of the Auditor-General which has 
found no adverse findings on Armscor. Financial performance 
is one of the key areas that we place particular focus on, 
not merely from the point of view of Treasury compliance but 
also from the point of view of enhancing a culture where as 
public entities we are prudent in the manner in which we 
handle public resources.
 
As I outlined above, Armscor is proud to state that we 
continued to witness sterling performance for the period 
under review, continuing to carry out our mandate as 
outlined in the Armscor Act.  

STRATEGIC FOCUS

Armscor’s “On-time, In-time” Strategy was developed 
towards the end of the year under review.  This strategy 
document is aptly entitled “On-Time, In-Time”, as it seeks to 
make a significant impact on the service delivered to the 
Department of Defence, and by extension, to the people 
of the Republic of South Africa.   The strategy focuses on 
the urgency of the response of the Armaments Corporation 
of South Africa SOC Ltd (ARMSCOR) to meet the needs of 
its clients, especially those relating to the client’s national 
security operations. With a clearer strategic vision, the 
strategy has reinforced Armscor’s mandate and has 
brought about greater efficiency in the manner in which 
the Corporation operates.  Armscor’s Corporate Plan was 
aligned with the new strategy, and is aimed at promoting 
the effectiveness and efficiency of the organisation. 

The SA Defence Review approved by Cabinet recognises 
that the defence industry should be strongly supported 
and prioritised as a strategic acquisition and procurement 
sector.  We are encouraged that the review emphasises 
the importance of the defence industry, and specifically 

identifies Armscor as a strategic national asset.  We believe 
that this policy will have a positive impact on Armscor and 
the rest of the defence industry.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

HIGHLIGHTS AND CHALLENGES

Armscor performed satisfactorily in the 2014/2015 
financial year. I am delighted to share some of the 
developments that took place and the achievements that 
were registered in the year under review.
 
CORPORATE GOALS ACHIEVEMENT

In line with our operational requirements and for performance, 
we set ourselves specific goals and targets which we use as 
a basis in carrying out our mandate. These targets are set 
within the broad context of broader strategic goals which 
we have to develop in line with the Treasury requirements, 
and for purposes of monitoring our own performance. 

I am glad to report that during the period under review, most 
of the corporate goals were met in accordance with the 
corporate plan, while those not achieved were achieved 
later than planned owing to a number of factors, some of 
which were beyond our control. In some cases though, we 
were able to exceed some of the targets that we had set 
for ourselves. 
  
Armscor uses an overall efficiency measure, which is the cost 
of acquisition.  This measure reflects the ratio of operating 
cost incurred versus the acquisition cash flow based on 
the total forecasted acquisition activities (revised baseline).  
Armscor exceeded the target overall efficiency measure. In 
accordance with the Service Level Agreement, the orders 
committed were placed and all three of our strategic 
capabilities – Acquisition, Research and Development 
and Naval Dockyard – were able to meet their strategic 
objectives despite the varying challenges that they faced 
along the way. 

FINANCE

The effects of the world’s financial crisis are felt by the 
country’s revenue base, and Armscor is subject to budget 
cuts that impact on its operations.  Armscor, however, made 
optimal use of its allocation throughout the year under review.  
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The net financial result from operations of the Group shows 
a surplus of R84,2 million, compared to R103,3 million for 
the previous financial year, which was influenced by various 
factors as reflected in the financial report.

ACQUISITION

Armscor continues to face the challenge of retaining the 
required skills, expertise and capabilities to execute its 
primary mandate of acquisition for the Department of 
Defence. This risk is being mitigated by succession planning, 
rejuvenation and skills development.

During the year under review, the value of contracts relating 
to maintenance and support has grown to R6,58 billion.  
This represents approximately 59,5% of the total value of 
contracts placed and managed by Armscor.

Armscor managed contracts relating to capital equipment 
acquisition (acquisition projects) to a value of R4,483 billion 
during the year under review, representing approximately 
40,5% of the total acquisition and procurement portfolio 
managed and executed for the Department of Defence (DOD).
 
Armscor reviewed and streamlined acquisition processes to 
be more responsive to client requirements.  The joint action 
plan of Armscor and the DOD has reduced the acquisition 
process time.  The objective of the average time taken from 
receipt of requirement to placement of contracts is 90 days, 
while the actual performance achieved was 78,7 days.  
In the next financial year, Acquisition processes will be 
amended to achieve maximum flexibility and shortening the 
time it takes for the acquisition of equipment and services.

Capital projects performance against the object of 90% of 
orders to be placed as soon as requirements are received 
from the DOD, achieved 100%.

Support and maintenance projects performance against 
the object of 90% of orders to be placed as soon as 
requirements are received from the DOD, achieved 99,5%.

Armscor achieved the best results for the past six years for 
the percentage of cash paid against the orders placed, in 
terms of the financial performance of acquisition projects.

The acquisition of the DOD specific matériel and 
technological requirements remains strategic to the effective 
and efficient functioning of Defence.  During the period under 

review, Armscor completed several strategic acquisition 
projects and made notable progress towards completing 
other projects, which is summarised in the acquisition report.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is mandated 
to operate, manage, support and maintain strategic defence 
facilities and essential defence industrial capabilities, 
resources and technologies as identified by the Department 
of Defence (DOD). It ensures the long-term sustainability of the 
strategic capabilities through DOD funding and established 
commercial business processes. The department generated 
R374,3 million in revenue for the financial year, including 
payments received for sustainment of strategic facilities.

The various divisions of the department have successfully 
completed defence, technology, development, research, 
testing and evaluations planned for the financial year. 
The newly established Innovation division within the R&D 
department will improve the management of Armscor 
and DOD-owned Intellectual Property (IP), which includes 
exploitation of commercially viable IP on behalf of the DOD.

DOCKYARD

Challenges of insufficient capacity, capabilities and funding 
are still experienced.  The Dockyard has met its obligations of 
service delivery in accordance with available resources and 
the performance management agreement with the SA Navy. 
The Dockyard has maintained its quality accreditation as an 
ISO9001-2008 accredited operation.

Armscor commissioned a global service provider with 
extensive experience and expertise in transforming, operating 
and managing Dockyard’s successfully, to carry out a 
modernisation study, in order to improve the efficiencies of 
the Dockyard. The recommendations are under review.
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

Human	 capital	 remains	 the	 most	 valuable	 asset	 for	
Armscor and plays a pivotal role in Armscor achieving its 
organisational goals. Armscor’s commitment to investing in 
human capital as well as in technology, ensures that Armscor 
thrives in delivering quality service to the client.  

Transformation continues to be a key focus for the Corporation.
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Armscor is proud to report that there has been a significant 
improvement in race representativeness.  In line with our 
strategy to bring about balance in the workforce, we were 
able during the period under review, to perform beyond 
our target in terms of the recruitment of black employees 
throughout the organisation. Of course challenges are still 
being encountered, especially in the area of engineering 
and science where the pace is not as fast as we would 
ordinarily want it to be. But on-going efforts are being 
made to improve in this important area both from a race 
and gender point of view.  

Armscor treasures skills development as it is key to the nature 
of its business. The Corporation has continued with actions 
and interventions to retain, obtain and develop the skills 
of employees to achieve objectives.  Armscor has pursued 
partnerships with universities in various parts of the world to 
cater for areas of skills shortage, and identified technologies 
that are not available in South Africa.  

Succession planning is a vital element of business 
continuation planning, and focuses on the strategic skills 
required to meet the strategic management and technology 
demands of the future.

Armscor also managed to achieve a minimum staff turnover 
of 3,91% in technical positions, compared to the target of 
4,5%, excluding retirements.

COMPLIANCE

Armscor has operated within the parameters of good corporate 
governance in all its work throughout the reporting period.  

Armscor has lived up to its values and has subscribed to 
principles of good governance.  During the year under 
review, the corporate risk register was reviewed and 
finalised.  To strengthen the implementation of compliance 
and risk management, the Compliance and Risk Policy was 
approved by the Board of Directors, which clearly outlines 
the roles and responsibilities of Compliance and Risk as set 
out	in	the	King	III	Report.	The	Fraud	Risk	Management	Policy	
promotes	a	zero	tolerance	approach	to	fraud	and	corruption.

During the year under review, Armscor successfully 
established an Arms Control and Tracking IT system, which 
provides a centralised data management with capacity to 
track all permits issued by the National Conventional Arms 
Control Committee and the Non Proliferation Council, and 
movement of controlled items.

Armscor registered a remarkable improvement in the area 
of BBBEE transformation; Armscor’s BBBEE status has moved 
from Level 3 to Level 2, with a significant improvement on 
skills development. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT

As a truly South African organisation, Armscor believes in 
development and nation building, as well as in improving 
the quality of lives of our people – a duty and responsibility 
it embraces fully. 

Armscor actively supports corporate social investment 
initiatives that encourage education in mathematics, science 
and technology.  In South Africa, there is an acute shortage 
of skills in the science and engineering fields.  Armscor needs 
these talented young people to complement our established 
expertise and we are committed to investing heavily in 
young people, especially in the fields of engineering and 
science.

In line with Armscor’s Corporate Investment (CSI) Strategy, 
it is vital for Armscor to play a role, especially in the area 
of giving support to students who have the potential in the 
science and mathematics disciplines, in line with Armscor’s 
long-term sustainability goals.
 
It is therefore critical for Armscor to make an investment 
in the future of the more needy communities in which it 
operates or conducts its business, by allocating some  
resources to deserving schools, especially to enhance 
science and mathematics teaching and learning. Apart from 
it being mere contributions, such involvement by Armscor 
demonstrates the Corporation’s standing as a responsive 
corporate	citizen.	

During the year under review, the final phase of the Prieska 
upliftment project was completed. The aim of the project is 
to enhance the quality of teaching and learning at schools 
in and around Prieska, and supporting vulnerable youth in 
the area by equipping them with computer skills to be able 
to compete in the job market.

Armscor honours the Madiba legacy and to this end 
supports the Mandela Day initiative, which encourages 
individuals and organisations to make a difference in other 
people’s lives. Armscor supports social and economic 
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upliftment programmes that are aimed at improving people’s 
lives and creating an inclusive economy.  During the year 
under review, we partnered with the Gauteng Department 
of Education Tshwane West District to make a difference at 
Setumo-Khiba	Secondary	School.
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1. aCQuisiTiOn
The core function of Armscor is to acquire defence matériel 
and related services, primarily for the South African National 
Defence Force (SANDF) but also for other Government 
departments and services, with permission from the Minister 
of Defence and Military Veterans. 

The acquisition role of Armscor entails all the actions that 
need to be taken to satisfy the need for matériel, facilities or 
services intended for use in meeting or in support of client 
requirements. This includes: 
•	 requirements	analysis
•	 technology	development
•	 	design	and	development	of	products	and	product	systems
•	 	the	industrialization	and	manufacturing	of	mature	products	

and product systems that fully meet the stated user 
requirements, and

•	 	procurement	of	already	existing	and	qualified	products,	as	
well as the acquisition of product system support for user 
systems during the operational lifetime of the systems.

Armscor is, amongst other things, responsible for contracting 
industry for the maintenance and support of those product 
systems that have been taken into operational use. 
Following on a number of new products systems, both from 
the Strategic Defence Package (SDP) and other acquisition 
programmes that have recently been introduced into service 
by the SANDF, as well as due to the ageing of other systems 
currently in use, the maintenance and support portfolio being 
handled by Armscor has been growing steadily over the 
past number of years. During the reporting period, the value 
of contracts relating to maintenance and support has grown 
to R6,58 billion, representing approximately 59,5% of the 
total value of contracts placed and managed by Armscor 
during the financial year under review. 

In addition, Armscor managed contracts relating to capital 
equipment acquisition (acquisition projects) to a value of 
R4,5 billion, representing approximately 40,5% of the 
total acquisition and procurement portfolio managed and 
executed for the DOD. Capital equipment acquisition 
entails projects or programmes that are aimed at the 
development of complex systems that meet the stated 

capability requirements of the SANDF. During the execution 
of these projects a formal and robust risk-reduction process 
is followed, which eventually leads to the contracting of 
suitable	suppliers	to	develop,	industrialize	and	manufacture	
the products or product systems. The acquisition process 
concludes with the delivery of mature, fully qualified and 
supportable products or products systems to the SANDF. 

1.1 STATUS OF ACQUISITION OBJECTIVES

Training of personnel in the Acquisition environment remains 
a	 high	 priority	 for	 the	 organization.	 This	 training	 involves	
specialist technical, programme management and systems 
engineering training to new appointees and refresher training 
to existing personnel. A number of in-house computer-based 
training courses and modules have been developed that 
are focussed specifically on the competencies required by 
personnel in the acquisition environment, and personnel are 
actively encouraged to enrol for these courses. A bouquet 
of courses has been developed to form a robust induction 
programme for new appointees, and this programme serves 
to provide an essential introduction to the specific unique 
military environment and culture, as well as a first introduction 
to the complex acquisition and contracting process. These 
courses have proven to provide a solid foundation to 
new appointees, from which they can be fast tracked to 
progressively assume full responsibility to manage projects 
in the shortest possible time. During the reporting period, 
several of the computer-based training courses such as the 
contract management and the capital acquisition process 
courses were updated and improved. 

Armscor is furthermore committed to providing the experience 
to young engineers and scientists that is required by ECSA for 
professional registration, and in this regard Armscor places 
young newly graduated engineers in industry for a period 
of one to two years to obtain those required outcomes that 
cannot be obtained within the ambit of Armscor’s normal 
activities. This initiative has proven to be very successful, 
both in providing all the required outcomes required for 
professional registration, and giving industrial exposure to 
newly graduated engineers before they become involved in 
project management in the Armscor environment.

In an endeavour to enhance the level of systems engineering 
knowledge in the Acquisition environment, a Systems 
Engineering Working Group was established to develop 
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a more comprehensive understanding of this particular 
discipline with project managers during the previous 
reporting period. The Systems Engineering Working Group 
arranges monthly presentations by experienced project 
managers who have, or are managing large and complex 
programmes, on lessons learnt and on the application of 
systems engineering processes during the execution of 
their programmes. These working group sessions, which 
are well attended by the Armscor programme managers, 
have proven to be invaluable in enhancing the knowledge 
basis of programme managers and entrenching a systems 
engineering	culture	in	the	organization.

During the previous reporting period Armscor initiated a process 
of moving away from a number of complex and uniquely 
written practices that govern the programme management, 
engineering management, business management and other 
processes, to fewer practices that are better aligned with 
industry standards, more specifically, the standards for life 
cycle, engineering and project management. During the 
previous reporting period, the Acquisition policy and source 
selection practice was completely updated in line with the 
changed approach, and the process was completed during 
the current reporting period with the updating and approval 
of the practice for baseline reviews as well as the Acquisition 
Practice, which identifies and describes all the tasks required 
in the execution of the Acquisition sub-processes ranging 
from highly complex multi-disciplinary capital projects to non-
complex procurement activities. 

A review and complete update of Armscor’s standard for 
acquisition baselines was initiated during the reporting 
period, with the intent to simplify the standard and to achieve 
better alignment with the newly approved Acquisition 
Practice. This updated standard, which is planned to be 
completed in 2015/16 year, will provide more impetus to 
the core engineering activities that are required during the 
execution of the acquisition process.

During the previous reporting period an initiative was 
launched to develop an improved business reporting 
system. The first phase of this initiative delivered a workload 
system that is effectively being employed to provide for 
enhanced capacity planning. During the reporting period 
work commenced with the development of a system that 
will provide in-time status information on all acquisition 
activities, and that will be used for purposes of status 
monitoring and reporting.

1.2  ACQUISITION FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE

An important objective of the Acquisition department remains 
the achievement of planned commitment and expenditure of 
DOD funds. Achievement of all planned cash flow within 
any particular financial year depends on many factors, such 
as timeous receipt of requirements from the DOD, efficiency 
of internal Armscor processes to place contracts for the 
identified requirements, and ability and capacity of industry 
to deliver contracted outputs on time. Armscor’s cash flow 
performance is measured against the joint Armscor/DOD 
cash flow planning during the first revision, adjusted with 
mutually agreed deductions due to factors beyond Armscor’s 
control. Factors beyond Armscor’s control would typically be 
regarded as being factors such as funds that are contracted 
in a particular financial year with the aim of committing 
the funds in order to acheive milestone payments early next 
financial year. 

The graph in figure 1 below reflects the cash flow planned 
during the first revision versus actual cash flow achieved in 
the three main categories, being capital acquisition, SDP 
programmes and operating procurement.

Figure 1 : Actual vs Planned Cashflow for the 2014/15 
financial year.

An amount of R1,5 million, which was planned during the first 
revision in June 2014 as cash flow for the 2014/15 year, 
is regarded as not being achieved due to factors beyond 
Armscor’s control. Taking this deduction into consideration, 
Armscor managed to achieve and exceed its target of 90% 
cash flow against the planned cash flow for the year by a 
significant margin. The graph in figure 2 below reflects the 
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cash flow planned that has been adjusted by deducting 
commitments that could not achieve cash flow due to factors 
beyond Armscor’s control versus cash flow achieved. 

Figure 2 : Actual vs Adjusted Planned Cash Flow for the 
2014/15 financial year.

In spite of the continued challenges of receiving 
requirements in time to contract industry and effect payments 
in the applicable financial year, Armscor has managed to 
continuously improve the expenditure against contracted 
values per financial year over the past five financial years 
since 2010/11. This continuous improvement is indicated 
in the graph in figure 3 below. The ultimate goal still remains 
to fully spend the total value contracted per financial 
year, and a number of improvement initiatives have been 
developed together with the DOD, which should serve to 
significantly improve the situation in the following years, as 
the initiatives become fully implemented.

It should be noted that Armscor received requirements to a 
value of R2,3 billion late in the 2014/15 financial year, 
which could only be contracted without any cashflow during 
the year.  The largest contributor to these requirements would 
be requirements to the value of R1,48 billion representing 
additional funds received by the South African Air Force in 
January/February 2015 and which Armscor was requested 
to commit on maintenance and support contracts in order  to 
achieve milestone payments early next financial year.

In order to present a comparative indication of cash flow 
performance, these funds which were contracted without 
any planned cash flow during the 2014/15 financial 
year, have been deducted from the total value of contracts 
placed during the 2014/15 year. The adjusted cash flow 
percentage for the 2014/15 financial year is indicated by 
the “2014 adjusted” bar in the graph in figure 3 below, 
while the brown “2015 actual” bar indicates the actual 

cash flow as a percentage of contracts placed for the 
2014/15 financial year without any adjustment for the late 
requirements which were contracted purely to be able to 
allow for milestones payments in the next financial year.

Figure 3 : Cash flow as a percentage of ordered values 
per financial year.

1.3 ACQUISITION HIGHLIGHTS

1.3.1  AIRBORNE SYSTEMS

Strategic Defence Acquisition Programmes

The airborne-related programmes under the Strategic 
Defence Acquisition Programme (SDP) entail the acquisition of 
AgustaWestland	A109	Light	Utility	Helicopters,	the	SAAB	JAS	
39	Gripen	Advanced	Light	Fighter	Aircraft,	and	the	BAE	Hawk	
120 Lead-In Fighter Trainer Aircraft. Delivery of the aircraft at 
full contracted functionality was completed during the previous 
reporting period, and during the current year, the focus has 
revolved around completion of the delivery of ground support 
equipment and spares, as well as programme closure. 
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Although	 the	Hawk	120	 Lead-In	 Fighter	 Trainer	Aircraft	 has	
been delivered to the SAAF with full contracted functionality, 
work has been continuing with the integration of the A-Darter 
fifth generation Short Range Air-to-Air Missile on this aircraft, 
as	well	as	with	 the	provision	of	a	Helmet	Mounted	Display	
capability for the aircraft. A feasibility study on the integration 
of	 the	 Helmet	 Mounted	 Display	 capability	 into	 the	 aircraft	
was concluded at the end of the reporting period. No major 
risks were identified that would prevent the programme from 
continuing on to the Development and the Embodiment Phases.

Oryx Medium Transport Helicopter: 
Communications and Navigation System Upgrade

This project entails the upgrade of the Communications and 
Navigation	System	of	the	Oryx	Medium	Transport	Helicopters	
of the SAAF. After a delay of approximately 18 months, 
the development of the upgrade was completed during the 
previous reporting period, and embodiment of the upgrade 
on operational helicopters was initiated. During the current 
reporting period, the Military Airworthiness Board issued 
a Supplemental Type Certificate (STC) for the upgraded 
aircraft.	The	STC	authorizes	the	use	of	the	modified	aircraft	
for limited operational use and Operational Test and 
Evaluation. At the end of the reporting period, 24 of the 
planned 39 aircraft had been upgraded and delivered to 
the	SAAF.	Upgrading	of	the	full	complement	of	39	aircraft	is	
planned to be completed by February 2016.

Oryx Medium Transport Helicopter

Fifth Generation Short Range Air-to-Air Missile

This project entails the development of the A-Darter fifth 
generation Short Range Air-to-Air Missile system, co-funded 
by	the	South	African	Air	Force	and	the	Brazilian	Air	Force.	

Despite a total delay of approximately six months during 
the development phase, this ambitious development 
programme is delivering very good results. The design 
goals of this programme will deliver a 5th generation Air-
to-Air missile that is functionally comparable with the most 
advanced missiles of this nature available in the world. 
Despite the delays incurred during the development phase, 
the programme timescale has still been much shorter than 
that of comparable missiles developed internationally.

The programme encountered several difficulties on various 
aspects during this reporting period, but these difficulties were 
all successfully resolved without any significant further delays to 
the programme. During the past year, a number of test flight 
campaigns were conducted which culminated in the successful 
completion of the final development flight test campaign. 
These successful tests essentially signify the completion of the 
development phase of the project. The following reporting 
period will see the finalisation of the Critical Design Reviews 
of the complete missile and all its subsystems as a precursor to 
final qualification and attainment of the Product Baseline (PBL).

A-Darter Air-to-Air Missile

Following on the successful flight test campaigns conducted 
during the past year, and sufficient mitigation of most technical 
risks	on	the	programme,	a	contract	for	the	industrialization	
and subsequent production of the operational missiles for 
the SAAF was placed with industry towards the latter part of 
the reporting period. First delivery of missiles is expected to 
be towards February 2017.

During the reporting period, Armscor continued negotiations 
with	 BAE	 Systems	 (UK)	 regarding	 the	 integration	 of	 the	
A-Darter	missile	and	a	Helmet	Mounted	Display	capability	
(HMC)	 onto	 the	 Hawk	 Mk120	 aircraft	 of	 the	 SAAF.	 A	
feasibility study was conducted to identify and reduce major 
integration risks, and it was concluded that it is viable to 
integrate	 the	missile	and	an	HMC	onto	 the	Hawk	aircraft	
with no major developmental risks associated with the 
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programme. It is foreseen that a contract for the integration 
of	 the	 A-Darter	 missile	 onto	 the	 Hawk	 aircraft	 will	 be	
concluded during the 2015/16 financial year. 

1.3.2  LANDWARD SYSTEMS

New-Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle

This project provides for a complete New Generation 
Infantry Combat Vehicle Products System (NGICV-PS) that 
is intended as a replacement for the Ratel Infantry Combat 
Vehicle that has been in service since 1976. The project 
originally comprised five combat variants, including their 
logistic support and ammunition, but four new variants 
were added with the approval of the Acquisition Plan in 
February 2013. During the reporting period, the originally 
ordered quantity of combat vehicles was increased with 
4 as a quid pro quo for increasing the advance payment 
made to industry on the production contract. In terms of 
the production contract, 21 vehicle platforms will be 
sourced from Patria Land and Armament in Finland, while 
the remaining platforms will be completely manufactured in 
South Africa. The vehicle turrets and weapon systems are all 
developed and manufactured in South Africa.

New-Generation Infantry Combat Vehicle

Significant progress with the final phases of the vehicle 
development programme was made during the past 
year and a number of major technical challenges were 
successfully mitigated. It is expected that development will 
be completed by the end of the 2016/17 financial year, 
and	 that	 industrialization	 and	 production	 can	 commence	
without any significant delay.

During the reporting period, most of the Design, Test and 
Evaluation trials of the section variant were completed, 
and the Preliminary Operational Test and Evaluation was 
completed in February 2015. The locally developed 30mm 
Camgun performed exceptionally well during trials, and all 
performance life goals were achieved.

Development of the Mortar and Missile variants of the 
vehicle are planned to lag behind the Section variant, and 
Design and Test and Evaluation trials for these variants are 
planned to be completed during the 2015/16 financial 
year. Development of both these variants will be completed 
by the end of 2016. The concept designs of the signal 
and ambulance variants were completed in March 2015, 
while that of the artillery variant will be completed during 
the 2015/16 financial year.

Three vehicle platform Pre-Production Models (PPMs) were 
manufactured by Patria in Finland, two of which were 
delivered to South Africa during the reporting period. The 
technology transfer milestones are all progressing according 
to schedule, and are aimed at ensuring that the transfer 
of	 industrialization	 and	 production	 of	 the	 platforms	 from	
Finland to South Africa happens seamlessly. In this regard, 
the first hull that was welded by South African welders was 
completed in Finland as part of the technology transfer 
process. Training of South African artisans in the assembly 
process commenced during the reporting period and will 
be completed by the 3rd quarter of 2015.

Ground Based Air Defence System for the SA Army

The first phase of the Ground Based Air Defence System 
(GBADS) programme, namely the Local Warning Segment 
(LWS), has been successfully completed and delivered to 
the SA Army Air Defence Artillery Formation. This system 
was formally handed over from the acquisition environment 
to the Air Defence Artillery Formation at a ceremony in 
Kimberley	 on	 16	 October	 2014.	 The	 system	 has	 been	
used by the SA Army for force preparation activities and 
has been declared combat ready in support of the ACIRC 
standby force. 

Phase Two of the GBADS programme comprises two steps, 
the first of which entails the upgrade of the Gun Fire Control 
System (GFCS) of the 35mm Anti-Aircraft guns currently in 
service with the South African Army Air Defence Artillery 
Formation. This upgrade will provide a radar-guided 
autonomous gun fire capability to the 35mm guns, which 
will significantly enhance the operational capability of 
these assets. During the reporting period, Armscor placed 
contracts for the development and production of the GFCS, 
which will culminate in the delivery of five Autonomous Gun 
Fire	Units	by	 the	end	of	2018.	Good	progress	has	been	
made with the execution of this phase.
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Artillery Target Engagement System (ATES)

This programme, which provides for the development and 
upgrade of the South African Army’s Artillery fire control 
and target engagement capability, commenced during the 
early 1990s and was finally completed during the reporting 
period. The programme which comprised 16 sub-projects 
and various programme phases to validate the requirements 
and qualify the solutions, delivered two regiments of fire 
control and target engagement systems as well as equipment 
for training at the SA Army School of Artillery. 

The solution provided an integrated Artillery Target 
Engagement System (ATES) together with a support system, 
training and maintenance services. The ATES consists 
of Brigade, Regimental, Battery and Launcher level 
command and fire control elements, providing the South 
African	 Artillery	 Formation	 with	 a	 world	 class	 digitized	
command and control solution. The system is equipped with 
unmanned	aerial	observation	systems	(UAOS)	operating	up	
to 60 km, long range observation systems (EAOS) capable 
of operating up to 20 km, and basic observation systems 
(BAOS) operating up to 10 km, providing for day and night 
battlefield surveillance and target acquisition capabilities.

During the reporting period the system was finally 
commissioned and handed over to the SA Army Artillery 
Formation, and has been taken into operational use.

Artillery Target Engagement System (ATES)

1.3.3  MARITIME SYSTEMS

MEKO A-200 Frigates, Class 209 Mod 1400 
Submarines and Super Lynx Maritime Patrol 
Helicopters

The frigates, submarines and maritime patrol helicopters were 

part of the Strategic Defence Acquisition Programme. All three 
of these product systems have been delivered and successfully 
taken into use by the SANDF. All spares and other outstanding 
deliverables on these programmes have been completed, 
and the administrative actions to close the programmes and 
all the associated contracts have been initiated and will be 
completed early in the next financial year. 

Hydrographic Capability

This programme relates to the acquisition of a new 
Hydrographic	Capability	Products	System	for	the	SA	Navy.	
The programme requirements comprise the following: 

a.	 	A	 Hydrographic	 Survey	 Vessel,	 including	 two	 fully	
integrated inshore survey motor boats and one 
seaboat. This new vessel will serve as a replacement 
for the SAS Protea, which is still in service with the 
Navy but which is suffering from obsolescence and 
no longer fully meets the functional requirements of 
the SA Navy.

b.	 	Upgrading	of	the	current	shore-based	hydrographic	
office infrastructure located at the Silvermine Complex 
in the Cape Peninsula.

c.  All associated integrated logistic support elements 
that are required to support the total capability.

The Request for Offer for this capability was advertised in 
July 2014 with an offer closing date of end June 2015. 

Multi-Mission Patrol Capability 

This programme entails the acquisition of a new Multi-
Mission Patrol Capability for the SA Navy, comprising 
three Offshore Patrol Vessels (OPVs) and three Inshore Patrol 
Vessels (IPVs). The Project Study Phase of the project was 
completed during the reporting period and the project is 
currently in the Acquisition Study Phase, during which 
Requests for Offer are solicited from Industry. The Requests 
for Offer for the Inshore and the Offshore Patrol vessels were 
advertised by Armscor in November 2014 with a closing 
date at the end of September 2015. 

One of the requirements of this programme is that the vessels 
should be constructed in South Africa, thus providing a 
significant opportunity to support and grow the shipbuilding 
capability in the country. 
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1.3.4  COMMON WEAPON SYSTEMS

New Generation Tactical Communication System

This programme entails the development and production of 
a complete new generation digital tactical communication 
system for the SANDF. This system will provide for all tactical 
communication requirements of all Arms of Service and will 
ensure complete interoperability between all users across 
the various Services of the SANDF.  

The new generation tactical communication system 
encompasses state of the art transmission and information 
security techniques, whilst incorporating semi real-time data 
link performance characteristics, as well as digital voice 
communication capabilities. Development of the various 
elements of this system progressed exceptionally well, and 
will result in the first tactical communications system in the 
world that will provide complete interoperability between 
all elements of the battlefield (Air Force, Army, Navy, etc.) 
without making use of gateways or protocol converters.

The system comprises seven major subsystems. Development 
and	industrialization	of	the	first	four	major	subsystems,	being	
the	HF	 (high	 frequency)	 radio	 system,	 the	 V/UHF	 (very/
ultra high frequency) radio system, IPCS (Intra Platform 
Communication System) and the SRCS (Short Range 
Communication System), were successfully completed 
during the reporting period. Initial production orders for 
the complete communication system were placed during 
the latter part of the 2014/15 financial year and the first 
production equipment will be delivered during the first 
quarter of 2016. Development of the management system 
has been contracted and will also be completed during the 
first quarter of 2016.

New Generation Static & Mobile Communication 
System

This programme provides for the upgrade, expansion and 
augmentation of the static and mobile segments of the 
Defence Communication Network. The present Static and 
Mobile communication networks and systems being used 
in the DOD have been in service for more than 25 years 
and some of these systems are no longer sustainable. The 
present network can also not accommodate the data transfer 
requirements of future applications. 
 
The purpose of the programme is to create a single network 
for the entire DOD, as opposed to the various different and 
largely incompatible legacy networks that are currently 
in use. The current networks are providing the backbone 
communications links of the entire SANDF, and one of the 

main challenges of the programme is to introduce a new 
generation network technology in a new integrated system, 
without affecting performance or disrupting the services that 
are being provided by the current networks. 

During the reporting period, the high-level technical architecture 
of the programme was completed and the Functional 
Baseline successfully established.  The detail design of the 
system has been contracted and will be completed during 
the 2015/2016 financial year. Detailed specifications for 
the Management system, the Mobile (Deployable) system 
and the Gateway system will also be completed during the 
2015/16 financial year. These specifications will enable 
Armscor to initiate a partial acquisition process for the 
various subsystems. The partial acquisition process will allow 
for the acquisition and implementation of subsystems of the 
total network, in accordance with the user’s priorities and 
with availability of funds. Owing to the lack of resources, 
the programme has been delayed by almost a year, and 
therefore the initial roll-out of the first new subsystems in the 
Static environment of the Defence Communications Network 
is now planned for early in 2016.

A New Generation Tactical System 

1.3.5  DEFENCE INDUSTRIAL PARTICIPATION 

Defence Industrial Participation (DIP) entails the obligation 
incurred by a foreign supplier to reciprocate defence related 
business in South Africa as a result of foreign Defence 
Acquisition, and forms an integral part of the DOD’s policy 
framework for the retention and development of the South 
African Defence Industry.

Owing to the significant foreign content of the Strategic 
Defence Acquisition programme, a significant number of 
resulting DIP obligations have been managed by Armscor 
since the inception of the SDP in 1999. To date, all but one 
of these DIP obligations relating to the SDP have been fully 
discharged. The only remaining SDP related DIP obligation 
is an obligation incurred by MBDA for the acquisition of 
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the Exocet surface-to-surface missile for deployment on the 
frigates of the SA Navy.  In addition to the one remaining 
obligation that stems from the SDP, Armscor is currently 
managing 17 existing DIP agreements resulting from other 
capital acquisition projects and one DIP agreement resulting 
from the procurement of pistols on behalf of the SAPS.

Although MBDA has until March 2016 to discharge its 
obligation, it has not been able to propose any acceptable 
business plan to discharge the obligation and fulfilment 
seems	unlikely	given	the	size	of	the	outstanding	obligation	
(ZAR933m). MBDA’s proposal to establish a test bench 
capability in South Africa to service the SA Navy’s Exocet 
missiles is considered to be technically unfeasible as the 
proposed test bench is not usable on the current configuration 
of the SA Navy missiles and would require the missiles to be 
upgraded at a significant cost. 

Pro-active DIP credits, which are banked for future use by 
foreign companies, remain the largest indicator of benefit 
accruing to the Defence Industry. To align the pro-active 
banking mechanism with the current DIP Policy, foreign 
companies will have to conclude new Pro-active agreements 
with Armscor and those with existing agreements have been 
given notice of termination of such agreements.

One new DIP Agreement was concluded during the 
reporting period, and current Acquisition projects will lead 
to the establishment of new DIP Agreements in the following 
financial year.

The status of the four DIP Portfolios at 31 March 2015 is 
as follows: 

Status of DIP obligations relating to the Strategic Defence 
Packages as at 31 March 2015:

Note : Except for DIP obligations relating to the Frigates 
(MBDA), all other SDP related DIP obligations were fully 
discharged during the previous reporting period. 

1.3.6  DEFENCE MATÉRIEL DISPOSAL 

Armscor’s Defence Matériel Disposal (DMD) mandate provides 
for the disposal of excess and obsolete defence matériel on 
behalf of the Department of Defence.  Defence matériel to 
be disposed normally includes ammunition, aircraft, spares, 
vessels, and land and/or air-based equipment.  

The disposal of the defence matériel is carried out in 
accordance with the requirements of the DOD and regulatory 
authorities such as the National Conventional Arms Control 
Committee (NCACC) and the National Non-Proliferation 
Council (NPC).

During the reporting period Armscor continued with its Sales 
and Sales Support improvement plan and this initiative 
has resulted in a more efficient and professional delivery 
of its alienation and disposal service to the Department of 
Defence; to the extent that new contracts to the value of  
R40,1 million were concluded during the reporting period. 
The sales improvement initiative has also enabled Armscor 
to explore new initiatives such as support to the Military 
Veterans, in line with Armscor’s strategic objectives.

During the reporting period Armscor sold DOD surplus and 
redundant stock such as military vehicles and related spare 
parts, aircraft and related spare parts, naval spares and 
other defence matériel to the South African Defence Related 
Industry.  A number of African countries have shown interest 
in acquiring surplus SANDF equipment, which bodes well 
for future sales. The moratorium instituted by the DOD on the 
sale of Samil type vehicles has and will however continue to 
impact negatively on future sales and consequent revenue 
generation by Armscor. 
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2.  rEsEarCH and 
dEvELOPmEnT

The Research and Development (R&D) department ensures 
that the strategic capabilities and facilities under its 
control continue to grow and deliver defence operational 
and scientific research, test and evaluation services 
and technology management, analysis and innovation 
management services in accordance with the mandate and 
corporate goals of Armscor. 

Provision is made in the departmental structure to allow 
the establishment of commercial entities within Armscor 
or partnership engagements with potential investors in 
commercial applications of defence technology. Although 
the department still faces the challenge of insufficient 
funding to ensure the effective execution of its mandate, 
the exploitation of royalties and commercial opportunities 
created by research and development activities contribute 
to long-term financial sustainability. The department consists 
of various divisions and business entities that focus on the 
following three functional areas:

•	 Technology	Management,	Analysis	and	Innovation

•	 Test	and	Evaluation	Services

•	 Operational	and	Scientific	Research

2.1   TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT, 
ANALYSIS AND INNOVATION

These divisions perform an independent, centralised 
coordination and management role for technology 
acquisition, intellectual property management and 
technology commercialisation.

2.1.1  MANAGEMENT OF TECHNOLOGY 
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMMES

The strategic intent for technology development programmes 
in various technology areas is to develop and maintain 
relevant technologies and capabilities in South Africa, 
which would support the new and changing demands of 
the South African National Defence Force (SANDF).

These programmes are conducted in South African Defence 
Industries, Defence Evaluation and Research Institutes 
(DERIs),	and	at	Tertiary	Education	Institutions	(Universities).

The technology funding of R675 million for these programmes 
in 2014/2015 was distributed as follows:

•	 	Armscor	 Research	 and	 Development	 Institutes	 –	
20,6%

•	 CSIR	–	28,4%

•	 South	African	Defence	Industries	–	50,4%

•	 Universities	–	0,6%

The major technology programmes and performance are 
highlighted below.

•	 	The	technology	development	of	an	All	Weather	Air	
Defence Missile (AWADM) demonstrator to expand 
and prove the technology capabilities in areas such 
as radar seekers, missile navigation systems, fusing, 
warheads, flight control and propulsion systems, 
integrated through a sound systems engineering 
process. 

•	 	Firepower	 technology	 development	 is	 aimed	 at	
providing science and engineering knowledge to 
improve weapon systems with respect to ballistics, 
fusing, modelling and simulation whilst protection 
and mobility technology development addresses 
passive, reactive and active protection systems 
and electric drive technology. Further scientific and 
engineering advice was delivered to the SANDF 
with regard to mobility, blast protection, specialised 
soldier requirements/applications, battlefield 
clearance	(UXO/IED	disposal),	mine	detection,	and	
camouflage. 

•	 	The	 Radar	 technology	 development	 programme	
includes research into improved target detection, 
tracking and classification. The Dual Band Radar 
(DBRXL)	 demonstrator	 was	 successfully	 utilised	 to	
detect	 and	 track	 a	 target	 drone	 at	 the	 Umkhonto	
Missile Firing in 2013/14 and further work was 
conducted during 2014/15.

•	 	The	 Electronic	 Warfare	 (EW)	 Radio	 Frequency	
(RF) technology development programme includes 
the management of large amounts of diverse EW 
data, the choice of appropriate measures and 
countermeasures associated with each sensor and/
or platform, to detect or estimate hostile intent of a user 
of radar or communications systems, the exploitation 
of RF missiles, and the control of the electromagnetic 
spectrum.
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•	 	The	Optronics	technology	development	programme	
includes target detection tracking and classification, 
countermeasure development against Infra-red (IR) 
seeker based missiles, the military application of 
lasers in targeting and surveillance, novel sensors 
and imaging processing techniques, and research 
on camouflage techniques.

•	 	The	 Command	 &	 Control	 (C&C)	 technology	
development programme includes building up and 
maintaining a capability in command and control 
technologies, providing assistance in the development 
of doctrine for complex military operations and 
decision support for the upgrade of command and 
control systems, improving situational awareness, 
improving collaboration between forces, threat and 
resource management, data and information fusion, 
and management and exploration of emerging 
mobile communication techniques.

•	 	The	 highlights	 for	 the	 year	 were	 the	 Maritime	
Experiment in Saldanha Bay, Western Cape,  
in	 which	 the	 Brazilian	 and	 Indian	 Navies	 also	
participated, and the work done to support Border 
Safeguarding and Rhino Poaching initiatives.

•	 	The	 University	 grants	 programme	 entails	 the	
Defence Technology Programme’s tertiary institutions’ 
scientific research component. It is a core part of 
the technology development process, where new 
knowledge is generated through research. Research 
is directed towards solving complex problems faced 
by the SANDF and the defence industry. Originally 
the programme was focused on post-graduate 
research, but it has been extended to undergraduate 
students in 2014/2015.

2.1.2  INNOVATION DIVISION

The Innovation division was established in March 2014 
to professionally manage intellectual property (IP) created 
or acquired during the acquisition of defence matériel or 
during technology development projects on behalf of the 
Department of Defence (DOD). IP management includes the 
following generic elements: creation and/or acquisition of 
IP, identification of IP, capturing of IP, storing of IP, evaluation 
of IP, management of ownership of IP, protection of IP, and 
direct and/or indirect exploitation of IP.

The Innovation division exploits such IP on behalf of the 
DOD to a limited extent. The exploitation of IP is done with 

due consideration of the DOD’s strategic requirements and 
without putting the DOD at risk or compromising its strategic 
direction. Any IP exploitation transaction is supported by 
Armscor’s Board of Directors and by Defence Intelligence 
and is approved by the Secretary for Defence on behalf of 
the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans. Currently only 
a very limited service of IP Management is being provided 
due to resources and organisation limitations.

To date the Innovation division has received approval 
from the Secretary for Defence, on behalf of the Minister 
of Defence and Military Veterans, for eight exploitation 
transactions. These exploitation transactions include 
providing licence rights to South African Defence Industry 
Stakeholders such as the CSIR and Denel, to either exploit 
the IP by themselves or provide sublicences to companies 
in various foreign countries. In one of the exploitation 
transactions	 (the	 Ultrasonic	 Broken	 Rail	 Detector	 Project),	
Armscor has partnered with the CSIR and received funding 
from the Department of Science and Technology (DST) for 
further development of the technology and commercialisation 
thereof. In exploiting the DOD-IP the Innovation division aims 
to partner with the private sector, e.g. the Defence Industry 
and other industries that can find commercial application of 
the DOD-IP.

Furthermore, in managing the IP, the Innovation division 
is responsible for assisting the DOD in obtaining a clean 
audit opinion from the Auditor--General (AG) in respect 
of Intangible Capital Assets (ICA). The Innovation division 
submits to the DOD an ICA Register which includes Intangible 
Assets emanating from projects funded by the DOD. The 
inovation division was not funded under the DOD SLA.

2.2  TESTING AND EVALUATION FACILITIES

2.2.1  ALKANTPAN TEST RANGE

Alkantpan Test Range is an all-purpose ballistic test range 
used by local and international clients and is equipped 
to test a variety of artillery pieces as well as aircraft and 
naval weapon systems. There was a significant increase in 
the number of tests conducted in 2014/15, contributing 
to 39% increase in planned sales. International customers 
accounted for 65% of the R70,7 million sales. 

The Alkantpan Test Range’s newly developed world class 
Insensitive	Munitions	 (IM)	and	Hazard	Classification	 (HC)	
Test Facility was extensively and successfully used, mainly 
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by Singapore. Diehl Defence BGT of Germany and Oto 
Melara of Italy which jointly continued to conduct 155 
mm artillery tests of new generation guided munitions. 
Negotiations are underway with Oto Melara to conduct 
tests with other smart weapon systems. Denel Dynamics and 
Singapore	 conducted	 Unmanned	 Aerial	 Vehicles	 testing	
and more tests are envisaged in future. 

The	 co-existence	 of	 Alkantpan	 and	 the	 Square	 Kilometre	
Array	 (SKA)	 is	 still	 of	 concern.	 A	 task	 team	 consisting	 of	
DOD, Armscor and Department of Science and Technology 
(including	 the	 SKA	 team)	 representatives	 are	 investigating	
various options of co-existence.   

2.2.2  GEROTEK TEST FACILITIES

Gerotek Test Facilities (Gerotek) was established primarily to 
meet South Africa’s needs of testing of defence related vehicle 
and component products and to maintain key facilities, 
equipment, capabilities and technologies. The secondary 
objective is to leverage capabilities and available capacity 
for commercial business, which income will complement 
the funding required for sustaining operations. The facilities 
are composed of a vehicle test range, test laboratories 
and a conference centre at Elandsfontein Pretoria West, 
the Electromagnetic Compatibility (EMC) test laboratory in 
Lyttelton Centurion and the National Antenna Test Range 
at Paardefontein. Through its various business divisions, 
Gerotek provides test and evaluation, advanced driver 
training and corporate event services in support of the 
acquisition processes of Armscor, the South African National 
Defence Force and other Government institutions. 

Gerotek managed to maintain and improve strategic 
capabilities and facilities required by the DOD for their 
support in terms of its mandate. Funding remains a major 
constraint. A strategy was developed to exploit opportunities 
and to deal with challenges. This entails a focus to maintain 

and improve strategic facilities and services for the DOD, 
standardising services with flexibility to accommodate 
special customer needs, focus on most profitable packages 
for commercial clients, providing world class productivity 
and client service, growth in local and international 
markets, as well as sweating of assets. Commercial sales 
contributed 82% to total sales of R39,1m even though 17% 
of the planned sales did not materialise.

The highlight for the year was the certification of Gerotek 
by the South African Bureau of Standards (SABS) to 
International Organisation for Standardisation (ISO) 14001 
environmental	 standard	 and	 Occupational	 Health	 and	
Safety	Advisory	Services	(OHSAS)	18001	health	and	safety	
standard after a successful audit. Gerotek also maintained 
and extended the scope of ISO17025 accreditation. The 
scope now includes anti-lock braking system (ABS) brake 
testing and European Telecommunications Standards Institute 
(ETSI) prescripts to meet the Independent Communications 
Authority of South Africa (ICASA) requirements on EMC 
compliance testing. The certification on Transport Education 
and Training Authority (TETA) and the South African Sector 
Education Training Authority (SASSETA) on the training side, 
Federated	Hospitality	Association	of	South	Africa	(FEDHASA)	
and South African Music Rights Organisation (SAMRO) for 
the Sidibane restaurant as well as SASSETA and Prescribed 
Fire Training Centre (PFTC) accreditation on the shooting 
range were also maintained. Accreditation and certification 
are important to ensure quality and credibility of results as 
well as compliance with safety, health and environmental 
legislation. This is one of Gerotek’s competitive advantages.

Gerotek was used on numerous occasions by the local 
defence manufacturing industry to test military vehicles and 
components for the export market. In this regard, major 
clients were SAAB Grintek, Poynting, BAE Systems, Land 
Mobility Technologies (LMT), DCD Dorbyl, Paramount and 
Denel Land Systems. Commercial testing clients included Fiat 
(Italy),	Ferrari	 (Italy),	McLaren	(UK),	Tata	(India),	Mahindra	
(India), Volvo (Sweden), Porsche (Germany), BMW, 
Mercedes	Benz,	Ford,	General	Motors,	Medav	(Germany),	
and Bell Equipment. 

Major events for the year included a Volvo truck launch, 
ONELOGIX	 truck	 driver	 competition,	 Ford	 launch,	 South	
African guild of Motoring Journalists Car of the Year 
competition, Tata truck launch, Toyota Government Fleet 
day and the Society of Automotive Engineers (SAE) Baja 
competition. Gerotek also hosted numerous international 
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delegations	 such	 as	 the	 Indian	 High	 Delegation,	 Saudi	
military delegation, Military Attaché Annual Conference 
and	 the	 USA	 Engineering	 Research	 and	 Development	
technical group. 

The local community and local educational institutions are 
supported through Gerotek’s social investment programme. 
A school in Atteridgeville was painted on Mandela Day 
and a group of school pupils interested in engineering 
studies was hosted at Gerotek during the SAE Baja event.  
Amongst other things they received career advice and were 
given	 presentations	 by	 Armscor	 and	 industry.	 University	
students were supported during their post-graduate studies 
by allowing them to use available facilities for research 
purposes.

2.3   OPERATIONAL AND SCIENTIFIC 
RESEARCH

2.3.1 ARMOUR DEVELOPMENT 

This specialised division conducts continuous research and 
development to maintain and advance armour protection 
technologies and to establish industrial capability to 
timeously satisfy armour protection requirements over 
the entire threat spectrum in a cost effective manner. This 
service includes analysis of the customer protection needs, 
development of armour, testing and qualification, vehicle 
hull structural and ballistic design as well as specification of 
bonding or welding.  The division has extensive experience 
in retro-fitting armour packages on main battle tanks and in 
the supply of modular adaptable armour packages for light 
and medium vehicles. 

Armour Development is contracted by the Defence 
Research and Development Board (DRDB) funded project 
(96,5% of total sales of R4,1m) focussing on passive and 
reactive armour systems. The research and development is 
ongoing with further innovation and refinement of existing 
systems. Research on electric armour, RPG-7 protection 
and advanced reactive armour continued with satisfactory 
results. Work continued on naval protection from  
RPG-7 warheads. Armour Development is developing low 
collateral damage armour packages that can be attached 
to any type of vehicle. The system is in the design and 
testing phase.

Lastly, Armour Development conducted various commercial 
ballistic tests for local defence companies (3,5% of total 

sales of R4,1m) mainly aimed at qualifying or verifying the 
protection capabilities of the products these companies 
supply to their customers, either foreign or domestic.

2.3.2  PROTECHNIK LABORATORIES

Protechnik Laboratories is a multidisciplinary laboratory 
facility with the primary focus on Chemical and Biological 
(CB) Defence Research and Development.  The institution 
specialises in protection of personnel in chemically 
hazardous	 environments	 (respiratory,	 body	 and	 collective	
protection); detection and identification of trace amounts 
of	 hazardous	 chemicals;	 decontamination/detoxification	
of	hazardous	chemicals;	Synthesis	of	Test	Compounds	and	
Chemical Verification Standards in support of commitments 
to the Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC). The 
facility also conducts biomedical studies focussing on the 
Characterization	and	Identification	Techniques	for	Biological	
Warfare Agents.  The laboratory delivered 89% of the total 
research and development services (R39 196 154) to the 
DOD; 9,5% to other government departments and 1,5% to 
the local commercial industry. 

During the 2014/2015 financial year, Protechnik acquired 
the new state-of-the-art solid phase Gas Chromatograph-
Fourier Transform Infra-red (GC-FTIR) spectrometer to 
enhance the analytical capabilities for the verification 
of Chemical Weapons Convention (CWC) related 
chemicals.  The instrument was successfully commissioned 
and found to provide ± 10 ng (nanogram) detection limits 
per component when using the OPCW quality control 
mixture comprising of 16 components.  This is a significant 
improvement in sensitivity when compared with existing 
spectroscopic techniques.

The GC-FTIR Instrument:  DiscovIR – GC
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A collaboration project was initiated with the Department 
of	Physics	at	the	University	of	Pretoria	(UP)	early	in	2014.		
The main focus of the project was to develop a graphene-
based material to be used as a chemical sensor and as 
an alternative to the currently used activated carbon in 
respiratory filters. The project was an attempt to improve 
the selectivity and sensitivity of these graphene chemical 
sensors. Protechnik has been invited to be a member of 
the newly established Carbon Chair Committee led by 
UP.	 	One	of	 the	 objectives	 of	 the	 committee	 is	 to	 initiate	
collaboration with international laboratories.

Protechnik secured a three-year contract (2015/2016 to 
2017/2018) with the OPCW to offer a two week course 
in Analytical Chemistry to African Member States to the 
CWC.  The objectives of the course are to facilitate analysis 
of chemicals related to the implementation of the CWC, 
thereby enhancing national capacities of the Member 
States and facilitating the adoption of good laboratory 
practices and broaden the pool of manpower from which 
national authorities can draw from in the future.  For the 
past six years the course has been offered at Protechnik 
in collaboration with the Finnish Institute for Verification of 
Chemical Weapons.

Maintenance of South African National Accreditation 
System (SANAS) ISO 17025 is a requirement for the 
continuation	of	the	Service	Level	Agreement	with	SAMHS,	
the DTI and also to participate in OPCW Proficiency Tests.  
In the 2014/2015 financial year the certificate for the 
SANAS accreditation was renewed for the next five years 
expiring on 31 May 2019, and Protechnik also received 
a certificate of recognition from SANAS for maintaining the 
accreditation for 20 years.

As part of the corporate skills development drive, a number of 
scientists attended various training courses and conferences 
both locally and abroad.  

2.3.3   ERGONOMICS TECHNOLOGIES 
(ERGOTECH)

Ergotech is responsible for the integration of ergonomics 
within the military systems of the SANDF.  This objective is 
accomplished by providing military ergonomics research, 
design and specification of human-machine interfaces and 
ergonomics evaluation and testing services to the DOD and 
the SA Defence Industry.

Ergotech’s scientific research portfolio during the year under 
review included military ergonomics work for the Defence 
Research and Development Board and for the South 
African	Military	Health	Services	(SAMHS).		The	ergonomics	
areas that were covered included scan anthropometry 
of encumbered soldiers, biomechanics experimentation, 
reactive force measurement and modelling, and real time 
monitoring of human physiological exertion parameters 
during soldier task performance.  Work was also conducted 
on cognitive ergonomics and workload measurement of 
soldier tasks, functional performance with the focus on 
performance enhancement and specific military ergonomics 
research as required by the different Arms of Service.  

Ergotech conducted a research study on soldier 
anthropometry for a specialised grouping of the SANDF 
soldier.  This work will enable detailed analysis of load 
carriage and personal soldier equipment for improved and 
effective planning for specialist deployments.  For the test 
and evaluation portfolio, services were conducted for the 
new generation combat vehicle project.  A number of smaller 
commercial project evaluations were also conducted for 
the other research and evaluation institutes within Armscor.  
Ergotech was also once again involved in the selection of 
South African Air Force flight crew incumbents.

Research work was conducted on soldier human-computer 
interaction utilising gesture control and its influence on soldier 
performance when operating on-board military equipment.  
Cognitive workload studies were conducted on air mission 
controllers using electroencephalography.  This work added 
substantially to understanding the intricacies of utilising 
laboratory applications in real life military environments.  
Decision-making concepts using engineering psychology 
theory were used to initiate a human command and control 
model for military decision-making.  The initial pilot testing 
of the model proved positive and encouraging for future 
work in this domain.  

2.3.4  HAZMAT PROTECTIVE SYSTEMS

Hazmat	 manufactures and markets a comprehensive 
range of respiratory products to commercial (industrial) 
and governmental (Military, Police and Correctional 
Service) clients and is considered a major manufacturer 
and supplier of quality respiratory equipment in the South 
African safety industry.
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Hazmat	also	manufactures	impregnated	activated	carbon,	
which is used as one of the primary filter materials in 
the manufacturing of air-purifying respirator filters. The 
technology was initially developed to supply chemical and 
biological filters to the SANDF, as military carbons used for 
individual and collective protection are not readily available 
and	are	controlled.	Hazmat’s	carbon	impregnation	plant	is	
unique	and	delivers	a	superior	product	that	allows	Hazmat	
to manufacture commercial and military respiratory filtering 
devices that comply with major International Standards.

Hazmat	 mostly	 sells	 to	 distributors	 of	 personal	 protective	
equipment in South Africa. An increasing portion of the 
manufactured products is exported by these distributors into 
Africa and an increase in sales to Africa is expected. 
Hazmat	 has	 started	 the	 process	 of	 replacing	 critical	
manufacturing equipment on the canister filter assembly line 
in the period under review. This equipment replacement will 
allow	Hazmat	 to	 stay	on	 the	 forefront	 of	 technology	and	
continue to supply its clients with military and commercial 
products that exceed quality standards and expectations.

All	of	Hazmat’s	income	for	the	review	period	was	derived	
from	commercial	business.	Hazmat’s	actual	sales	(R13m)	for	
the financial year exceeded budgeted sales by 21%.

The	expansion	of	Hazmat’s	filter	product	 range	 to	 include	
the manufacturing of branded filters for strategic partners 
has again proved to be very successful as it continued to be 
a	significant	portion	(21%)	of	Hazmat’s	business.

2.3.5   INSTITUTE FOR MARITIME 
TECHNOLOGY (IMT)

The Institute for Maritime Technology (IMT), as the custodian 
of the Maritime DERI, is mandated to develop and maintain 
a sustainable capability for providing techno-military 
expertise to support naval decision-making in specific 
key naval expertise domains. IMT specialises in defence 
research, development, testing and evaluation of maritime 
systems with 61,4% of the total sales of R123,5m funded by 
the DOD. Commercial sales make up the remainder of the 
revenues	with	 the	Ultrasonic	Broken	Rail	Detector	product	
system being the main contributor.

The IMT research and test activities include the following:

•	 	The	 application	 of	 the	 VistaNet	 Maritime	 Domain	

Awareness (MDA) software (to process radar and 
Automatic Identification Systems (AIS) information), 
electronic warfare (communications intercept trials), 
electro-optic sensor deployment, environmental 
assessments, mobile communications applications 
evaluation, harbour security (mines, divers, 
autonomous unmanned vehicles), acoustic target 
fingerprinting and promoting awareness of the 
underwater element of MDA.  

•	 	The	 Submarine	 Tower	 Escape	 System	 (TESS)	
demonstrator is used to evacuate personnel from 
a bottomed submarine.  Submarine escape is a 
very dangerous exercise and the equipment and 
procedure currently in use by the SA Navy has 
proved to be inadequate.  Safe escape systems 
for submarines are currently a worldwide problem. 
IMT, in collaboration with the CSIR’s Technology 
for Special Operations (TSO), has successfully 
demonstrated a functionally improved Submarine 
Tower Escape System (TESS) demonstrator.  The IMT 
technology project has now been completed and the 
SA Navy is in the process of commissioning the full-
scale development of the TESS. 

•	 	The	collaboration	on	 the	Submarine	 Tower	Escape	
System (TESS) development between IMT, CSIR and 
the	German	company	ThyssenKrupp	Marine	Systems	
(TKMS)	has	led	to	a	cooperation	agreement.		TKMS	
is the Original Equipment Manufacturer for the class 
209 submarines and is therefore responsible for the 
Submarine Escape and Rescue systems installed on 
these submarines. 

•	 	IMT	 developed	 an	 Electric	 Field	 Shark	 Protection	
Barrier	 for	 the	 Kwa-ZuluNatal	 (KZN)	 Sharks	 Board	
to safeguard swimmers from shark attacks.  A full-
scale demonstrator was deployed for evaluation 
off Glencairn Beach for the duration of the False 
Bay “shark season”.  Technical back-up was also 
provided	 to	 the	 KZN	 Sharks	 Board	 during	 their	
media briefings in Durban and Simon’s Town.   
 The media presentations were positively received and 
Armscor and IMT received positive media exposure.  
This work is well aligned with the electric field (e-field) 
technology work done for the South African Navy.  
The Sharks Board expressed its appreciation for the 
professional standard of IMT’s design process. 
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The Shark Barrier System

•	 	The	installation	and	commissioning	of	the	Ultrasonic	
Broken Rail Detector over the entire 846 kilometres 
of the Sishen-Saldanha Ore Export line has been 
completed.  The installed system has already detected 
rail breaks and helped to prevent derailments.  Apart 
from the possible injury and loss of life that can be 
caused by such derailments, the cost of a derailment 
is estimated to be in the vicinity of R100 million. 

•	 	The	 development	 of	 a	 regional	 Maritime	 Domain	
Awareness Centre (MDAC) was completed near 
Silvermine.  The MDAC is functioning and the 
Automatic Identification System (AIS) sites have 
been established.  The Silvermine MDAC was also 
integrated into the Maritime Operations Centre 
during the JOPS Maritime Experiment.

•	 	A	viable	technical	concept	for	recovery	of	a	submarine	
after an uncontrolled dive occurrence was defined. 
This recovery concept is expected to significantly 
improve submarine safety. A successful recovery 
concept will have possibilities for international 
commercial exploitation.

2.3.6   DEFENCE DECISION SUPPORT 
INSTITUTE (DDSI)

Defence Decision Support Institute (DDSI) delivers Decision 
Support (100% of total sales of R67m) to the Department 
of Defence (DOD) in terms of the provision of solutions, 
advice, options and specialist support through research and 
analysis, engineering support, as well as specific specialist 
support services as required by the DOD and mandated 
by the Armscor Act.  This support is mainly focused on 
the areas within the higher system levels, from products 
system level to joint, inter-departmental and international 
levels.  This support is provided over the total lifecycle of 
defence capabilities, in support of executing the mandate of 
the DOD.  Support includes decision support, operational 
research, defence analysis, capability analysis, systems 
engineering analysis, and products system management 
support to defence practitioners in the DOD.

Highlights	from	the	past	year	include	the	following:
•	 	Research	and	analysis	support	was	provided	with	great	

effect and satisfaction to the Joint Operations Division 
on the operational challenges faced by the SANDF in 
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order to support the African Capacity for Immediate 
Response	to	Crises	(ACIRC)	to	the	African	Union.		

•	 	A	successful	planning	session	was	facilitated	by	DDSI	
for the SA Army Armour Formation, to determine the 
future role of armour that is needed to develop the 
future systems requirements.  

•	 	Support	 was	 given	 to	 the	 Defence	 Secretariat	 in	
preparation of the implementation of the Defence 
Review.

•	 	Successful	 analysis	 and	 benchmarking	 was	
conducted for Armscor on the following:

 o  The impact of the Defence Review on Armscor.

 o  The benchmarking of the Acquisition process. 

 o  The separation of roles of Armscor Project 
Managers and the Tender and Contracting 
functions.

•	 	The	Ministry	 of	 Defence	 (MOD)	 required	 decision	
support regarding the alignment and capacitation of 
the Ministry, so as to guide the future of the SANDF.

•	 	DDSI	is	involved	with	an	initiative,	under	the	auspices	
of the Chief Logistics, to render support related to 
logistic policies within the DOD and the alignment of 
these policies with the organisational structure under 
C Log, as well as with the applicable legislative 
frameworks.

•	 	In	 order	 to	 support	 the	 SA	 Army	 in	 their	 Products	
System Management effort, DDSI continuously 
provides Engineering Services and Systems 
Management Support to the Directorate SA Army. 

2.3.7  FLAMENGRO

Flamengro is a Computer Aided Engineering (CAE) Centre 
of Excellence and a strategic capability to the DOD, which 
is mandated to provide a computer based simulation, failure 
analysis support and consultative service to programme 
managers, the DOD and the defence related industry 
during product and system development (services rendered 
to the value of R9m). Flamengro specialises in fluid flow, 
aerodynamic analysis, heat flow, thermo-chemistry and 
structural integrity simulations, as well as experimental 
verification of such techniques.  This capability is established 
and sustained as a strategic facility within Armscor, in order 
to support the Defence environment with such unique and 
specialised research initiatives. 

Example of stress analysis model of XYZ.

Flamengro is currently involved in four Defence Research 
and Development Board (DRDB) funded projects: Integrated 
Ballistics Simulation Capability (IBSC), Weapon Systems 
Launch Response (WSLR), Extended Range Munition 
(ERM), and the new collaborative project with  the CSIR’s 
Defence Peace Safety and Security Aeronautic Systems on 
modelling and simulation for aeroballistics.  These projects 
are in various stages of progress.  The IBSC project that 
recently kicked-off has as the main focus to complete the 
redesign, manufacture and commissioning of the improved 
GV-1 30mm internal ballistics test facility.  An additional 
test setup to investigate dynamic and kinematic effects 
during flight for ammunition was designed, manufactured 
and commissioned.  Flamengro also effectively completed 
a missile plume analysis for an Armscor project, and the 
results were delivered successfully.  This project was an 
urgent requirement to validate the integration of a weapon 
system on an aircraft, which demonstrated the convergence 
of hardware, software and the engineering capability at 
Flamengro, in support of technology research to the DOD.  
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3.  armsCOr 
dOCKYard 

The Dockyard provides maintenance and repair services to 
the SA Navy (SAN) on various configuration product systems 
ranging from submarines, frigates, tugs and small craft to 
support vessels in accordance with the Dockyard’s available 
capacity and capability. The services cover both planned 
and unplanned projects. The current funding levels render 
the Armscor Dockyard unable to optimally maintain the SA 
Navy’s product systems and the Dockyard infrastructure.

During the 2014/15 financial year the Dockyard continued 
to be marred with challenges of insufficient capacity, 
capabilities and insufficient funding. The challenge, however, 
is that the funding gap still exists to maintain a baseline 
support capability. The Dockyard resources reflect a shortfall 
in both its human and technical capability necessary to fill its 
intended capability to support the full SAN upkeep capability. 

The current manpower levels are well below the minimum 
capability levels to ensure maintenance and repair support. 
The critical support requirements are in the technical domain 
where the Dockyard has greatly lost both its capability 
and capacity. Employment of permanent labour has been 
impossible with the current funding constraints, thus creating 
a major reliance on contracted personnel. 
Despite the challenges of insufficient funding, the Dockyard 
has reasonably met its obligations of service delivery in 
accordance with the performance management agreement 
with the SA Navy. This has been achieved through both 
the use of the Dockyard’s own resources and insourcing/
outsourcing support from/to industry; the challenge with the 
latter being erosion of capabilities, costs and lost opportunities 
for knowledge and capability transfer.

The outcomes of the study conducted for rejuvenation of the 
Dockyard are still under review by the Board and form part 
of Armscor’s strategy.

3.1  PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

A number of projects were undertaken during the reporting 
period, both planned and unplanned (Refits and Docking 
and Essential Defects). The projects were executed in 
accordance with the respective user requirement, tasking’s 
and statements of work.

3.1.1  FRIGATES

SAS MENDI (Docking and Essential Defects)

As a result of a strategic decision taken by the SA Navy 
to	dock	the	SAS	DRAKENSBERG	to	carry	out	blasting	and	
painting of all the internal tanks and void spaces to ensure 
availability for deployment, the SAS MENDI’S planned 
completion date had to be revised. The vessel requires a 
further docking scheduled for June/July 2015 to complete 
underwater work. The project is experiencing a number of 
challenges, which include shortage in funding to procure 
spares/material, scope growth and the provision of 
customer-furnished equipment (CFE). The revised planned 
completion date of this project is September 2015, 
funding dependable. 

3.1.2  PATROL VESSELS

SAS ISSAC DYOBA (Docking and Essential Defects)

The project commenced on 14 March 2014 and was 
completed on 31 July 2014. Based on hull surveys, 
additional repairs (scope growth) were required to be 
executed on the hull. These additional tasks impacted on the 
initial planned completion date. The SA Navy approved the 
revised completion date and the project was successfully 
completed. The vessel is operational.
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SAS GALESHEWE (Docking and Essential Defects)

The project commenced on 11 August 2014 and was 
completed on  31 March 2015. The scope growth on the 
project doubled the initial statement of work. This was as 
a result of the poor condition of the hull, which had to be 
grit-blasted down to bare metal and repainted. An extensive 
repair was also required on the tanks, scoops and overboard 
discharges. The SA Navy approved the revised completion 
date and the project was successfully completed.    

SAS GALASHEWE undocking after repairs at the Dockyard

SAS UMHLOTI (Docking and Essential Defects)

The project commenced on 3 March 2014 and was 
completed on 8 July 2014. The main engines required 
replacement and these were provided by the SA Navy 
as CFE. The engines were delivered late, which impacted 
marginally on the project completion date. The project, 
scheduled for completion on 30 June 2014, was successfully 
completed on 8 July 2014.  

3.1.3  TUGS

TUG TSHUKUDU (Docking and Essential Defects)

This project commenced on 15 September 2014 and was 
completed on 6 March 2015. Numerous supplementary 
tasks were raised by the SA Navy during the project which 
led to a >50% scope growth against the initial statement 
of work. The additional tasks (i.e. exhaust pipe repairs, 
propeller repairs, masks repairs) were scoped and a revised 
project completion date was approved by the SA Navy. The 
project which was scheduled for completion on 3 November 
2014 was successfully completed on 6 March 2015.  

3.1.4  SUBMARINES

SAS MANTHATISI (Refit)

This was the first refit done locally on the class 209 
submarine. The refit in general progressed satisfactorily 
and was successfully completed in conjunction with the 
original equipment manufacturer on 6 October 2014, 
within the cost, schedule and performance goals set. The 
vessel is operational and has participated in various joint 
exercises with foreign navies, as well as in internal SA 
Navy force preparation exercises.   

SAS CHARLOTTE MAXEKE (Refit)

This vessel has formally been handed over to the 
Dockyard to commence with the refit. Armscor Dockyard 
released a request for offer to the original equipment 
manufacturer (OEM) for the refit in collaboration with the 
Dockyard. The SA Navy is in the process of sourcing 
funds for the refit. Dockyard has deployed a small 
team to this refit project to commence with strip-out, the 
removal of the items being a low risk to the project. OEM 
expertise is required to continue with the refit however, 
as the product/systems capability does not exist within 
the Dockyard. Limited submarine knowledge within the 
Dockyard remains a high risk.

SAS QUEEN MODJADJI  
(Docking and Essential Defects)

The planned completion date of this project had to be 
revised owing to additional repair tasks identified during 
the project execution. The unavailability of sustainable 
funding, as well as timeous availability of spares 
contributed to revising the completion date. The project 
was successfully completed on 13 February 2015 and 
the vessel is operational. 

3.1.5  INDEPENDENT VESSELS

SAS DRAKENSBERG (Refit)

Dockyard was initially tasked by means of a formal 
statement of work for the refit. The majority of the 
maintenance and repair tasks were planned to be 
executed alongside without docking the vessel. The main 
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tasks were to strip out and replace the heads, bathrooms 
and deck showers, and a number of engineering changes. 
The SA Navy requested that the vessel be docked in order 
to clean the tanks, void spaces and bilges, and to prepare 
and paint these areas. These taskings were contracted as 
Client Furnished Equipment (CFE) by the SA Navy. The 
preparation and painting was dependent on funds being 
allocated and orders placed by the SA Navy. Due to 
funding constraints, the SA Navy engaged the Dockyard 
and subsequently tasked Dockyard to undertake the tank 
repairs which would initially have been outsourced during 
the refit. The completion date of this task was planned for 
twenty-six weeks from date of docking. 

Dockyard workers on SAS DRAKENSBERG

The SA Navy indicated that the vessel should be back 
in operation by 28 February 2015, which would have 
been achievable with minimum overtime requirements 
from	 Dockyard.	 However	 the	 vessel	 was	 subsequently	
taken out of the drydock to allow for emergency repairs 
to	 SAS	 SPIOENKOP.	 SAS	 SPIOENKOP	 undocked	 on	 1	
September	2014	and	SAS	DRAKENSBERG	could	only	be	
docked on 9 September 2014 to commence with tank 
repairs. With the completion date of 28 February 2015 
fixed, all work planned for the initial twenty-six weeks had 
to be completed within seventeen weeks. The project team 
re-planned all the tasks to be completed within 17 weeks, 
which could only be achieved by working maximum 
overtime in accordance with a concession approved by 
the Department of Labour for Dockyard personnel. The 
undocking of the vessel was planned for 20 January 
2015	 after	 which	 Harbour	 Acceptance	 Trials	 and	 Sea	
Acceptance Trials would commence. 

As the project progressed it became evident, however, that 
the tanks were in poor condition and required additional 
repairs that would impact on time, schedule and cost. 
Although on initial investigation the tanks had seemed in 
a fair condition, a poor condition was reflected after the 
blasting. The project plan was reviewed in collaboration 
with the SA Navy and it was evident that it would not 
be possible to undock the vessel on 20 January 2015 
as initially planned, due to the significant growth in 
work required. The project team, including the SA Navy, 
reviewed the scope of work emanating from the blasting of 
the tanks, which resulted in major scope growth. The project 
team was unanimous in deciding that safety could not be 
compromised and that all the tanks had be repaired to the 
prescribed quality standard.

The project plan was revised and a new planned terminal 
date of 29 May 2015 was agreed to by the SA Navy 
and Dockyard. The project has progressed satisfactorily 
to date and the new planned terminal date should be 
achievable. The funding for this project has been provided 
by the SA Navy.
 
SAS PROTEA (Docking and Essential Defects)

The project commenced on 29 September 2014 with planned 
terminal date of 15 April 2015. Numerous supplementary 
tasks have been raised by the SA Navy, which has led to a 
>40% scope growth against the initial statement of work. The 
SAS PROTEA has progressed well into its life cycle and due 
to its age is presenting obsolescence challenges. Owing to 
unavailability of certain spares, reverse engineering practices 
are applied in maintaining certain equipment/subsystems. 
The project should nevertheless achieve the planned terminal 
date	to	commence	with	Harbour	Acceptance	Trials	and	Sea	
Acceptance Trials. 

3.2 INFRASTRUCTURE UPKEEP

The Dockyard’s primary facilities and infrastructure have been 
in existence for over one hundred years, since the Dockyard 
came	into	existence.	Hence	the	continued	upkeep	support	
requirements. The dry dock, syncrolift and other equipment 
are essential in supporting the required maintenance of 
the SA Navy fleet and it is therefore imperative that these 
strategic assets be maintained in operational condition. 
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Significant financial injection is required, both in the 
immediate and long term, to ensure restoration and 
recapitalisation of the infrastructure which has suffered from 
unsustainable upkeep. The immediate requirement is to 
stop the wave of decline and address the restoration of the 
primary facilities, which include the drydock, syncrolift and 
cranes together with the integrally associated equipment.

3.3   SAFETY, HEALTH, ENVIRONMENTAL 
AND QUALITY (SHEQ)

The Dockyard’s annual ISO/SANS 9001:2008 
surveillance audit was conducted by the certification body, 
SABS Commercial, during the year under review. The 
purpose of the audit was to determine conformance to the 
Quality	Management	System	 requirements,	which	 include	
contractual	 and	 organization’s	 own	 documentation,	 legal	
and statutory requirements.

No audit findings were raised against the Dockyard, which 
was a significant achievement. Employees interviewed by 
the auditors were found to be well versed in terms of their 
respective roles and responsibilities.

A	number	of	SHE	compliance	audits	were	conducted	during	
the 2014/15 financial year. The final report for some of the 
audit	outstanding	from	the	Corporate	SHE	Audit	division.

The health audit was concluded in October 2014; Dockyard 
achieved a compliance score of 92% compared to 68% in 
the previous year. This was as the result of an improvement 
drive implemented by management to address the state of the 
operational workshops and facilities. The clinic management 
contract implemented in August 2014 also played a 
significant role in improving the Dockyard’s compliance 
score. 

Management	furthermore	introduced	weekly	SHE	inspections	
in the operational work areas, particularly during the refits 
and the repair programmes, as a mechanism to contribute 
to	the	Dockyard’s	SHE	compliance.	

4.  suPPOrT 
FunCTiOns

4.1 QUALITY

Armscor’s	 Quality	 function	 comprises	 both	 the	 technical	
and the audit functions for assuring the technical integrity 
and quality management processes during the acquisition 
phases of programmes and projects and the development 
of	 internal	 processes.	 The	Quality	 department	 is	 involved	
in	all	aspects,	 from	 the	User	Requirement	Statement	stage	
through to commissioning.

The Audit division primarily assesses the procedural 
compliance internally while also performing compliance 
and software certification externally.  

The	technical	function	is	performed	by	Quality	Representatives	
to determine compliance with contracted requirements and 
includes all stages of verification, validation and acceptance 
of products and services in accordance with contractual 
conditions, over a wide range of specialist disciplines. 

Quality	 Representatives	 are	 assigned	 to	 all	 the	 projects	
to ensure that only conforming products and services that 
meet the contractual and technical requirements in every 
respect are delivered to our SANDF clients, regardless of 
the timescale and financial pressure.

4.1.1  CORPORATE QUALITY MANAGEMENT

Armscor is committed to following best global practices as 
an organisation. The organisation has chosen to follow ISO 
9001, a globally recognised accreditation standard for 
quality management. 

Armscor’s restructuring implied a change in the ISO 
certification scope which warrants a re-certification in 
accordance with the new scope. The re-certification audit 
will	 be	 conducted	 in	 the	 next	 financial	 year.	 However,	
a surveillance audit was conducted by the SABS in July 
2014 where the new scope was taken into account, and 
actions were completed to address integration of the new 
department’s	Quality	Management	Systems	(QMS)	into	the	
corporate	QMS.
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4.1.2   ARMSCOR CONTRACTORS QUALITY 
INDEX (ACQI)

The quality function also provides support and training to the 
defence contractors so as to produce “first time acceptance” 
at all the phases. A measuring system is implemented to 
determine	 the	Armscor	Contractors	Quality	 Index	 (ACQI),	
by rating contractors in accordance with:

•	 	The	 contractors’	 Quality	Management	 System	 and	
ISO 9001 Certification status 

•	 The	number	of	corrective	actions	requested	

•	 Contractual	Item	Submissions	versus	Rejection	

•	 Number	of	Concessions	/	Deviations	requested	

Contractor performance was better than in the previous 
year, due to the improved control and quality management 
processes that were implemented at the contractors. We 
expect an imporvement in this area as corrective actions 
have been put in place. 
 
Quality	 representatives	 were	 involved	 in	 development,	
environmental tests and final acceptance tests. The quality 
baselines and software certification processes were verified 
and reported to the Baseline Review Committee.  The 
following quality highlights were achieved on projects:

4.1.3  PROJECTS

The project to provide secure communications capability to 
the SANDF is in place. The whole range of products was 
monitored	 by	 the	 Armscor	Quality	 Representatives	 during	
the design process in ensuring that the project is a success. 

The other project entails the development and manufacturing 
of a New Generation Infantry Vehicle for the SANDF. The 
contracting is in two phases: Phase 1 is the contracting 
phase which is focused on the design and development 
of the products systems (variants), and Phase 2 is the 
industrialization	and	production	of	 the	variants	developed	
in Phase 1, as well as the development and manufacturing 
of five additional variants.

With	 the	 involvement	 of	Quality,	 the	 Product	 Baseline	 for	
the common platform was achieved and accepted by the 
Integrated Project Team.

4.1.4  UAV - SEEKER 400

Good progress was made during the year under review. The 
flight testing campaign has commenced and positive results 
have been obtained thus far. The video communication line 
from the payload performed well and the improved video 
quality is a significant advantage to the system.

System	 optimization	 is	 currently	 underway	 and	 system	
Armscor	Quality	final	acceptance	is	planned	for	the	second	
half of 2015.

4.1.5   NEW GENERATION SHORT RANGE 
AIR TO AIR MISSILE

The project successfully achieved several critical milestones 
during	 the	 past	 reporting	 period	 where	 Armscor	 Quality	
Representatives were involved. Successful missile firing from 
Gripen aircraft was achieved. This confirms that the missile 
integration with the Gripen aircraft was successful.

Subsystem critical design reviews are planned for 2015/16 
financial year, with product baseline to be achieved by 
mid-2016. Most of the subsystems were already verified at 
Critical Design Review level and have actually passed formal 
qualification testing. 

4.1.6  EXTERNAL CLIENT SURVEY

External client surveys are conducted once every two years. 
The last exercise based on the 2012/2013 financial year 
was completed in May 2014. The overall perception 
measurement results indicated that the quality of services 
rendered by Armscor in relation to all measured subjects 
was at 81,3% which is 6,3% above the set target of 75%.

4.1.7  THIRD-PARTY QUALITY ASSURANCE

Third-party quality assurance service was provided to two 
clients, i.e:

•	 	SAPS	with	regard	to	body	armour	manufactured	by	
various suppliers, and PSS for the police air wing.

•	 	The	Netherlands	MOD	with	regard	to	mortar	bombs	
developed and manufactured by Rheinmetall in 
South Africa.
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4.1.8  CERTIFICATION

Armscor has successfully designed and implemented the 
necessary policies and procedures for the definition of 
requirements of structures, documentation and operational 
controls of ISO Management Systems across the 
organisation, in an effort to drive sustainable business 
operations and development.

A number of requirements, as per the ISO standards, were 
incorporated	 into	 the	SHE	management	 system	and	were	
also aligned with the applicable legal requirements.  Armscor 
has also equipped and trained all relevant employees in ISO 
Management Systems responsibilities and tasks, to enable 
them to successfully maintain the required systems. Armscor 
is endeavouring to have all its sites certified against ISO 
14001	 and	OHSAS	 18001.	 The	 ISO	 certification	 plan	
has been developed and will be executed accordingly.

4.1.9   COMPLIANCE PROGRESS: SAFETY 
HEALTH AND ENVIRONMENT (SHE)

Armscor has undergone a number of comprehensive internal 
and external safety, health and environmental legal compliance 
assessments and audits by governmental institutions as well 
as independent legal and certification bodies. 

The organisation has developed adequate corrective action 
plans and has successfully closed out many of the non-
compliances. Where significant risks were highlighted and 
recorded, corrective action plans have been developed to 
mitigate accordingly. This has also led to the development 
of	 a	 Corporate	 SHE	 Risk	 Register	 which	 is	 continuously	
monitored and reviewed with all relevant parties.

4.1.10  HIGHLIGHTS/CHALLENGES

There were no significant or major safety, health or environmental 
incidents or accidents in the 2014/2015 financial year. The 
overall compliance percentage increased to 92%. 

Third party certification was awarded against ISO 14001 
and	OHSAS	18001	at	one	of	our		sites.	This	process	will	
be conducted across Armscor.

SHE	 supplier	 capability	 assessments	 continued	 to	 be	 a	
challenge, as there are few mechanisms to assess and 

evaluate	the	SHE	risk	of	our	suppliers.	The	use	of	external	
service providers to execute conformity assessments and 
issue a certificate of such conformity is being pursued.

SHE	skills	development	remains	a	focal	point	and	training	
has been conducted across the organisation, thus increasing 
awareness and knowledge and effecting change at 
operational levels.

4.2 CORPORATE COMPLIANCE 

Armscor’s corporate compliance function is designed to 
provide an effective and efficient in-house compliance 
solution. Armscor adopts a posture that promotes a 
culture of compliance throughout the Corporation. Good 
corporate governance is key to Armscor, which operates 
in a regulatory environment. 

During the reporting period, a tremendous improvement was 
achieved with regard to the  establishment of a compliance 
regulatory universe. The universe indicates the current 
legislations that Armscor is required to adhere to, as well 
as the current status of compliance. The regulatory universe 
serves as a platform for developing a compliance programme 
that will ensure maximum compliance within the Corporation. 

The corporate risk register was reviewed and finalised in 
the reporting period. All departments have adopted risk 
mitigating action plans and are focused on mitigating the 
risks identified. Satisfactory progress was registered in the 
last quarter of the reporting period. 

To strengthen the implementation of compliance and risk 
management, the following policies were approved by the 
Board of Directors during the reporting period:

•	 Compliance	and	Risk	Policy

•	 Fraud	Risk	Management	Policy

The Compliance and Risk Policy clearly outlines the roles 
and responsibilities of compliance and risk as set out in the 
King	III	Report.	The	Fraud	Risk	Management	Policy	promotes	
a	zero	tolerance	approach	to	fraud	and	corruption.	Armscor	
rolled out an active fraud awareness campaign in November 
2014, through which employees were urged to make an 
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effort to understand and be aware of the acts or omissions 
that constitute corruption or fraud, and to take responsibility 
for combating these activities in the workplace.

4.2.1 LEGAL SERVICES

Litigation

Arms Procurement Commission (known as the Seriti 
Commission)

The Government of the Republic of South Africa appointed, 
in terms of section 84(2)(f) of the Constitution of the Republic 
of South Africa 1996, a Commission to investigate any 
improprieties or irregularities relating to the acquisition 
of armaments under the Strategic Defence Procurement 
Packages. The Commission is referred to as the “Arms 
Procurement Commission”. 

As mentioned in the previous report, Armscor featured 
prominently in phase 1 of the Commission, testifying on the 
procurement process. Eleven Armscor employees and ex-
employees testified and Armscor concluded its testimony.
It is anticipated that the Commission will conclude its work 
by end July 2015.

Beverly Securities

Armscor is defending a claim from Beverly Securities 
in the Civil Court of Lisbon for the alleged non-payment 
of commission in respect of the acquisition of the Oryx 
helicopters of the SAAF during the late nineteen-eighties. 
The value of the claim is approximately 192 million Euros. 
The summons was received in 2008 already. The matter 
was dismissed by the Court on lack of jurisdiction by the 
Portuguese Courts. The matter was appealed, and the 
Court of Appeal found in favour of the plaintiff. Armscor 
then also appealed the ruling. The Court of Appeal again 
found in favour of the plaintiff and ruled that the Portuguese 
Courts will have jurisdiction to hear the matter.

The matter has been referred back to the court of first 
instance. The Commission to preserve evidence took place 
in South Africa in March 2015, as ordered by the court. 
This was completed successfully and will mitigate the risk 
of losing important evidence due to old age of witnesses. 

New Generation Arms Management (Pty) Ltd 
(NGAM)

NGAM executed an order placed by Armscor. The statutory 
duties were, however, not paid over to SARS in terms of the 
provisions of the order, although Armscor had already paid 
the amount to NGAM. Armscor received a letter of demand 
from SARS to pay the outstanding amount with SARS, and 
was also informed that a substantial penalty would be 
levied in the event that the amount was not paid. Armscor 
paid the amount outstanding and instituted legal action 
against NGAM to recover the amount of approximately 
R6,1 million. A Summons was issued against NGAM at the 
Northern	Gauteng	High	Court.	Armscor	obtained	an	order	
against NGAM.
  
4.2.2   BROAD BASED BLACK ECONOMIC 

EMPOWERMENT (BBBEE)

Application of PPPFA

Armscor commenced implementing the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA) and its Regulations 
in December 2012 after the expiry of the Exemption Notice 
issued by the Minister of Finance on 7 December 2011, 
which had exempted all public entities listed in Schedules 2 
and 3 of the Public Finance Management Act 1999 for a 
period of one year.

PPPFA continues to pose a challenge for Armscor as an 
acquisition agent of the Department of Defence and Military 
Veterans. The Armscor Board of Directors considered and 
resolved to apply for partial exemption from application of 
the PPPFA, in order to put Armscor in a position to effectively 
facilitate transformation of the Defence Industry. The 
application is currently going through the required process 
for consideration and approval.

Verification of Armscor’s BBBEE status

Armscor registered a remarkable improvement in the area 
of BBBEE transformation; Armscor’s BBBEE status has moved 
from Level 3 to Level 2, with a significant improvement on 
skills development.  
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BBBEE Policy

The Board adopted a revised BBBEE policy at the beginning 
of December 2014 to ensure the implementation of the 
BBBEE Amendment Act and the revised Codes of Good 
Practice. This will inevitably strengthen and enhance BBBEE 
transformation in the Corporation, as well as in the Defence 
Industry. The revised policy creates a platform for the 
integration of BBBEE principles in the business processes. 

PROCUREMENT SPEND BBBEE SPEND
BBBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND ON 

RECOGNITION LEVELS% 
TARGET%

  R6 843 313 067.93 R7 163 300 966.12 104.68% 50%

ENTERPRISE CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT PAID BBBEE SPEND BBBEE%

Above R35m turnover R3 828 833 981.03 R3 890 252 516.50 56.85%

QSEs R375 146 079.4    R457 380 056.97 6.68%

EMEs     R34 739 378.31     R38 933 837.16 0.57%

Specialised above R35m R2 465 169 639.81 R2 776 734 555.49 40.58%

Non-Compliant R139 423 989.37

BOE >50% R297 361 726.88 R270 487 134.84 3.95%

BWOE >30% R197 158 616.31 R129 061 293.77 1.89%

BWOE >25% R2 683 093 829.19 R1 134 634 738.25 16.58%

FOREIGN R879 590 404.84

BEE Spending Report

ACQUISITION
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OPERATING BUDGET

DOCKYARD 

PROCUREMENT SPEND BBBEE SPEND
BBBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND ON 

RECOGNITION LEVELS% 
TARGET%

     R45 999 102.54    R44 483 432.63              96.71%                       80.00%

PROCUREMENT SPEND BBBEE SPEND
BBBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND ON 

RECOGNITION LEVELS% 
TARGET%

R64 313 282.49  R63 236 856.94  98.33%% 65%

ENTERPRISE CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT PAID BBBEE SPEND BBBEE% TARGET % TARGET ACHIEVED

Above R35m turnover R17 569 378.03  R20 005 549.19  43.49% - No taRget set

QSEs R9 835 302.74  R13 109 961.85  28.50% 20% taRget achieved

EMEs R8 517 530.63  R9 550 204.00  20.76% 20% taRget achieved

Specialised above R35m R1 633 903.45  R1 817 717.59  3.95% - No taRget set

Non-Compliant R3 487 182.58 0 -

BOE >50% R17 563 282.65  R16 105 851.03  35.01% 25% taRget achieved

BWOE >30% R9 804 838.72  R7 628 513.06  16.58% 25% taRget Not achieved

BWOE >25%  R31 913 268.42  R  20 489 527.08  44.54% - No taRget set

UNkNOWN    R4 955 805.11  0 0

ENTERPRISE CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT PAID BBBEE SPEND BBBEE% TARGET % TARGET ACHIEVED

Above R35m turnover          R5 842 20.24  R5 541 491.15  8.62%
-

No taRget set

QSEs R35 834 386.20  R47 681 220.32 74.14% 20% taRget achieved

EMEs R8 185 501.55  R9 491 788.06  14.76% 15% taRget Not achieved

Specialised above R35m R469 534.76  R522 357.42  0.81% - No taRget set

Non-Compliant R13 788 985.62 0 -

BOE >50% R40 418 678.06 R36 399 590.97  56.60% 15% taRget achieved

BWOE >30% R35 630 794.37   R28 741 771.81  44.69% 15% taRget achieved

BWOE >25% R44 541 880.45  R37 914 086.94  58.95% - No taRget set

UNkNOWN R192 354.12 -
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4.2.3  CONVENTIONAL ARMS CONTROL

During this reporting period, Armscor successfully 
established an Arms Control and Tracking IT system, which 
provides a centralised data management with capacity to 
track all National Conventional Arms Control Committee 
and Non Proliferation Council issued permits and movement 
of controlled items. 

4.2.4  SECURITY SERVICES

The Armscor building underwent a security integrity 
assessment conducted by Defence Intelligence in the 
second half of the financial year under review and their 
report confirmed that the physical security of the Armscor 
building meets requirements.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT 

Note: Actual spending based on BBBEE recognition levels up to 135%.

PROCUREMENT SPEND BBBEE SPEND
BBBEE PROCUREMENT SPEND ON 

RECOGNITION LEVELS% 
TARGET%

R156 642 848.86 R148 282 189.16 94.66% 65%

ENTERPRISE CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT PAID BBBEE SPEND BBBEE% TARGET % TARGET ACHIEVED

Above R35m turnover R40 500 597.66 R35 751 455.65 22.82% - NO TARGET SET

QSEs R18 366 566.02 R22 986 617.34 14.67% 15% TARGET NOT ACHIEVED

EMEs R27 072 033.43 R27 774 418.03 17.73% 15% TARGET ACHIEVED

Specialised above R35m R49 849 527.48 R58 076 567.47 37.08% - NO TARGET SET

Non-Compliant R16 804 939.48 0 -

BOE >50% R19 804 546.66 R20 908 835.96 13.35% 15% TARGET NOT ACHIEVED

BWOE >30% R5 305 469.58 R4 273 797.42 2.73% 15% TARGET NOT ACHIEVED

BWOE >25% R42 999 945.38 R29 228 919.92 18.66% - NO TARGET SET

FOREIGN SUPPLIERS R570 655.69
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STAFF PROFILE AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

ARMSCOR, R&D AND DOCkyARD

 LEVEL AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

BB LEVEL M F M F M F M F M F

EX 4 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 6 2 8

SU 18 12 2 0 2 1 23 2 45 15 60

MP 89 46 21 3 20 3 193 33 323 85 408

STS 78 89 38 13 7 9 41 74 164 185 349

AS 93 113 173 25 0 5 35 24 301 167 468

OS 50 34 50 8 1 0 1 0 102 42 144

TOTAL 332 296 284 49 31 18 294 133 941 496 1437

STAFF PROFILE AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

ARMSCOR AND R&D ONLy

 LEVEL AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE TOTAL
GRAND TOTAL

BB LEVEL M F M F M F M F M F

EX 4 2 0 0 1 0 1 0 6 2 8

SU 18 10 2 0 2 1 21 2 43 13 56

MP 84 44 16 3 20 3 191 33 311 83 394

STS 75 88 14 11 7 9 30 73 126 181 307

AS 64 94 20 17 0 4 4 21 88 136 224

OS 38 29 4 2 0 0 0 0 42 31 73

TOTAL 283 267 56 33 30 17 247 129 616 446 1062

4.3  HUMAN RESOURCES

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The	 Human	 Resources	 function	 continues	 to	 provide	 a	
comprehensive human resource capacity to enhance the 
effectiveness of the organisation through its people, by 
ensuring that competent and high-performing employees, 
who live the organisation’s values, are attracted and 
retained, so as to ensure that the organisation’s mandate is 
fulfilled whilst offering rewarding careers.

To this end, a number of initiatives aimed at addressing the 
critical human capital challenges were identified and plans  
were put in place. 

Satisfactory progress has been recorded in a number 
of areas that seek to address strategic human capital 
imperatives.

The necessary appropriate measures have been agreed 
on and are currently being implemented in line with 
organisational objectives and obligations, in order to 
ensure that the entity remains competitive in the labour 
market environment.

4.3.1  STAFF COMPOSITION

The staff profile of Armscor, including Armscor Dockyard, as 
at 31 March 2015 per broad band, race and gender, is 
indicated below.
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4.3.2 EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

The Executive Committee approved the Armscor successive 
Employment Equity Plan for implementation. The plan seeks 
to address gaps identified during workforce analysis. The 
gaps are identified at the top three occupational levels, with 
exception of Top Management level, also with women at 
Management level and people with disabilities. Armscor is 
committed to building a workforce that is fully representative 
of the demographics of South Africa, that is free from all forms 
of unfair discrimination and where diversity is a key strength 
towards performance excellence and productivity. 

Therefore, in order to ensure a fair and transparent 
implementation process, a representative consultative forum 
monitors the implementation of the plan. Transfer of skills 
has emerged to be a key issue in the implementation of the 
plan, and an action plan is in place to ensure that there is 
smooth replacement of human resources. 

Workforce Profile Progress 2014/2015

The year 2014/15 was the first year of the term of the 
Employment Equity Plan and the following targets were 
achieved. 

•	 	The	 target	was	 set	 to	 increase	 	black	employees	
from 1 011 (68%) to 1 142 (71%):  1 065 (71%) 
black employees were employed; 

•	 The	target	set	to	appoint	females	was	surpassed.	

Continuous progress is being made towards transforming 
the workforce profile, as was demonstrated by achievement 
of target. In order to remain focused on maintaining the 
required transformation, affirmative action measures are 
being implemented, monitored and continually measured 
against the action plans in place. 

MALE

Occupational Levels
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 4 3 0 1 1 0 1 1

Senior management 19 21 3 3 2 3 23 23

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialist and 
middle management level

88 98 32 27 20 20 201 201

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, and 
superintendents

109 119 160 160 7 8 73 73

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision-making 78 88 88 99 1 2 10 10

Unskilled and defined decision-making 44 41 12 11 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 342 370 295 301 31 33 308 308

Table EE1
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4.3.3  EMPLOYEE SATISFACTION SURVEY

The purpose of an employee satisfaction survey is to 
determine employees’ satisfaction/ dissatisfaction with the 
measured dimensions. 

The first employee satisfaction survey was conducted by 
an external service provider in 2010.  Since then, three 
in-house Employee Satisfaction Surveys were conducted, 
in 2012, 2013 and 2015 respectively.  In 2014, the 
Armscor Board of Directors commissioned another Employee 

Satisfaction Survey to be conducted by an external provider. 
The outcome of the 2015 Survey showed that the average 
satisfaction amongst employees improved from 61,87% in 
2010 to 67,69% in 2015.

The following principal action plans have been implemented:

•	 	Management	and	Leadership	Development	
Programmes;

•	 	Review	of	the	Succession	Planning	and	the	
Performance Management Practices.

PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Occupational Levels
MALE FEMALE

Current Target Current Target

Top management 0 0 0 0

Senior management 1 1 0 0

Professionally qualified and experienced specialist and mid- management level 5 4 1 2

Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, 
foremen, and superintendents 3 3 5 5

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision- making 1 4 1 1

Unskilled and defined decision-making 1 0 0 0

TOTAL 11 12 7 8

Table EE3

FEMALE

Occupational Levels
AFRICAN COLOURED INDIAN WHITE

Current Target Current Target Current Target Current Target

Top management 2 2 0 1 0 0 0 1

Senior management 12 16 0 3 1 1 2 3

Professionally qualified and 
experienced specialist and 
middle management level

46 63 4 10 3 5 34 33

Skilled technical and academically 
qualified workers, junior management, 
supervisors, foremen, and 
superintendents

114 116 16 33 12 10 80 79

Semi-skilled and discretionary 
decision-making 119 108 29 32 4 5 21 25

Unskilled and defined decision-making 33 30 2 3 0 0 0 1

TOTAL 326 335 51 82 20 21 137 142

Table EE2
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4.3.4  SUCCESSION PLANNING

Succession planning  is a key component of human 
resources supply in order to ensure that, whilst taking 
cognisance  of  the  Corporate  Employment  Equity  Plan  
and  Targets,  a  pool  of managers  and  specialists  is  
identified,  developed  and  preserved  with  the  required 
values,  knowledge,  skills,  adaptability  and  capabilities  
to  deal  effectively  with  the strategic management and 
technology demands of the future.

Steps in succession planning

The steps in the succession planning process are structured to:

•	 Identify	and	agree	on	key	positions;

•	 	Identify	 and	 agree	 on	 possible	 successors	 for	 the	
identified positions;

•	 	Develop	 	 identified	 	 successors	 	 in	 	 terms	 	of	 	 the		
competencies  required  in  the succession position.

Progress in 2014/2015

For the 2014/2015 financial year, Armscor identified the 
following number of key positions and successors:

In terms of the readiness of the identified successors, 13% of 
the successors are ready now whereas 33% will be ready 
within the next 2-3 years.

Leadership skills was identified as one of the critical 
corporate requirement for the development of successors.  
In support of the development of leadership skills, Armscor 
partnered with leading business schools in South Africa.   The 
Leadership development pipeline provides an opportunity 
for the development of the management and leadership 
skills for new managers, middle management, as well as 
senior management.

4.3.5  SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

Armscor has continued, with actions, to retain, procure and 
develop the skills of employees to achieve the strategic 
and business objectives. For this reason, skills development 
remained an important focus area. A number of initiatives 
are implemented continuously in this area.

Armscor Management and Leadership Programmes

The development of management and leadership 
competence continues to be a priority in order to drive the 
strategic development activities in Armscor.

Programmes that include Executive Development 
Programme (EDP), Senior Management Development 
Programme, Management Advanced Programme (MAP), 
Management Development Programme (MDP) and New 
Managers Programme (NMP) are currently taking place 
with recognised business schools in South Africa that have 
partnerships with Armscor.

Twenty-one managers are attending programmes at Wits 
and six managers are attending programmes	at	UNISA.

International Training Programmes

Armscor prioritised areas of skills shortage and identified 
technologies that are not available in South Africa.  With 
this information in mind, Armscor set out to establish 
partnerships with foreign countries and universities abroad.  

In December 2014, the first three Armscor employees left 
for	the	Naval	Post	Graduate	School	in	Monterey,	USA,	to	
commence studies.  They were followed by another group 
of three Armscor employees in March 2015.  The studies of 
one	of	these	candidates	is	being	funded	by	the	US	Embassy.

These Armscor employees are pursuing studies in the 
following fields:

o Naval/Mechanical Engineering

o Electronic Systems Engineering

o Combat Systems

o Cyber Security 

Adult Education and Training Programmes (AET)

Adult Education and Training (AET) is a training intervention 
strategy that intends to enhance the ability, knowledge, skills 
and potential of all employees who historically did not receive 
adequate basic education. This training is a beneficial, 
purposeful action that aims to improve aggregate levels of 
skills	 in	 the	 workplace	 in	 order	 to	 maximize	 appropriate	
career pathing and self-development opportunities. 

NUMBER OF kEy POSITIONS NUMBER OF SUCCESSORS

153 174
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This intervention bore the following progress in the year 
under review:

•	 	16	employees	were	registered	on	the	different	AET	
levels;

•	 	42	employees	were	pre-assessed	 for	placement	at	
various AET levels;

•	 	24	employees	were	registered	for	Matric	(grade	12)	
and are to write exams in June/July 2015.

Talent Development Programme (TDP)

The Talent Development Programme is one of Armscor’s 
strategies for capacity development and remaining impactful 
as a contributor to developing skills in our country.

The programme is aimed at ensuring that graduates are 
developed, equipped and become readily available for 
future roles in the organisation. Candidates are carefully 
selected and trained for a period of two years.

The programme is in line with the training requirements of the 
Engineering Council of South Africa (ECSA), and candidates 
are required to register in the various categories as soon as 
they are appointed to the programme. The success of this 
programme is inevitable, with the number of candidates 
totalling 20 this year, excluding 4 candidates based at the 
Dockyard in Simon’s Town.

The gender composition aims to reflect that Armscor is an 
employer of choice by ensuring that transformation is realised 
at all levels to address the gender and racial imbalance in 
the organisation.

The Armscor Women Engineer/Technical Development 
Programme runs simultaneously with the Talent Development 
Programme. This programme is intended for female graduates 
and	was	established	in	line	with	the	Human	Capital	Strategy	
in response to the organisational objectives. 

The established partnership with our suppliers in driving 
learning and development initiatives provides the opportunity 
to be placed at various sites and workplaces of suppliers 
such as Denel Dynamics, Denel Land Systems, Eurocopter 
and Rheinmetall Denel Munitions for additional training. 

Bursaries

The Armscor Bursary Scheme is another significant initiative 
for capacity building where talent is developed for critical 
and scarce skills. To this end, Armscor is currently providing 
a total of 25 bursaries to undergraduates at various 

Universities	across	South	Africa	and	an	additional	27	that	
Armscor is managing with the DOD bringing the total to 52.

Universities visited by Armscor for sourcing of 
bursary students

Armscor actively participates in addressing the shortage 
of skills and scare skills in the organisation, as well as in 
promoting career opportunities in Armscor and the defence 
industry for young South Africans. Armscor visits universities 
to position the company as an “Employer of Choice”. The 
optimal way of accomplishing this is to participate in Open 
Days, Career Fairs and Expos of the identified universities.

In the period under review, Armscor visited universities and 
expos in the following provinces:

•	 	Gauteng	 (University	of	 Pretoria,	 Tshwane	University	
of	Technology,	University	of	Johannesburg	and	Wits	
University)

•	 KwaZulu-Natal	(University	of	KwaZulu-Natal)
•	 	Western	Cape	(University	of	Cape	Town	and	Rhodes	

University)	
•	 Limpopo	(University	of	Limpopo)
•	 	Eastern	 Cape	 (Nelson	 Mandela	 Metropolitan	

University)
•	 Free	State	(Central	University	of	Technology)

4.3.6  DOCKYARD

SA Navy Training

The Dockyard is required to provide technical training support 
to the SA NAVY (SAN). The Training Centre provided practical 
technical training to 31 SA NAVY Electrical Engineering 
students and two Mechanical Engineering students. These 
students were provided with practical in-service training as 
well as on-the-job training to complete the Practical 1 and 
Practical	 2	 modules	 as	 per	 the	 University	 of	 Technology’s	
curriculum and requirements and pre-requisite to qualify for a 
National Diploma in their respective fields.   These modules 
include soldering, basic welding, PLC, use of test equipment, 
light and heavy current, wiring, electrical installation and 
practical workplace experience.

Dockyard is mandated to provide practical workplace 
experience to SA Navy apprentices as and when required. 
In fulfilling this responsibility, the construction section (Technical 
Training Centre) enrolled seven Shipwright Apprentices to 
complete on-the-job training in the heavy plate workshop.  Some 
of the practical modules completed include structural plating and 
framing, structural fittings, and non-destructive testing.
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Two Navy Electrician students were placed in the main 
electrical workshop, in preparation for trade testing for 
Recognition for Prior Learning. 

In total, 40 SA Navy students received practical workplace 
experience in the following disciplines: 

•	 Electrical	
•	 Mechanical
•	 Construction

Artisan Training Programme

The Department of Economic Development and Tourism 
(DEDAT) currently has 19 DEDAT apprentices in the Dockyard 
system. The learners commenced with training in December 
2013 and are scheduled to complete the apprenticeship 
programme in June 2015. 

An	MOU	is	in	place	between	Armscor	and	DEDAT	to	place	
50 Apprentices at Armscor for workplace experience on 
the Accelerated Artisan programme. Another group of 31 
learners are scheduled to start training in June 2015.

Qualified Apprentices 

Armscor placed a total of 35 apprentices in June and July 
2013. In July and August 2014, Armscor exited 10ten 
of the apprentices for 2009: 9 qualified as Mechanical 
Fitters and one as Fitter and Turner.  Two of the qualified 
apprentices were employed in the Weapons section as 
Armament Fitters.

Apprentices Trade Test Applications

Thirteen Apprentices have applied for trade testing in  
various trades and will be tested in the coming financial 
year.

Accreditation of the Technical Training Centre 

In November 2014, the Technical Training Centre was 
awarded with a workplace accreditation status by MERSETA. 
The approval was granted for the following trades: 

•	 Millwright
•	 Pipe	Fitter
•	 Boilermaker
•	 Ship	Builder
•	 Spray	Painter
•	 Refrigeration	Mechanician

Talent Development Pool 

As recourse to address the current challenge of attracting 
and retaining qualified personnel, Dockyard employed 
two graduates for the TDP programme in the Finance and 
Engineering services divisions. 

Adult Education and Training (AET)

The first step towards ensuring that employees are able to 
adapt to change and to add value within the workplace is 
to equip them with basic education, including basic reading 
and writing skills. Forty-two employees were pre-assessed 
on their literacy in Communication and Numeracy skills. The 
learners will be placed at various AET levels 1 to 4. 

Recognition for Prior Learning (RPL)

Dockyard also implemented the RPL process in order to 
promote adult learning approaches. Eight employees are 
undergoing the RPL process to qualify as Artisans in various 
trades. 

4.4  INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The government of South Africa requires that all government 
departments	and	public	enterprises	institutionalize	Corporate	
Governance and Governance of ICT as an integral part 
of the good corporate governance of the department/
public enterprise. In order to comply with this requirement, 
Armscor developed and adopted the ICT Governance 
Charter that is in line with the Government Corporate 
Governance of Information and Communication Technology 
Policy Framework (CGICTPF). The Board of Directors also 
approved the Corporate ICT Policy for implementation.

In order to support Armscor to effectively meet the requirements 
of the National Conventional Arms Compliance Commission 
(NCACC), the IT department successfully implemented the 
Arms Control and Tracking System (ACATS) across the 
Corporation and it is now fully operational. 

Furthermore, Armscor IT has started developing a system for 
the Defence Matériel Disposal (DMD) division. This system 
will assist to track all equipment received from the DOD 
that has to be disposed of. The system is planned to be 
implemented in the new financial year.

The Executive Committee approved the interdepartmental 
strategies	 for	 Knowledge	 Management	 and	 Enterprise	
Architecture.	 Implementation	 of	 the	 Knowledge	
Management Strategy will facilitate the effective protection 
of Armscor’s intellectual capital and the building and 
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maintenance of corporate memory. In implementing the 
Enterprise Architecture Strategy, Armscor will not only 
meet the government requirements of aligning with the 
Government Wide Enterprise Architecture (GWEA) Policy 
Framework, but will also improve return on IT investments 
by closely aligning IT initiatives more with business needs. 

Cybersecurity has become very crucial globally, and as 
such, it is imperative for Armscor to be able to effectively 
protect the state’s information assets. As part of improving 
cybersecurity, Armscor embarked on a number of initiatives 
such as enhancement of personnel training in cybersecurity, 
improving network access control and monitoring, and 
further	 implementation	 across	 the	 organization	 of	 fax	 to	
email facilities for traceability. New initiatives have been 
identified and planned for the new financial year for 
continuous improvement of cybersecurity.

4.5   MARKETING AND BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT

The Marketing and Business Development function is primarily 
responsible for marketing the corporation, its products 
and services through integrated marketing communication 
channels in an endeavour to build and enhance the Armscor 
brand and image in the eyes of stakeholders. Its services 
further include providing marketing support to the South 
African Defence Industry (SADI), as well as managing 
communication to both internal and external stakeholders.

4.5.1  DEFENCE INDUSTRY SUPPORT

Armscor provides an integrated defence industry support to 
SADI. The support includes facilitation of the South African 
defence industry’s participation at local and international 
defence exhibitions for marketing exposure in the defence 
and aerospace environment, foreign liaison services, as 
well as the management of requests for the utilisation of 
South African National Defence Force (SANDF) equipment, 
personnel and facilities for marketing the defence industry’s 
products and services. 

Defence Equipment and Personnel Support (DEPS)

Armscor facilitates, administers and manages the use of SANDF 
equipment, matériel, facilities and personnel by SADI in order 
to support the local defence industry in marketing its capabilities 
to local and international strategic clients. During the year under 
review, 39 marketing and material aid requests pertaining to 
vehicle tests, demonstrations, pilot training support, equipment 
and foreign delegation visits to SANDF facilities were processed, 
compared to 48 in the previous year. Through these activities, 
Armscor generated R15,5m for the DOD, compared to R2,7m 
in the 2013/14 financial year. The amount generated depends 

on the type of asset loaned, as well as on the loan period.

Defence International Relations

Armscor continues to provide an industrial ambassadorship 
service to the South African Defence Industry (SADI) by creating 
awareness of SADI’s and Armscor’s capabilities amongst both 
inbound and outbound military attachés, foreign defence 
industry representatives and diplomats, as well as foreign 
defence dignitaries, in order to build, maintain and strengthen 
strategic relations with other countries.

The strong ties Armscor has with the representatives of foreign 
countries have resulted in the organisation referring business 
opportunities to SADI for quotation to relevant countries. In the 
year under review 32 leads were referred to the industry from 
six countries.  Interest included  systems maintenance and spare 
parts, battery storage for thermal night vision, observing and 
aiming devices, demolition tools, search and rescue equipment, 
ammunition, electric warfare equipment.

Defence Exhibitions and Events

Exhibitions and events continue to be seen as one of the 
most effective marketing tools in providing support to 
the SADI to showcase its capabilities to both local and 
international markets.

An annual survey to determine the local defence industry’s 
interest to participate at international marketing events 
was used to co-ordinate Armscor’s support to SADI at the 
following international defence exhibitions:

•	  dsA 2014	in	Kuala	Lumpur,	Malaysia	on	 
14–17 April 2014

•	  sOFEx 2014 in Amman, Jordan on  
6–8 May 2014

•	 	EuROsATORy 2014 in Paris, France on  
16–20 June 2014

•	  Land Forces East Africa 2014 in Dar es Salaam, 
Tanzania	on	14–16 July 2014

•	  milipol Qatar 2014	in	Doha,	Qatar	on	 
20–22 October 2014

•	  INdOdEFENCE 2014 in Jakarta, Indonesia on 
5–8 November 2014

•	  IdEAs 2014	in	Karachi,	Pakistan	on	 
1–4 December 2014

•	  IdEx 2015	in	Abu	Dhabi,	UAE	on	 
22–26 February 2015
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Owing to the number of identified exhibition events in the 
financial year, the number of SADI companies participating at 
these events has grown year on year. The year under review 
has seen a 13% increase from the previous financial year.

Minister of Defence and Military Veterans leading SA 
delegation at IDEX 2015 Abu Dhabi

SA delegation at DSA 2014 Malaysia

Africa Aerospace and Defence (AAD)

In conjunction with the South African Department of Defence, 
Commercial Aviation Association of Southern Africa (CAASA) 
and the Aerospace, Maritime and Defence Industries 
Association (AMD), Armscor organised the 8th Africa 
Aerospace and Defence expo (AAD2014), which took 
place on 17–21 September 2014 at Waterkloof Air Force 
Base, Pretoria.  AAD has established itself as the premier 
exhibition of air, land and sea technologies on the African 
continent. AAD 2014 took place in the year when South 
Africa celebrated its 20th anniversary of democracy. Judging 
by the number of participants at AAD 2014, the event was 
a	success.	However	more	marketing	efforts	will	however	be	
undertaken to stimulate public interest to attend the event in 
future.

During the AAD 2014, Armscor invited 49 foreign delegates 
from 23 countries. The aim of the invitation was to build 
and enhance strategic relationships, create awareness of 
Armscor’s and SADI’s capabilities, as well as position the 
South African brand, among other intentions.

The summary of the performance of AAD 2014 is provided 
in the table below. 

AAD 2014 saw new countries exhibiting, namely Lithuania, 
Thailand,	 UAE	 and	 Uganda,	 and	 an	 increase	 of	 outdoor	
exhibition space (20%) while the inside exhibition space increased 
by 1,3%. The increase in the outdoor space also accommodated 
the 24% increase in the number of aircraft exhibited (104 aircraft 
in 2014 compared to 84 aircraft in 2012).

As a lead partner of AAD 2016, Armscor is looking forward 
to once again deliver another successful AAD.

Acting CEO exchanging gifts at AAD 2014
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Armscor Stand AAD 2014

Aerial display at AAD 2014

Aspiring pilot in displayed aircraft at AAD 2014

Minister of Defence and Military Veterans with learners 
attending the YDP programme

Public facilities at AAD 2014

Minister of Defence and Military Veterans walkabout at 
AAD 2014
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4.5.2  STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Armscor views the organisation’s long-term wellbeing and 
its stakeholder engagement as mutually inclusive. The 
Corporation recognises that long-term sustainability requires 
continuous engagement with various stakeholders both in 
the defence environment, industry and in wider society. 
Armscor continues to review its business practices and 
impact to better align with stakeholder priorities. Building 
and maintaining relationships with various stakeholders is 
vital to enhancing the brand internally and externally.

For the period under review some of the stakeholder 
engagement initiatives included the following: 

Military Attachés and Advisory Corps (MAAC) 
engagement session

Armscor held its annual MAAC engagement session. 
The event was well attended – there were 40 attachés 
representing 35 countries. The MAAC session forms part of 
Armscor’s Stakeholder Engagement Strategy initiatives and 
endeavours to build and strengthen the relationship between 
Armscor, the MAAC members and other stakeholders.
 

Delegates attending the MAAC engagement session

The objectives are:

•	 	To	promote	Armscor,	 it’s	 capabilities,	products	and	
services.

•	 	To	create	awareness	of	Armscor’s	relationship	with	the	
Department of Defence (DOD) and the South African 
Defence Industry (SADI) and other stakeholders.

•	 	To	create	a	communication	platform	 to	engage	on	
interests, issues and developments relating to Armscor 
and/or SADI as well as developments in respective 
countries.

•	 	To	 re-affirm	 Armscor	 support	 to	 MAAC	 and	 their	
respective countries.

Engineering Day  

The Engineering Day is held for purposes of keeping abreast 
with developments in the technical field, especially in the 
engineering and science domains. Armscor’s participation 
in the event is informed by the organisation’s quest to be a 
leader in the defence engineering environment. The event 
was held at the CSIR Conference Centre on 13 November 
2014. To fulfil this requirement, Armscor collaborated with 
the International Council on Systems Engineering of South 
Africa (INCOSE), which is one of the key stakeholders. 
Various topics in the field of engineering were presented by 
leading experts from academic institutions and the industry.

 

Armscor Engineering day at CSIR Convention Centre

Armscor Engineering day at CSIR Convention Centre
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Top Women Awards
Armscor supports gender equality and transformation 
through initiaves like the Women Engineer and Technical 
Development Programme. 

The Top Women Awards is a collaborative platform 
dedicated to recognising outstanding leadership, inspiration, 
vision and innovation in organisations that have stepped up 
and shaped women’s roles. Armscor sponsored the Science 
and Technology category at the awards, which is not only 
in line with our business but is also in line with some of our 
initiatives to empower women in the sector. 

GM: Marketing and Business Developement handing 
over an award to the category winner.

4.5.3  CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT (CSI)

Armscor operates in a country with historical socio-economic 
imbalances which have an impact on the environment in 
which the organisation operates. As a socially responsible 
organisation Armscor supports educational programmes, 
particularly in the science and mathematics discipline in 
line with Armscor’s long-term sustainability goals. Such 
involvement by Armscor demonstrates the Corporation’s 
standing	as	a	responsive	corporate	citizen.	

Prieska

The final phase of the Prieska uplifment project was completed 
in this financial year. Computer laboratories were set up at 
Empilisweni Drop-in Centre, Prieska Primary School and Prieska 
Combined School. The computer rooms were renovated and 

a total of 40 desktops were installed linked to a network with 
Internet access in each school. All the required software was 
provided, including software for the training of pupils. This 
project is aimed at enhancing the quality of teaching and 
learning at schools around Prieska and supporting vulnerable 
youth in the area by equipping them with computer skills to be 
able to compete in the job market. 

Computer laboratory for the Prieska uplifment project

Prieska uplifment project
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Take a girl child to work campaign

Armscor	hosted	 learners	 from	Makgetse	High	School	on	
29 May 2014 in support of the Cell C take a girl child 
to work campaign. The 2014 theme “Dream, Believe, 
Acheive” aimed to inspire the learners that they have the 
pwoer to lead and succeed in life. Learners were taken 
through various divisions in Armscor to expose them to 
different career opportunities in the organisation. 

Mandela Day

Mandela Day encourages individuals and organisations 
to make a difference in other people’s lives. Armscor 
supports social and economic upliftment programmes 
that are aimed at improving people’s lives and creating 
an inclusive economy. During the year under review, to 
honour Madiba’s legacy, Armscor partnered with the 
Gauteng Department of Education Tshwane West District 
to	make	a	difference	at	Setumo-Khiba	Secondary	School.	
Armscor donated school uniforms to the needy learners 
at the school, and a public address (PA) system which 
will be used by the principals in the district when holding 
workshops and meetings with the community.
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4.6  AB LOGISTICS

4.6.1   FREIGHT FORWARDING AND 
TRAVEL SERVICES

AB Logistics is responsible for providing logistic freight and 
travel services in support in maintaining and rendering a 
comprehensive freight forwarding service to Armscor, 
SANDF, SADI and Foreign Defence Forces. This is in 
support of the supply chain requirements during the import 
and export process, rendering an air, sea, rail and road 
freight distribution network globally to all stakeholders. 

The business unit is a registered and accredited customs 
clearing agent with the South African Revenue Services 
(SARS) and is a member of the International Federation of 
Freight Forwarders (FIATA), the South African Association of 
Freight Forwarders (SAAFF) and Road Freight Association 
(RFA), Regulated Agent (RA3). We maintain our registration 
as	a	 registered	 transporter	of	hazardous	cargo,	weapons	
and ammunition in terms of the explosive Act and Firearms 
Control Act. As an accredited and registered member 
with vast experience in the handling of sensitive cargo 
AB Logistics was once again instrumental in ensuring that 
SANDF joint military exercises with other countries were 
a success, as well as testing of defense equipment by 
international clients at our Alkantpan ballistic range. Further 
support was provided in transporting equipment where 
SANDF was conducting peace-keeping missions. 

AB Logistics Travel is a registered member of the International 
Air Transport Association (IATA) and the Association of South 
African Travel Agents (ASATA). 

During the year under review, the total contribution of AB 
Logistics freight and travel services, amounted to R8 million, 
exceeding projected contribution by 74%.





04 ANNuAL FINANCIAL sTATEmENTs 



70

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

Pictue and table of contents

grOup aNNual 
fiNaNCial

STaTEmENTS

04

Report of the Audit and Risk Committee 71

Report of the Auditor-General 72

Directors’ approval of the Annual Report 75

Directors’ Report 76

Perfomance against Goals 82

Group Four-Year Review 95

Group Value-Added Statement 96

Group Financial Results 97

Statement of Financial Position 98

Statement of Comprehensive Income 99

Statement of Changes in Equity 100

Statement of Cash Flows 101

Accounting Policies 102

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 104

Annexure A 148



71

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

REPORT OF ThE AudIT ANd RIsk 
COmmITTEE
The current Board of Directors took office on 01 May 2014. 
The new Audit and Risk Committee of the Board of Directors 
was subsequently formed. The Committee was therefore 
operational for 11 months of the financial year under review 
and six Committee meetings were held as follows:

1.	 	Four	normal	meetings	in	compliance	with	the	King	III	
requirements

2. One special meeting.

The Committee reports that it has adopted appropriate 
formal terms of reference as its charter which was approved 
by the Board of Directors, and that it has discharged its 
responsibilities as contained therein.

Although the Board of Directors is accountable for the 
process of risk management and systems of internal 
control, these processes are reviewed by the Committee for 
adequacy and effectiveness. 

The Committee has regularly reported to the Board on its 
activities and made recommendations to advice the Board, 
management and Internal Audit as part of execution of its 
responsibilities. 

The Committee is satisfied, based on the information and 
explanations given by management and Internal Audit 
and Auditor - General, that an adequate system of internal 
control is being maintained and it is subject to continuous 
improvement to ensure that:

•	 	Risks	 are	 properly	 managed	 and	 reduced	 to	
acceptable levels; 

•	 Assets	are	safeguarded;	

•	 Financial	and	operational	information	is	reliable;

•	 Operations	are	effective	and	efficient;

•	 	Resources	are	acquired	economically,	used	efficiently	
and adequately protected;

•	 Programmes,	plans	and	objectives	are	achieved;

•	 	Quality	and	continuous	improvements	are	fostered	in	
the organisation’s control process; and

•	 	Significant	legislative	or	regulatory	issues	impacting	
the organisation are recognised and addressed 
appropriately.

The Committee has evaluated the annual financial 
statements  of the of the Armscor group for the year ended 
31 March 2015 and considered that it complies, in all 
material respects, with the requirements of the Public Finance 
Management Act (Act  No 1 of 1999), as amended, as 
well as South African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice.

The Committee has reviewed the results of the external audit 
on the annual financial statements and accordingly concurs 
with the opinion expressed in therein. The Committee has 
also noted the clean audit opinion has been issued by the 
Auditor - General for the year under review, In this regard 
the Committee would like to express its appreciation to 
management and Internal Audit for their commitment to in 
strengthening internal control environment that led to the 
clean audit opinion.

The Committee agrees that the adoption of the going concern 
premise is appropriate in preparing the annual financial 
statements. The Committee has therefore recommended the 
adoption of this annual report to the Board of Directors.

DR M KHANYILE
AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE CHAIRPERSON
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REPORT OF ThE AudITOR-gENERAL 
TO PARLIAmENT ON ARmAmENTs 
CORPORATION OF sOuTh AFRICA sOC LTd

rEPOrT On THE 
COnsOLidaTEd and 
sEParaTE FinanCiaL 
sTaTEmEnTs
Introduction
 
1.  I have audited the consolidated and separate 

financial statements of the Armaments Corporation of 
South Africa SOC Ltd (Armscor) and its subsidiaries 
set out on pages 98 to 147, which comprise the 
consolidated and separate statement of financial 
position as at 31 March 2015, the consolidated 
and separate statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash 
flows, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

The accounting authority’s responsibility 
for the consolidated and separate 
financial statements

2.  The board of directors, which constitutes the 
accounting authority, is responsible for the preparation 
and fair presentation of these consolidated and 
separate financial statements in accordance with 
the Statements of South African Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practice (SA Statements of GAAP) and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management 
Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) 
(PFMA) and Companies Act of South Africa, 2008 
(Act No. 71 of 2008), and for such internal control 
as the accounting authority determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation of consolidated and 
separate financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general’s responsibility

3.  My responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on my audit. I conducted 
my audit in accordance with International Standards 
on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

4.  An audit involves performing procedures to obtain 
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made 
by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements.

5.  I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 

Opinion

6.  In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Armaments Corporation of 
South Africa SOC Ltd and its subsidiaries as at 31 
March 2015, and their financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance 
with SA Statements of GAAP and the requirements of 
the PFMA and the Companies Act of South Africa.
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Emphasis of matter 

7.  I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is 
not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

8.  As disclosed in note 1 to the financial statements, 
the corresponding figures for 31 March 2014 have 
been restated as a result of an error discovered during 
the year ended 31 March 2015 in the consolidated 
financial statements of the Armscor SOC Ltd for the 
year ended 31 March 2014.

Additional matters

9.  I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is 
not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited supplementary information

10.  The supplementary statement: Group four-year review 
and value-added statement set out on pages 95 to 
97 does not form part of the financial statements 
and is presented as additional information. I have 
not audited this schedule and, accordingly, I do not 
express an opinion thereon.

Other reports required by the Companies Act 

11.  As part of our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements for the year ended 31 March 2015, I 
have read the director’s report and the audit committee 
report  for the purpose of identifying whether there 
were material inconsistencies between these reports 
and the audited consolidated financial statements. 
These reports are the responsibility of the respective 
preparers. Based on reading these reports I have not 
identified material inconsistencies between the reports 
and the audited consolidated financial statements.I 
have not audited the reports and, accordingly, do not 
express an opinion on them.

rEPOrT On OTHEr 
LEGaL and rEGuLaTOrY 
rEQuirEmEnTs
12.  In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South 

Africa, 2004 (Act no. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the 

general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a 
responsibility to report on findings on the reported 
performance information against predetermined 
objectives for selected objectives presented in 
the annual performance report, compliance with 
legislation and internal control.  The objective of my 
test was to identify reportable findings as described 
under each subheading but not to gather evidence to 
express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do 
not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined objectives

13.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following selected objectives 
presented in the annual performance report of the 
entity for the year ended 31 March 2015: 

	 •	 	Objective	1:	CAT	1:	Capital	defence	matériel	
acquisition excluding strategic acquisition but 
including technology acquisition (projects), 
included in page 83.

	 •	 	Objective	 2:	 Strategic	 defence	 acquisition.	
(Strategic defence packages, included in 
pages 83).

	 •	 	Objective	3:	System	support:	Acquisition	and	
procurement (operational funds), included in 
page 84.

	 •	 	Objective	 4:	 Schedule	 placement,	 included	
in page 84.

	 •	 	Objective	 5:	 Management	 of	 defence	
industrial participation (DIP), included in page 
85.

	 •	 	Objective	 6:	 Management	 and	 execution	
of defence technology, research, test and 
evaluation requirements of the Department of 
Defence, included in page 85.

	 •	 	Objective	7:	Management	and	performance	
against Dockyard mandate, included in page 
86 to 87.

14.  I evaluated the reported performance information 
against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.

15.  I evaluated the usefulness of the reported 
performance information to determine whether it 
was presented in accordance with the National 
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether 
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the reported performance was consistent with the 
planned objectives. I further performed tests to 
determine whether indicators and targets were well 
defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound 
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s 
Framework for managing programme performance 
information (FMPPI).

16.  I assessed the reliability of the reported performance 
information to determine whether it was valid, 
accurate and complete.

17.  I did not identify any material findings on the 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the following objectives:

	 •	 	Objective	1:	CAT	1:	Capital	defence	matériel	
acquisition excluding strategic acquisition but 
including technology acquisition (projects)

	 •	 	Objective	2:	Strategic	defence	acquisition
	 •	 	Objective	3:	System	support:	Acquisition	and	

procurement
	 •	 	Objective	4:	Schedule	placement
	 •	 	Objective	 5:	 Management	 of	 defence	

industrial participation (DIP)
	 •	 	Objective	 6:	 Management	 and	 execution	

of defence technology, research, test and 
evaluation requirements of the Department of 
Defence

	 •	 	Objective	7:	Management	and	performance	
against Dockyard mandate

Additional matter

18.  Although I identified no material findings on 
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance 
information for the selected objectives, I draw 
attention to the following matter:

Achievement of planned targets

19.  Refer to the annual performance report on pages  82 
to 94 for information on the achievement of planned 
targets for the year. 

Compliance with legislation

20.  I performed procedures to obtain evidence that 
the entity had complied with applicable legislation 

regarding financial matters, financial management 
and other related matters. I did not identify any 
instances of material non-compliance with specific 
matters in key legislation, as set out in the general 
notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Internal control

21.  I considered internal control relevant to my audit 
of the consolidated financial statements of the  
Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd 
(Armscor) and its subsidiaries and compliance with 
laws and regulations. I did not identify any significant 
deficiencies in internal control.

Pretoria
31 July 2015
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dIRECTORs’ APPROvAL OF ThE 
ANNuAL REPORT

CERTIFICATE

The Board recognises and acknowledges its responsibility for the Group’s internal control systems.

Management is responsible for preparing the separate Annual Financial Statements and the Group Annual Financial Statements 
in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practices.

The Directors, supported by the Audit and Risk Committee, are satisfied that management introduced and maintained 
adequate internal controls to ensure that dependable records exist for the preparation of the financial statements, to safeguard 
the assets of the Group and to ensure that all transactions are duly authorised.

Against this background the Directors of Armscor accept responsibility for the financial statements. The information on pages 
76 to 148 was approved by the Board of Directors on 19 August 2015.

Vice admiral (ret) J mudimu

ChairmaN Of ThE bOard Of dirECTOrS

In terms of section 88 (2) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 (as amended), (the Act), it is hereby certified that for the year 
ended 31 March 2015, the Armaments Corporations of South Africa SOC Limited has lodged with the Commissioner all 
required returns and notices in terms of the Act and that all such returns and notices appear to be true, correct and up to date.

adv. b N Senne

COmpaNy SECrETary
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dIRECTORs’ REPORT
INTRODUCTION

This is the Directors Report for the period 2014 – 2015 and 
relates to the performance of the Corporation for the year 
under	review.	However,	it	also	covers	April	2014	although	
the current Board only took office in May 2015. The Board 
is	 therefore	 reliant	 in	 this	 regard	on	 the	Handover	 Report	
submitted to it by the Board that was in office up to and 
including April 2014.

BACKGROUND

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa Limited (“Armscor”) 
is a statutory body, established in terms of the Armaments 
Corporation of South Africa Limited Act (Act No 51 of 
2003), as amended. It is also a State Owned Company as 
contemplated in the Companies Act, 2008. Furthermore, it is 
listed as a schedule 2 Public Entity in terms of the Public Finance 
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999), as amended (PFMA).  It is 
further regulated by the Regulations issued in terms of the PFMA 
and those of the Companies Act, 2008.

This report is therefore presented in terms of the relevant 
provisions of the PFMA and the Companies Act. It provides 
an overview on the performance of Armscor, measured 
against performance targets that the Corporation had set 
itself for the year under review.  

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Armscor’s mandate is contained in the Armscor Act. This 
is briefly to meet the defence materiel requirements of the 
Department of Defence (DOD) effectively, efficiently and 
economically; and the defence technology, research, 
development, analysis, test and evaluation requirements of 
the DOD effectively, efficiently and economically.

The Corporation must adhere to accepted corporate 
governance principles, best business practices and generally 
accepted accounting practices within a framework of 
established norms and standards that reflect fairness, equity, 
transparency, economy, efficiency, accountability and 
lawfulness.

The functions of Armscor are to acquire defence materiel 
for DOD, manage technology projects for DOD, establish 
program management system in support of acquisition 
and technology projects, establish a tender evaluation 
and contract management system with regard to defence 
materiel or if agreed in SLA, for commercial materiel, 
dispose of defence materiel, establish a compliance 
administration system with regard to arms control, support 
and maintain strategic and essential defence industrial 
capabilities, resources and technologies, provide marketing 
support and maintain special capabilities/facilities for 
strategic or security reasons, as required by DOD, even 
if those capabilities/facilities are not commercially viable.

Armscor may, with the approval of the Minister, exploit 
such commercial opportunities as may arise out of the 
Corporation’s duty to acquire defence materiel or to manage 
technology projects; procure commercial materiel on behalf 
of any organ of state at the request of the organ of state  
in question; and subject to the National Conventional Arms 
Control Act, 2002 (Act No. 41 of 2002), the Regulation 
of Foreign Military Assistance Act, 1 998 (Act No. 15 of 
1998), and the Non-Proliferation of Weapons of Mass 
Destruction Act 1993 (Act No. 87 of 1993), perform 
any function which the Corporation may perform for or on 
behalf of the Department in terms of this Act for or on behalf 
sovereign any of State. 

The Minister may impose such conditions in respect of the 
performance of the said functions as may be necessary in 
the national interest.

SHARE CAPITAL

The Government of the Republic of South Africa is the sole 
shareholder of the Corporation. No new shares were issued 
during the year under review.

ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The organisational structure of the Corporation appears on 
page 8 of this report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE EXECUTIVE 
AUTHORITY

The Executive Authority for Armscor is the Minister of 
Defence, who represents the Shareholder. Communication 
with the Executive Authority is channelled primarily through 
the office of the Chairman. In addition, ad hoc meetings 
were held between the Minister and the Board. 

Regular reporting was undertaken in terms of the 
Shareholder’s Compact, and additional ad hoc reports 
were also submitted for consideration by the Minister. The 
Minister met with the directors on a number of occasions to 
deal with pertinent issues affecting Armscor, the Department 
of Defence and the Defence Industry as a whole. She also 
attended and spoke at the Strategy Session of Armscor in 
November 2014.

DIRECTORATE

The Directors of the Corporation and their brief Curricular 
Vita appear on page 9 to 11 of this report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors provide ethical leadership to the 
Corporation and accordingly oversee the management of 
the strategic direction of the Corporation and the application 
of its assets in a fair and transparent manner. 

The Government of the Republic of South Africa, represented 
by the Minister of Defence, is the sole shareholder of the 
Corporation. The shareholder relationship is managed, 
amongst others, through the Armscor Act, the PFMA, the 
Companies Act, 2008, the Shareholder Compact and 
the Corporate Plan. The Shareholder Compact sets out 
the deliverables agreed between the Corporation and the 
Minister of Defence. It is supported by a Corporate Plan, 
which ensures that the Corporation’s targets, measures 
and outputs are clearly articulated to enhance the Board’s 
accountability.

The Corporation services the requirements of the Department 
of Defence or other clients in terms of a Service Level 
Agreement (SLA). The SLA must be based on the shareholder 
Compact, be focused on the functions of the corporation, 
specify measureable objectives and milestones, specify a 
system to monitor the delivery of service, provide for the 
maintenance of the Corporation’s capabilities over the long 
term, provide for the terms and conditions applicable to the 
service to be rendered by the Corporation.

At each meeting, the Members of the Board are required 
to declare any interest they may have in respect of any 
matter to be decided at that meeting. During the year under 
review, no member had interest in any of the matters serving 
before the Board. In preparing documents for submission 
to the Board, Management is required to certify that all 
relevant information has been placed before the Board to 
enable it to make decisions that serve the interests of the 
Corporation.

Members of the Board have unrestricted access to the 
Company Secretary, who is required by law to provide 
them with guidance with regard to the proper discharge of 
their responsibilities.

The Board has various Committees which consider 
submissions from Management on critical issues affecting 
the Corporation. The Committees report on their work at 
each Board meeting.

DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

None of Armscor’s Board members are disqualified from 
serving as directors on any of the grounds contained in 
either the Companies Act, 2008 or in the PFMA and its 
regulations.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEES

Table 1 below shows the meetings of the Board and its Committees and the attendance of meetings during the year under review.

Attendance of Board of Directors and Committee meetings: 2014/2015

NAMES BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS 
MEETINGS

ACQUISITION 
COMMITTEE

HUMAN 
RESOURCES, 

SOCIAL 
& ETHICS 

COMMITTEE

AUDIT & RISK 
COMMITTEE

TECHNOLOGY 
& INDUSTRY 

SUPPORT 
COMMITTEE

Vice Admiral (ret) J Mudimu 7 out of 7 Non-member Non-member Non-member Non-member

Ms T Skweyiya 7 out of 7 Non-member  3 out of 3 Non-member 1 out of 1

Dr MB Khanyile 7 out of 7 Non-member Non-member 5 out of 5 Non-member

Adv. VL de la Hunt 4 out of 7 Non-member 3 out of 3 Non-member 1 out of 1

Adv. S Baloyi 2 out of 7 3 out of 7 Non-member 1 out of 5 Non-member

Mr. NM Tyibilika 7 out of 7 Non-member Non-member 5 out of 5 1 out of 1

Mr. RM Vokwana 6 out of 7 6 out of 7 3 out of 3 Non-member Non-member

Mr. BMF Mobu 5 out of 7 
(Deceased  May 2015) 4 out of 7 Non-member Non-member Non-member

Mr. JS Mkwanazi (Acting CEO) 7 out of 7 7 out of 7 3 out of 3 5 out of 5 1 out of 1

Mr. JG Grobler (CFO) 7 out of 7 7 out of 7 Non-member 5 out of 5 1 out of 1

External member (appointed on 1 May 2015)

NAMES ACQUISITION 
COMMITTEE

Dr RR Mgijima 1 out of 7 - - - -

Dr PP Dyantyi 1 out of 7 - - - -

Mr LW Mosiako 1 out of 7 - - - -

External member (appointed on 1 May 2015)

Mr. L Kuse Non-member Non-member Non-member - Non-member

Company Secretary

Adv. NB Senne 7 out of 7 5 out of 5 3 out of 3 5 out of 5 1 out of 1
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MAJOR INITIATIVES DURING THE 
REPORTING PERIOD

Stability and Stakeholder Relations

On taking office, the first major concern of the Board was 
to ensure that there is stability in the relationships between 
Armscor and its stakeholders. This was important given 
the immediate history of the leadership of Armscor and 
its relationship with its employees, the shareholder, the 
Department of Defence as a whole, other government 
departments, the Association for Maritime and Aerospace 
Industries, suppliers and other stakeholders in the defence 
industry. The Board went on a roadshow to engage all 
relevant stakeholders and to assert its view that through 
mutual cooperation and understanding, much can be 
achieved for the benefit of the country. The Board also 
understood that such engagements would have to be 
sustained over the medium term to ensure that the stability 
required is institutionalised in Armscor’s processes and 
the way it conducts business. The Board is satisfied that 
sufficient progress has been made in the normalisation 
of its stakeholder relations and that this can be improved 
incrementally over time.

Strategy

The Board considered the strategic outlook of Armscor against 
the background of the prevailing stakeholder relationships as 
discussed above and was satisfied that particular focus had 
to be given to the efficiency and effectiveness with which 
Armscor discharged its core mandate being the acquisition 
of defence materiel for the SANDF. The resulting Strategy 
was aptly named On Time in Time to show the urgency 
with which Armscor would deal with the requirements of 
the SANDF going forward. The strategy was concluded 
in November 2015, subject to its confirmation by the 
Minister of Defence and Military Veterans. Further inputs 
would however be received following the appointment of 
the CEO. As will be seen in the latter part of this report, the 
process of appointing the CEO was concluded as a Post 
Balance Sheet Event and it reported as such. The Strategy 
remains a live document that will be reviewed from time 
to	 time.	However,	 it	 is	 the	foundational	basis	of	Armscor’s	
activities going forward and will be used as a benchmark 
for all Armscor’s activities.

Special and extraordinary meetings of the board: 2014/15

NAME SPECIAL 
BOARD 

MEETING

CEO SELECTION 
PROCESS/ 

APPOINTMENT 
OF EXTERNAL 

MEMBER

BOARD 
MEETING WITH 

MINISTER/ 
PORTFOLIO 
COMMIITTEE

BOARD 
STRATEGY 
SESSION

SPECIAL 
TECHNOLOGY 
& INDUSTRY 

SUPPORT 
COMMITTEE

Vice Admiral (ret) J Mudimu 2 out of 2 1 out of 3 5 out of 5 1 out of 1 Non-member

Ms T Skweyiya 1 out of 2 3 out of 3 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1

Dr MB Khanyile 2 out of 2 2 out of 3 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 Non-member

Adv. VL de la Hunt 1 out of 2 3 out of 3 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1

Adv. S Baloyi 0 out of 2 0 out of 3 0 out of 5 1 out of 1 Non-member

Mr. NM Tyibilika 1 out of 2 0 out of 3 3 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1

Mr. RM Vokwana 1 out of 2 2 out of 3 2 out of 5 1 out of 1 Non-member

Mr. BMF Mobu 1 out of 2 0 out of 3 2 out of 5 1 out of 1 Non-member

Mr. JS Mkwanazi (Acting CEO) 2 out of 2 - 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1

Mr. JG Grobler (CFO) 2 out of 2 - 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1

Company Secretary

Adv. NB Senne 2 out of 2 - 4 out of 5 1 out of 1 1 out of 1
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Allied to the On-Time, In-Time approach by the Board, 
is the issue of shortened turnaround times in acquisition, 
which	has	seized	the	Board’s	time	during	the	period	under	
review. The Board believes that where possible and whilst 
remaining within regulatory parameters, acquisitions that 
can be made whilst employing a shortened process should 
indeed be made in that way as not all acquisitions require 
the oft-protracted manner in which Armscor generally 
conducts business. Even the long lead approach that 
Armscor	generally	adopts	given	 the	scope	and	size	of	 its	
acquisitions will be put under constant review to ensure that 
Armscor responds to the requirements of the SANDF in a 
nimble and agile manner.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the year under review, the Board considered 
Armscor’s compliance with laws and regulations against 
the background of the report for the previous year by the 
Auditor-General. In this regard, the Board took the view 
that the requirement for 25% Broad Based Black Economic 
Empowerment needed to be reviewed in line with the Auditor 
General’s findings and recommendations. The requirement 
was accordingly abolished in keeping with the thresholds 
set out in the Preferential Procurement Framework Act. 

Military Veterans

The Board is acutely aware of the role played by Military 
Veterans in the process of democratisation of the country. 
The Board is also aware that Armscor is enjoined by 
legislation to take steps towards the progressive realisation 
of the aspirations and needs of Military Veterans. In the next 
reporting period, a more detailed analysis of Armscor’s role 
and interventions in this area will be reported on.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors are required by the Companies Act 2008 to 
produce financial statements, which fairy represent the state 
of affairs of the Corporation as at the end of the financial year 
and the profit and loss for that financial year, in conformity 
with South African Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
(SA GAAP) and the Companies Act 2008.

The Financial Statements set out in this report have been 

prepared by Management in accordance with SA 
GAAP and the Companies Act 2008 and are based on 
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable 
and prudent judgements and estimates.

The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements 
fairly present the financial position of the Corporation as at 
31 March 2015 the results of their operations and cash 
flows for the year then ended. 

The Board has reviewed the Group’s financial budgets for 
the period 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016 and is satisfied 
that adequate resources exist to sustain the Corporations 
operations. Armscor is, furthermore, in discussion with the 
Department of Defence to ensure proper funding for the 
required functions to be performed. The directors, therefore, 
have no reason to believe that Armscor will not remain a 
going concern in the foreseeable future.        

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were declared or paid to the shareholder 
during the year under review.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

As reflected in this report and financial statements, no 
material facts or significant circumstances which affect 
the financial position of this Corporation or group have 
arisen between the date of the financial position  and the 
production date of this report, save as follows:

a.	 	The	Board	appointed	Mr.	Kevin	Wakeford	as	Chief	
Executive Officer of Armscor on a five (5) year term.

b.  We were saddened by the loss of Mr. Mobu, who 
joined the Board together with us in May 2014. 
He	 was	 a	 keen	 contributor	 to	 the	 Board’s	 work,	
especially his area of expertise, being acquisition. 
He	will	be	sadly	missed.

Furthermore, during the Budget Speech 2015 – 2016, the 
Honourable	Minister	of	Defence	and	Military	Veterans	Ms.	
N. Mapisa – Nqakula announced that the Dockyard with 
be transferred to Denel. The process of giving effect to the 
transfer will be reported on during the next reporting period.
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VACANCIES

The passing on of Mr. Mobu has increased the vacancies 
on our Board to two (2). It is imperative that the vacancies 
be filled as soon as possible to ensure the proper functioning 
of the Board.

LITIGATION

Beverly Securities

Armscor is defending a claim from Beverly Securities 
in the Civil Court of Lisbon for the alleged non-payment 
of commission in respect of the acquisition of the Oryx 
helicopters of the SAAF during the late nineteen-eighties. 
The value of the claim is approximately 192 million Euros. 
The summons was received in 2008 and the matter was 
dismissed by the Court for lack of jurisdiction by the 
Portuguese Courts. 

The matter was appealed and the Court of Appeal found 
that Portuguese Courts do have jurisdiction in the matter. 
Armscor	then	also	appealed	the	ruling.	However,	this	ruling	
was upheld. The matter has been referred back to the court 
of first instance. The Commission to preserve evidence took 
place in South Africa during March 2015 as ordered by the 
court. This was completed successfully and will mitigate the 
risk of losing important evidence due to age of witnesses. 

New Generation Arms 
Management (Pty) Ltd (NGAM)

NGAM executed an order placed by Armscor but failed to 
pay statutory duties over to SARS in terms of the provisions 
of the order, after Armscor had paid the duty amount to 
NGAM. Armscor received a letter of demand from SARS 
to pay the outstanding amount with SARS, and was also 
informed that a substantial penalty would be levied in the 
event that the amount was not paid. Armscor paid the 
amount outstanding and has instituted legal action against 
NGAM to recover the amount of approximately R6,1 
million. Armscor obtained an order against NGAM at the 
Northern	 Gauteng	 High	 Court	 and	 is	 in	 the	 process	 of	
executing the order.
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PErFOrmanCE aGainsT GOaLs
OPERATIONAL OBJECTIVES FOR THE 
2014/2015 FINANCIAL YEAR

The Armscor three-year integrated Corporate and Business Plan 
defines two groups of performance indicators.  The first group 
addresses performance indicators to measure the execution of 
Armscor’s functions as defined in the Armscor Act and as agreed 
on in the SLA with the DOD, while the second group measures 
the attainment of the strategic objectives of the group. 

PERFORMANCE AGAINST GOALS

In addition to the above Armscor uses an overall efficiency 
measure which is the cost of acquisition.  This measure reflects 
the ratio of operating cost incurred versus the acquisition cash 
flow during the reporting period based on the total forecasted 
acquisition activities (revised baseline).  A cost of 9,38% was 
budgeted for the 2014/2015 financial year taking into 
consideration the baseline for contracting of R9,847 billion 
and the agreed performance requirement to commit 90% 
thereof while contractual payments should be 90% of the 
committed amount.  The actual acquisition cost achieved was 
8,97% compared with 7,94% for the 2013/2014 period.  
Although the acquisition cost improved the performance was 
affected as R134,1m requirements were not received from 
the Department of Defence while an additional amount of 
R1,6 billion was added to the baseline towards the end of 
the financial year to be contracted which will only result in 
cash flow during the following year.

Performance against the Service Level 
Agreement Objectives is as follows (as per 
approved Corporate Plan):

Goal 1: Cat 1 capital defence matériel acquisition 
excluding strategic defence acquisition but 
including technology acquisition

The objectives are defined as follows:

•	 	Contracts	to	be	placed	by	Armscor
  Armscor’s target of 90% of commitment of funds to 

be measured against the formally planned value of 
commitments, which is based on requirements received 
and confirmed as valid requirements from the DOD. 

•	 Cash-flow	(contractual	payments	made)	
  Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 

measured against the formally planned cash-flow in 
terms of achieved commitments for the financial year.

Goal 2: Strategic defence acquisition 

The objectives are defined as follows:

•	 Contracts	to	be	placed	by	Armscor
  Armscor’s target of 90% of commitment of funds to 

be measured against the formally planned value of 
commitments, which is based on requirements received 
and confirmed as valid requirements from the DOD.

•	 Cash-flow	(contractual	payments	made)	
  Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 

measured against the formally planned cash-flow in 
terms of achieved commitments for the financial year.

Goal 3:  System support - Acquisition and procurement 

The objectives are defined as follows:

•	 Contracts	to	be	placed	by	Armscor
  Armscor’s target of 90% of commitment of funds to 

be measured against the formally planned value of 
commitments, which is based on requirements received 
and confirmed as valid requirements from the DOD.

•	 Cash-flow	(contractual	payments	made)	
  Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 

measured against the formally planned cash-flow in 
terms of achieved commitments for the financial year.

Goal 4: Placement schedule

Target set to measure the average time taken from receipt of 
requirement to placement of contract.

Goal 5:  Management of Defence Industrial 
Participation (DIP)

Target set to measure the execution of DIP obligations in 
terms of SLA and in compliance with the Armscor Act.

Goal 6:  Management and execution of defence 
technology, research, test and evaluation 
requirements of the Department of Defence

The target of Armscor Defence Institutes is set to achieve 90% 
completion of contractual milestones/deliveries as per orders 
received.

Goal 7:  Performance against mandate (SA Navy 
– Dockyard performance management 
agreement)

The target to measure the performance of the Dockyard and more 
specifically the services rendered to the SA Navy Fleet Command.
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Goal 1:    Cat 1 capital defence matériel acquisition excluding strategic defence acquisition but 
including technology acquisition

Key performance indicator (Projects) Goal Achieved Performance against goal

1.1  Contracts to be placed by Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of funds 
to be measured against the formally planned 
value of commitments, which is based on 
requirements received and confirmed as valid 
requirements from the DOD.

90% 100% DOD requirements to the value of 
R1002,924m were received. 
 
Armscor committed R1002,924m of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement 
of 100% against the set target of 90%. 
 
Objective achieved.

1.2   Cash-flow  
(contractual payments made)

Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 
measured against the formally planned cash-
flow in terms of achieved commitments for the 
financial year.   
Actual cash-flow will be measured against 
planned cash-flow in terms of fist revision and 
adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s control.  
Furthermore, cash-flow is updated on an on-
going basis with commitments during the year.

90% 108,77% The planned cash flow for the first revision 
was R3424,032m.
 
Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R3157,068m resulting in an 
achievement of 92,2%. 
 
Adjustments for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control amounted to R567,341m. This results 
in a final achievement of 108,77%. 

Objective achieved.

Goal 2:  Strategic defence acquisition

Key performance indicator
(Strategic defence packages) Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.1   Contracts to be placed by Armscor

Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of funds to 
be measured against the formally planned value 
of commitments, which is based on requirements 
received and confirmed as valid requirements 
from the DOD.

90% 99,78% DOD requirements to the value of 
R18,6255m were received.  
Armscor committed R18,584m of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement 
of 99,78% against the set target of 90%.   
Objective achieved.

2.2  Cash-flow 
 
Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 
measured against the formally planned cash-
flow in terms of achieved commitments for the 
financial year.  
Actual cash-flow will be measured against 
planned cash-flow in terms of fist revision and 
adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s control.  
Furthermore, cash-flow is updated on an on-
going basis with commitments during year.

90% 109,68% The planned cash flow for the first revision 
was R285,413m. 
Armscor managed to realise cash flow 
to the value of R148,81m resulting in an 
achievement of 52,13%.  
Funding for SDP’s are no longer ring-fenced 
by Treasury. Financial Authorities for future 
years had to be committed in the 2013/14 
financial year. Adjustments for factors beyond 
Armscor’s control and commitments in the 
month of March amounted to R164,519m. 
This results in a final achievement of 109,68%. 

Objective achieved.
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Goal 3:  System support: Acquisition and procurement 

Key performance indicator
(Operational funds) Goal Achieved Performance against goal

3.1  Contracts to be placed by Armscor.

Armscor’s target of 90% commitment of funds to 
be measured against the formally planned value 
of commitments, which is based on requirements 
received and confirmed as valid requirements 
from the DOD.

90% 99,55% DOD requirements received to the value of 
R3003,013m. 

Armscor committed R2989,593 of the above 
mentioned funds resulting in an achievement 
of 99,55% against the set target of 90%.  
 
Objective achieved.

3.2   Cash-flow 
 
Armscor’s target of 90% cash-flow would be 
measured against the formally planned cash-
flow in terms of achieved commitments for the 
financial year.

Actual cash-flow will be measured against 
planned cash-flow in terms of fist revision and 
adjusted for factors beyond Armscor’s control.

Furthermore, cash-flow is updated on an on-
going basis with commitments during year.

90% 107,85% The planned cash flow for the first revision was 
R4479,378m.

Armscor managed to realise cash flow to 
the value of R4034,66m resulting in an 
achievement of 90,07%. 

Adjustments for factors beyond Armscor’s 
control amounted to R796,372m. This results 
in a final achievement of 107,85%. 

Objective achieved.

Goal 4:  Schedule placement

Key performance indicator
(projects) Goal Achieved Performance against goal

4.1  Average time taken from receipt of 
requirement to placement of contract is 
90 days.

90 days 78,67 days •			Acquisition	Programmes	are	registered	
as a requirement at the time when the 
acquisition process starts. After this date, 
acquisition programmes will progress 
through all the acquisition phases, prior 
to achieving the time when offers can be 
solicited and orders placed.

•			The	Acquisition	Business	Register	will	
be amended to cater for projects and 
operational requirements.

 
Objective achieved.
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Goal 5:   Management of Defence Industrial Participation (DIP)
A certain percentage of counter-performance is negotiated by Armscor with overseas suppliers on all contracts in excess of 
USD	2m.	The	management	of	these	counter-performances	is	included	as	an	objective	for	Armscor,	and	the	target	is	reflected	
in the following table:

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

5.1   Value of DIP credits to be granted to 
overseas suppliers.

  Active Portfolio:

R727m

Credits to be 
approved by 
2015-03-31 

for active 
portfolio

R696m R696m DIP credits were approved in the 
2014/15 financial year. 

Revised goal reflecting current contractually 
agreed milestones (initial goal stated in the 
2014/15–2016/17 Corporate Plan was 
R129m).

The annual goal relates to the projected discharge 
of obligations under current DIP agreements and 
excludes pro-active agreements. 

Obligors submitted additional claims worth 
R73m before year-end, which was still under 
consideration at year end.
 
Objective partially achieved (95,8%).

Pro-active Portfolio R0m R22m Pro-active activities occur randomly and 
cannot be predicted or pre-planned.

Goal 6:   Management and execution of Defence Technology, Research, Test and Evaluation  
requirements of the Department of Defence

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

6.1   Armscor Research & Development 
to achieve contractual milestones / 
deliveries as per agreed Memoranda of 
Agreement and orders received for the 
financial year.

90% 98,66% Orders to the value of R250 623 961 
was received and the amount completed 
and invoiced amounted to R247 274 206 
representing 98,66% of the goal.

Objective achieved.
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Goal 7:   Management and performance against Dockyard Mandate (SA Navy / Dockyard 
Performance Management in terms of Service Level Agreement with the SA Navy 
Agreement)

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

7.1   Ensure adherence to Project contractual 
milestone planned dates as approved in 
project plan.

90% 94,75% Performance up to 31 March 2015.
All projects signed off by the SA Navy.
 
Objective achieved.

7.1.1			SAS	UMHLOTI	Docking	Essential	
Defects (DED)

93,7% SAS	UMHLOTI	(DED)	
The D339 was signed in July 2014. 
Dockyard achieved a 93,7% performance. 

Objective achieved.

7.1.2   SAS ISAAC DYOBA Docking 
Essential Defects (DED)

91% SAS ISAAC DYOBA (DED)
The D339 was signed by all stakeholders on 
01 August 2014. Dockyard achieved a 91% 
performance. 

Objective achieved.

7.1.3			SAS	MANTHATISI	(REFIT) 100% SAS	MANTHATISI	(REFIT)
The D448 was signed on 03 October 
2014. Dockyard achieved a 100% 
performance. 

Objective achieved.

7.1.4			SAS	QUEEN	MODJADJI	Docking	
Essential Defects (DED)

97% SAS	QUEEN	MODJADJI	(DED)	
This project has successfully been completed 
and signed off by the SA Navy. Dockyard 
achieved 97% sign off against a target of 90%. 

Objective achieved.

7.1.5			SAS	GALESHEWE	Docking	Essential	
Defects (DED)

92,30% SAS	GALESHEWE	(DED)	
This project has successfully been completed 
and signed off by the SA Navy. Dockyard 
achieved 92,3% sign off against a 90% target. 

Objective achieved.

7.1.6			TUG	TSHUKUDU	Docking	Essential	
Defects (DED)

94,51% TUG	TSHUKUDU	(DED)	
This project has successfully completed 
and signed off by the SA Navy.  Dockyard 
achieved 94,51% sign off against a target of 
90%. 

Objective achieved.
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Goal 7:   Management and performance against Dockyard Mandate (SA Navy / Dockyard 
Performance Management in terms of Service Level Agreement with the SA Navy 
Agreement)

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

7.2   Manage project finances in accordance 
with approved budget (financial 
authorities) and cash-flow plan.

90% 99,32% Cash flow of 99,32% achieved and signed 
off by the SA Navy.

Objective achieved. 

7.3   Provision of Ancillary Services as 
defined by SA Navy (power generation 
station, air supply, water supply, 
carnage support requirements, etc.) as 
per Dockyard funded business plan.

90% 100% Ancillary Services delivered in accordance 
with SA Navy requirements and signed off 
by the SA Navy.

Objective achieved.

7.4   Ensure that training provided is in 
accordance with the plan submitted by 
the SA Navy reporting period.

90% 100% Training requirements provided as per 
agreement by the SA Navy and formally 
signed off by the SA Navy.

Objective achieved.

7.5   Ensure that quarterly reports are 
provided to Fleet Officer Flag that 
addresses inter-alia project performance 
status, financial statements, risks with 
mitigating plans, capabilities, facilities 
and ancillary services status reporting as 
per reporting timeline schedule.

90% 100% All	four	Quarterly	Reports	delivered	as	per	
agreed time schedule and signed off by the 
SA Navy.

Objective achieved.
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PErFOrmanCE aGainsT GrOuP sTraTEGiC OBJECTivEs
Progress / compliance with the approved Group strategic objectives are stated below.

Strategic objective 1: Funding and growth

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

1.1.a  AB Logistics

Finalise and implement approved business 
option for AB Logistics (in-house travel 
capability).

31 May 
2014

31 Mar 
2015

African Business Travel Association (ABTA) 
who was appointed to do an independent 
and objective assessment submitted a final 
report on their findings.  The implementation 
was completed.

Objective achieved later than planned.

1.1.b   Review three-year Service Level 
Agreement (SLA) with the Secretary for 
Defence that includes:

•		Functions	of	the	Corporation
•			Measurable	objectives	(performance	

agreement)
•			Terms	and	conditions	applicable	to	service	

to be rendered

31 Mar 
2015

24 Mar 
2015

Existing agreement was reviewed for the 
final year (2015/16) and document with 
amendments submitted to the Secretary for 
Defence.

Objective achieved.

1.2.a   Increase acquisition activities and 
partnering with industries in SADC, 
AU	and	BRICS

•			Market	expansion	should	focus	on:

				•			Identifying	opportunities	in	BRICS		
and IBSA;

				•			Increasing	the	number	of	SADC		
countries identified;

				•			Identifying	new	markets	within	AU		
through market research.

31 Mar 
2015

23 Mar 
2015

Strategic engagements on acquisition, R & D 
and Dockyard capabilities during the following 
exhibitions and shows: DSA2014 (Malaysia); 
Eurosatory 2014 (France); Land Forces East 
Africa	2014	(Tanzania);	AAD2014	(SA);	and	
IDEX2015	(Abu	Dhabi)	during	the	April	2014	
– March 2015. 

Further discussions regarding opportunity 
identified	 to	 market	 Ultrasonic	 Broken	 Rail	
Detector	 (UBRD)	 in	 India	 with	 proposal	
submitted in April 2015.

Marketing of R & D capability (Protechnik, 
Ergotech	&	Hazmat)	 to	9	 x	 SADC	countries	
representatives on 24 June 2014.

Marketing of Acquisition, R & D and 
Dockyard capabilities to 42 MAAC members 
representing 35 countries at Gerotek facility 
on 13 March 2015.
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Strategic objective 1: Funding and growth

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

6	new	markets	(Kingdom	of	Lesotho,	Malawi,	
Mauritius,	 Kingdom	 of	 Swaziland,	 Zambia,	
and Zimbabwe) within the SADC region were 
analysed for business opportunities through 
market research.  The submission on the findings 
was approved by ExCo on 23 March 2015.  

Objective achieved.

•			Marketing	of	Armscor’s	functions	and	
services through the approved Marketing 
Strategy.

30 Nov 
2014

30 Nov 
2014

Marketing capabilities at exhibitions 
attended: DSA2014 (Malaysia); Eurosatory 
2014 (France); Land Forces East Africa 
2014	(Tanzania);	and	AAD2014	(SA).

SADC MAAC engagement session 24 June 
2014.

Objective achieved. 

•			Pursue	identified	opportunities	in	
Botswana, Malawi, Angola and South 
Sudan.

30 Nov 
2014

30 Sept 
2014

Strategic engagements on acquisition, 
R & D and Dockyard capabilities during 
Land	Forces	East	Africa	2014	(Tanzania)	
& AAD2014 (SA); Nigeria, Namibia, 
Mozambique,	DRC,	Zimbabwe,	Tanzania,	
Kenya,	Seychelles,	Malawi,	Angola,	
Mozambique,	DRC,	Zimbabwe.

32 business leads identified & referred to SADI.

Objective achieved. 

1.2.b   Increase the number of countries in 
SADC	&	AU	beside	the	four	above	
where opportunities can be pursued.

31 Mar 
2015

23 Mar 
2015

Market intelligence on Lesotho; Malawi; 
Mauritius;	Swaziland;	Zambia	and	Zimbabwe	
was conducted to identify opportunities. 

Objective achieved. 

1.2.c   Identify opportunities to exploit military 
technologies and IP to develop 
products through the use by the 
SA Defence Force or civil products 
produced directly from the IP held by 
the Corporation.

31 Oct 
2014

26 May 
2014

Opportunities identified:
•			SigmaHat	 –	 CSIR:	 SigmaHat	 RCS	

engineering tool to render Radar Cross 
Section (RCS) modelling services to SAAB 
(Sweden). Approved on 2014/05/26.

•			Palletised	David	Transaction:		CSIR	providing	
sub-licence to VestDavit AS to manufacture 
Palletised David base platforms. Approved 
on 2014/05/26.

•			Submarine	Safety	Systems:		An	agreement	
was	concluded	with	ThyssenKrupp	Marine	
Systems	 (TKMS),	 a	 German	 based	
company, and Industrial Research (CSIR) 
in the field of Submarine Safety Systems. 
Approved on 2014/11/24.

Objective achieved.



90

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

Strategic objective 1: Funding and growth

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

•			Implement	90%	of	the	approved	research	
& development business plan: 

				•			Identify	one	commercial	opportunity	to	
pursue

31 Dec 
2014

24 Nov 
2014

Ingwe Missile:  A Manufacturing Licence 
Agreement (MLA) was concluded with 
Militaries Industries Incorporated (MIC) for the 
manufacturing the Ingwe Missile. The IP for 
the Ingwe Missile is jointly owned by Armscor 
and Denel. Approved on 2014/11/24.

A-Darter missile proximity fuse:
Use	of	A-Darter	proximity	fuse	in	a	modified	
form	on	the	Umkhonto	Surface-to-Air	Missile	
(SAM). Approved on 2014/11/24.

Objective achieved.

1.3.a   Establishment / update of the 
marketing intelligence database.

31 Mar 
2015

23 Mar 
2015

Market Intelligence report approved at the 
Executive Committee on 23 March 2015.

Objective achieved.

Strategic objective 2:  People and capabilities

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.1   Achievement of approved Equity Plan 
that is directed towards:

•		Increasing	race	representativity.	 1 142 black 
employees 

(64%)

71,11%

Goal: 1 142 out of a total of 1 605 
employees must be black.

Achieved: 1 100 out of a total of 1 547 
employees are black (71,11%).

Objective achieved.

•		Improving	gender	composition. 580 female 
employees 

(33%)

35,49% Goal: 580 out of a total of 1 605 
employees must be female.

Achieved: 549 out of a total of 1 547 
employees are female employees (35,49%).

Objective achieved.

2.2   Controllable staff turnover in technical 
positions (excluding retirements).

< 4,5% 3,91% There were 27 (out of 61 technical positions) 
resignations for the year:

AS level –  10
STS level – 7
MP level – 8
SU	level	–	2.

Objective achieved.
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Strategic objective 2:  People and capabilities

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

2.3  Skills Development:

•		Bursaries	for	full-time	studies	(numbers). 25 25 Bursaries were given for: 
BEng Chemical:  1
BEng Electronic:  1
BEng Chemical Eng:  1
BEng Mechanical:  3
BSc Eng Mechanical:  1
BSc Eng Aeronautical:  1
BSc Eng Electronics:  2
BSc Eng Electrical:  5
BSc Applied Physics & Maths: 1
BSc	Human	Kinetics	&	Psychology:		1
BSc	Human	Kinetics	&	Ergonomics:		2
BSc Applied Maths:  1
BSc Computer Science:  1
BSc Mechanical Eng:  1
BSc Physics and Computer Science:  1
BSc Aeronautical:  1
ND Mechanical Engineering:  1.

Objective achieved.

•			Appointment	and	development	of	Talent	
Development Employees (number of 
employees through programme exluding 
Dockyard).

20 20 20 talent development candidates went 
through the programme.

Objective achieved.

2.4 Succession Planning:

•			Succession	Planning	and	conformance	to	
plan.

80% 82,5% 82,5% compliance with the development 
plans as contracted with successors.

Objective achieved.

2.5   Employee satisfaction measurement 
(2013/14 performance used as 
baseline for measurement).

64,54% 67,69% The overall Employee Satisfaction as 
measured in March 2015 is 67,69% in 
comparison to the 64,54%, 66,48%, 
62,87% and 61,87% measured in 2014, 
2013, 2012 and 2010 respectively.

Objective achieved.

2.6		Knowledge	and	Information:

•			Implementation	of	Knowledge	and	
Information	Management	(KIM)	Strategy.

31 Mar 
2015

Partially 
achieved

Strategy was approved on 29 September 
2014 and tasks identified for implementation 
during 2014/15 financial year partially 
implemented.  

Objective partially achieved.
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Strategic objective 3: Organisational effectiveness and efficiencies

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

3.1.a   Establish implementation plan of 
approved recommendations of 
Dockyard Modernisation study. This 
study determined current capability, 
processes and requirements to render 
required services. 

30 April 
2014

Not 
achieved

The plan was completed and submitted to the 
Minister of Defence, but was withdrawn to 
discuss with stakeholders.

Objective not achieved.

3.1.b   Implementation of short-term Business 
Intelligence (BI) Strategy Initiatives.

31 Mar 
2015

Not 
achieved

Business Intelligence Strategy that includes 
projects to be implemented was delayed due 
to comparison between ERP process and BI 
initiatives.

Objective not achieved.

3.1.c   Approval of Enterprise Architecture 
Strategy.

31 July 
2014

29 Sept 
2014

The strategy was approved on 29 September 
2014.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

3.2   Implementation of approved ICT 
Strategy

 

•			Implement	Business	Continuity	Plan		for	the	
organization,	including	Disaster	Recovery	
Plan

30 Nov 
2014

Partially 
achieved

The appointment of the service provider was 
delayed due to unforeseen higher cost that 
required price negotiations. Order placement 
was approved on 26 January 2015 with 
implementation 80% completed.

Objective partially achieved.

•			Establish	and		implement	ICT	security	
governance

30 June 
2014

09 Nov 
2014

A separate ICT security governance charter was 
delayed in order to incorporate it into the ICT 
Governance Charter, as part of improvement 
of ICT governance within ICT which was then 
approved by the Board on 9 Nov 2014.

Objective achieved but later than 
planned.

•			Develop	and	implement	network	
availability to clients

31 Dec 
2014

31 Dec 
2014

SLA agreements with service providers 
concluded.  Regular availability reports 
sourced from services providers.  Network 
availability has been improved to more than 
90%.

Objective achieved.
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Strategic objective 3: Organisational effectiveness and efficiencies

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

•			Improve	information	systems	security	
management

31 Dec 
2014

31 Dec 
2014

Improvement of Information systems security 
management is achieved through monitoring 
of the installed Network Access Control 
System (NAC) with the required reports 
obtainable from the system.

Objective achieved.

•			Improve	ICT	governance 31 Mar 
2015

Partially 
achieved

ICT governance charter approved 
for implementation on 9 Nov 2014.  
Implementation will flow through to 
2015/16 financial year.

Objective partially achieved.

•		Improve		ICT	Services	Management 31 Mar 
2015

Not 
achieved

Service catalogue was drafted but is still 
under review.

Objective not achieved.

•		Implement	all	ERP	core	modules 31 Mar 
2015

Not 
achieved

ERP implementation process revised as a 
result of cancellation of ERP tender.  A revised 
implementation plan was approved by the 
Board with the implementation of core modules 
scheduled for 2015/16 financial year.

Objective not achieved.

Strategic objective 4:  Stakeholder relations

4.1   Improved Stakeholder Satisfaction  
Survey

5% 
improvement

Not 
conducted

Survey is conducted biennially as measured 
performance achieved in 2013/14 was 
81.3% which exceeded the goal of 5% 
improvement on the baseline of 75%.  Next 
survey will be in 2016/17.  

Objective not applicable to this 
financial year.

4.2   Increase % of local industry spent in 
respect of Special Defence Account and 
General Defence Account managed by 
Armscor  (increase based on previous 
year’s spending)

2% 
improvement

3,85% 2013/14 spending:
R6,389bn on local suppliers. Total payments 
were R7,817bn
It represents 81,73%. 

2014/15 spending:
R6,282bn on local suppliers: Total payments 
were R7,340bn.
This represents 85,73%.

Increase based on previous year’s 
percentage spending is 3,85%.

Objective achieved.
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Strategic objective 4:  Stakeholder relations

Key performance indicator Goal Achieved Performance against goal

4.3   Implement policies to transform, to 
maintain, and sustain local Defence 
industry: 
 
•			Implement	the	BBBEE	Policy	to	

assist with the  transformation and 
sustaining of the local defence 
industry

30 Nov 
2014

10 Dec 
2014

BEE Policy finalised - Exemption application 
to be made to National Treasury in January 
2015.

Objective achieved later than expected.

4.4   Armscor Brand Positioning & Marketing 
to be determined by: 
 
•			Developing	an	Armscor	Brand	

Position and Marketing Strategy

 
						•		Conduct	a	brand	recognition	survey 
 
 

							•			Implementing	the	approved	Armscor	
Brand Position and Marketing 
Strategy. The implementation plan 
should encompass a three year 
programme and should be monitored 
over time to ensure that it is relevant 
to Armscor’s needs.

30 April 
2014

31 Mar 
2015

30 Nov 
2014

5 Mar 
2014

23 Mar 
2015

30 Nov 
2014

Brand Position and Marketing Strategy 
Marketing Strategy developed and 
approved.

Objective achieved.

Brand recognition and perception survey was 
conducted and results submitted to Executive 
Committee. 

Objective achieved.

Implementation done within funding 
limitations.

Objective achieved.
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GrOuP: FOur YEar rEviEW (unaudited)
AT 31 MARCH 2015

2015 2014 2013 2012
Rm Rm Rm Rm

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NET ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment* 1 189,1 1 229,8 1 322,0 236,9 

Investment property 110,0 110,0 - -

Intangible assets 0,9 1,1 0,9 0,4 

Other non current assets 1,3 - 0,9 0,1 

Other non current liabilities (87,2) (166,6) (108,7) (21,5)

Net current assets 604,6 534,3 442,4 279,4 

Financial instruments 747,7 712,5 607,5 534,5 

Post-retirement medical benefit liability (571,4) (513,1) (460,3) (418,7)

1 995,0 1 908,0 1 804,7 611,1 

*Property, plant and equipment was revalued in 2013

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Ordinary shareholders' interest 1 995,0 1 908,0 1 804,7 611,1 

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REVENUE

Sale of goods and services 400,5 345,5 308,2 305,2 

Allocation from the State budget for operating expenditure 913,3 870,7 748,1 659,9 

Finance income 79,6 48,8 41,1 31,6 

Rental income 50,5 46,0 42,6 38,2 

Other income 78,5 136,6 116,0 32,3 

1 522,4 1 447,6 1 256,0 1 067,2 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 84,2 103,3 1 193,6 70,2 
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GrOuP vaLuE-addEd sTaTEmEnT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The statement shows the value the Group has created through its acquisition, maintenance and disposal activities aimed at 
meeting the defence matériel requirements of South Africa as well as trading and investment operations. The statement shows 
how value was created and how it was disbursed amongst stakeholders, leaving a retained amount which was re-invested 
in the Group for the replacement of assets, the development of operations and the maintenance of required capabilities.

2015 % 2014 %
Rm Rm

Sale of goods and services 400,5 345,5 

Allocation for operating expenditure (Government grant) 913,3 870,7 

Rental income 50,5 46,0 

Other income 78,5 136,6

Finance income 79,6 48,8 

Revenue 1 522,4 1 447,6 

Less:  Paid to suppliers for materials and services (445,0) (489,4)

TOTAL VALUE ADDED 1 077,4 100 958,2 100

DISTRIBUTED AS FOLLOWS:

To employees as salaries, wages and other benefits 914,5 85 836,8 88 

To Government as taxation 14,1 1 13,4 1 

TOTAL VALUE ADDED DISTRIBUTED 928,6 86 850,2 89 

Portion of value added reinvested to sustain and expand the business 148,8 14 108,0 11 

TOTAL VALUE ADDED DISTRIBUTED AND REINVESTED 1 077,4 100 958,2 100 

TAXATION

Paid in taxes to Government

•		Rates	and	taxes	to	local	authorities 14,1 13,4 

Collected on behalf of, and paid over to Government

•		Employees	taxation	deducted	from	remuneration	paid 183,1 167,6 

•		Unemployment	Insurance	Fund 2,7 2,6 

•		Net	value	added	taxation	(VAT) 126,1 95,8 

311,9 266,0 
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armsCOr GrOuP
FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

The following main aspects concerning the Armscor 
Group’s financial results are apparent from the annual 
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The net value of the Group increased from R1908,0 million 
to R1995,0 million mainly as a result of the net surplus 
from current year operations. Cash and cash equivalents 
form a substantial part of the assets and are reserved to 
finance specific future obligations. The Group invested 
R24 million in acquiring plant and equipment as well as 
addition to existing facilities.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The net financial result of the Group (after tax) reflects a 
profit of R84,2 million compared to R103,3 million in 
the previous financial year. Total revenue increased by 
15,9% while operating expenditure increase by 7,9%. 
Furthermore, the financial results were influenced by the 
inclusion of the results of the Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 
which, if excluded, the net result is a profit of R27,1 million 
(2014: R34,9 million).

COMPARISON WITH BUDGET

If compared with Group budgeted profit of R0.8 million (excluding  
the Armscor Medical Benefit Fund), the main contributors of the 
deviation for the year under review are the following:

Contributors to deviation

Personnel Costs
The net under spending in personnel cost is due to delays in the 
filling of vacancies due to the recruitment of suitable candidates.

Allocation for operating expenditure/Gross 
contributions
Allocation for operating expenditure is received to defray the 
cost of the Group’s operations for the year under review, to 
address additional services to be rendered and to ensure that 
Armscor’s contracted service delivery to the Department of 
Defence (DOD), in terms of the Service Level Agreement (SLA), 
is effectively and efficiently met. The variance on sales was as 
the result of the non-availability of the dry docking facilities for 
commercial clients. The transfer payment of R913,3 million 
includes R29,2 million recognised by the Dockyard from 
deferred income. In addition Dockyard recognised R10,7 
million for projects performed on behalf of the Navy and IMT 
recognised R10 million for Navy projects.

Depreciation
The depreciation increased as a result of the revaluation of the 
buildings which occurred after the finalisation of  the budget.

Other Operating Expenses/Maintenance
The spending on maintenance and external services increased 
as a result of costs incurred to maintain the Dockyard facilities as 
well as contract labour funded from the additional transfer from 
the SA Navy ring-fenced within the deferred income. Included in 
operating expenses is a charge relating to the increase Medical 
Benefit Fund liability of R58,3 million for the group.
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GROUP

NOTES Restated Restated
2015 2014 2013
Rm Rm Rm

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 2 1 189,1 1 229,8 1 322,0 

Investment property 3 110,0 110,0 -

Intangible assets 4 0,9 1,1 0,9 
Investment in a joint venture 5 1,3 - 0,9 

Financial instruments 15 747,7 712,5 607,5 

2 049,0 2 053,4 1 931,3 
CURRENT ASSETS
Non current assets held for disposal 2 0,1 0,2 0,2 

Inventories 7 8,1 29,3 11,7 

Trade and other receivables 8 100,7 120,7 111,9 

Cash and short term deposits 9 877,5 699,0 689,3 

Taxation 14 2,1 - -

988,5 849,2 813,1 
TOTAL ASSETS 3 037,5 2 902,6 2 744,4 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Ordinary share capital 10 75,0 75,0 75,0 

Non-distributable reserves 1 920,0 1 833,0 1 729,7 

ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS INTEREST 1 995,0 1 908,0 1 804,7 
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Post-retirement medical benefit liability 6 571,4 513,1 460,3 

Deferred tax 14 17,8 38,2 22,7 

Deferred income 11 69,4 128,4 86,0 

658,6 679,7 569,0 
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 12 214,5 158,5 217,4 

Provisions 13 109,9 104,8 93,5 

Taxation 14 - 1,1 2,9 

Deferred income 11 59,5 50,5 56,9 

383,9 314,9 370,7 
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1 042,5 994,6 939,7 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3 037,5 2 902,6 2 744,4 

sTaTEmEnT OF FinanCiaL POsiTiOn
AS AT 31 MARCH 2015
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sTaTEmEnT OF COmPrEHEnsivE inCOmE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

GROUP

Restated
NOTES 2015 2014

Rm Rm

Revenue 16 400,5 345,5 

Cost of sales 17 (139,2) (129,5)

GROSS PROFIT 18 261,3 216,0 

Other operating revenue 19 129,0 182,6 

Allocation for operating expenditure (Government grants) 20 913,3 870,7 

Operating expenses 21 (1 287,1) (1 193,3)

OPERATING PROFIT 22 16,5 76,0 

Investment revenue 23 79,6 48,8 

Share of profit/(loss) in joint venture 5 5,7 (0,9)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 101,8 123,9

Taxation 14 (17,6) (20,6)

PROFIT AFTER TAX 24 84,2 103,3 
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sTaTEmEnT OF CHanGEs in EQuiTY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

shARE
CAPITAL

mARkETINg
PROmOTION

REsERvE

CAPITAL ANd
BuILdINg

mAINTENANCE
REsERvE

COmPuTER
uPgRAdINg

REsERvE

INTERNAL
INsuRANCE

REsERvE

REvALuATION
REsERvE

gENERAL
REsERvE

TOTAL
EQuITy

Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

GROUP

Balance at 31 March 2013 75,0 12,9 22,6 15,0 22,5 1 083,7 573,0 1 804,7 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year

- - - - - - 103,3 103,3 

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (0,6) - - (2,5) - 3,1 -

Total changes - (0,6) - - (2,5) - 106,4 103,3 

Balance at 31 March 2014 75,0 12,3 22,6 15,0 20,0 1 083,7 679,4 1 908,0 

Changes in equity

Total comprehensive income 
for the year

- - - - - - 84,2 84,2

Transfer to/(from) reserves - (0,2) - - (1,1) - 4,1 2,8 

Total changes  -   (0,2)  -   -   (1,1)  -   88,3  87,0 

Balance at 31 March 2015 75,0 12,1 22,6 15,0 18,9 1 083,7 767,7 1 995,0 
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sTaTEmEnT OF CasH FLOWs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

GROUP

NOTES 2015 2014
Rm Rm

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receipts from customers 1 386,9 1 314,0 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (1 237,6) (1 256,5)

Cash generated from operations 25 149,3 57,5 

Income tax paid (41,2) (7,0)

Interest income 79,6 48,8 

Finance costs (1,9) (2,2)

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 185,8 97,1 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant & equipment 2, 4 (24,0) (75,0)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 2 - -

Increase in investments 5,0 (23,1)

Dividends received 11,7 10,7 

NET CASH FLOWS USED (IN)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (7,3) (87,4)

TOTAL	CASH	MOVEMENT	FOR	THE	YEAR 178,5 9,7 

CASH	AT	THE	BEGINNING	OF	THE	YEAR 699,0 689,3 

TOTAL CASH AT END OF THE YEAR 9 877,5 699,0 
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aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

1. Mandate

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with South African Statements of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practices and the Companies Act of South 
Africa, 71 of 2008. The financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis except for some financial 
instruments and land and buildings which are measured at 
fair value and incorporate the principal accounting policies 
set out below. They are presented in South African Rands 
and all values are rounded to the nearest millions unless 
otherwise indicated. 

Armscor receives its mandate for the period under review 
from the Armaments Corporation of South Africa, Limited 
Act (Act No 51 of 2003) and the Armaments Corporation 
of South Africa Limited amendment Act (Act No 16 of 
2005), which came into effect from 8 May 2006 by 
proclamation	 20	 published	 in	 Government	 Gazette	
28779 of 5 May 2006 in terms of which the Corporation 
is empowered to meet:

•	 	the	defence	matériel	requirements	of	the	Department	
of Defence (DOD) effectively, efficiently and 
economically; and

•	 	the	 defence	 technology,	 research,	 development,	
analysis, test and evaluation requirements of the 
Department of Defence effectively, efficiently and 
economically.

These Acts furthermore provides that Armscor must adhere 
to accepted corporate governance principles, best business 
practices and South African Statements of Generally 
Accepted Accounting Practices within a framework of 
established norms and standards that reflect fairness, equity, 
transparency, economy, efficiency, accountability and 
lawfulness.

1.1 Financial policy

Activities are financed as follows:

Armscor’s operating funds
Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the defence 

budget and together with interest earned thereon are utilised 
to finance operating expenditure, the acquisition of fixed 
assets and expenditure for the creation and maintenance of 
facilities and services.

Operating capital and fixed capital of subsidiaries 
and the joint venture
Operating capital and fixed capital requirements of 
subsidiaries and the joint venture are financed from own 
income generated and cash allocated by the holding 
company, as well as additional funding received from the 
DOD if required.

Procurement of armaments
Armaments purchases and maintenance are financed by 
means of withdrawals from the Special Defence Account 
in terms of the Defence Special Account Act (Act No 6 of 
1974, as amended) and the General Defence Account. 
Strategic Defence Packages are financed wholly or partially 
by means of draw downs against credit facilities supplied 
by National Treasury.

1.2 Accounting Policy

The Corporation’s year end is the same as its subsidiaries 
except for the joint venture which has a February year end. 
The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group, 
are set out below: These accounting policies are consistent 
with the previous period.

1.3 Consolidation

Basis of consolidation
The Group annual financial statements present the 
consolidated financial position and changes therein, 
operating results and cash flow information of the 
Corporation and its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are those 
entities in which the Group has an interest of more than one 
half of the voting rights or the power to exercise control so 
as to obtain benefits from their activities.

Control exists when the company has the power to govern 
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities.



103

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

The results of subsidiaries are included for the duration 
in which the Group exercises control over the subsidiary. 
All inter company transactions and resulting profits and 
losses between the Group companies are eliminated on 
consolidation. The Corporation carries its investments in 
subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment losses in 
the financial statements.

1.3.1  Significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions

Judgements
In preparing the financial statements, management is 
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts represented in the financial statements and 
related	 disclosures.	 Use	 of	 available	 information	 and	 the	
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of 
estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these 
estimates which may be material to the financial statements. 
Significant judgements include:

a)  Pension and other post-employment benefits
  The cost of defined post-employment medical 

benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. 
The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary increases, mortality 
rates and future pension increases. Due to the long 
term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject 
to significant uncertainty. 

b) Impairment of financial assets
  The carrying value less impairment provision of 

trade receivables and payables are assumed to 
approximate their fair values. 

c) Impairment of non financial assets
  The Group assesses whether there are any indicators 

of impairment for all non financial assets at each 
reporting date. When value in use calculations are 
undertaken, management estimate the expected 
future cash flows from the asset or cash generating 
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to 
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

d) Provisions
  Management determined an estimate based on the 

best available information. 

1.3.2 Property, plant and equipment

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
recognised as an asset when:

•	 	it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the item will flow to the Group; and

•	 	the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct 
an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a 
replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an 
item of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount 
of the replaced part is derecognised.

The useful life and depreciation method of each asset 
is reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If the 
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is 
accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with 
a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 
is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in 
profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss 
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from 
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.

a) Land and buildings
  Land is stated at fair value and is not depreciated. 

Buildings are stated at fair value less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment. 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis 
over the useful life of the buildings over periods 
that vary between three and fifty years.

aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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  Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result 
of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive 
income and accumulated in the revaluation surplus in 
equity. The increase is recognised in profit or loss to 
the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of 
the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

  Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a 
result of a revaluation, is recognised in profit or loss 
in the current period. The decrease is recognised 
in other comprehensive income to the extent of any 
credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in 
respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in 
other comprehensive income reduces the amount 
accumulated in the revaluation surplus in equity.

  When an item of property, plant and equipment is 
revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date 
of the revaluation is eliminated against the gross 
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

b) Plant and equipment 
  Plant and equipment includes plant, machinery, 

equipment, office equipment, furniture, computers, 
vehicles and vessels. 

  Plant and equipment is stated at cost, excluding 
the costs of day to day servicing, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment. The 
cost of replacing part of such plant and equipment 
is capitalised when that cost is incurred and the 
recognition criteria is met. Depreciation is calculated 
on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives 
on periods that vary as follows:

Plant, machinery & equipment 5 - 15 years

Office equipment, furniture & computers 2 - 20 years

Vehicles & vessels 5 - 15 years

1.3.3 Investment property

Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and 
only when, it is probable that the future economic benefits 

that are associated with the investment property will flow to 
the enterprise, and the cost of the investment property can 
be measured reliably.

Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction 
costs are included in the initial measurement.

Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a 
property. If a replacement part is recognised in the carrying 
amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of 
the	replaced	part	is	derecognized.

Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is 
measured at fair value.

A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included 
in profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

There are no property interests held under operating leases 
which are recognised as investment property.

1.3.4  Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when:

•	 	it	 is	 probable	 that	 the	 expected	 future	 economic	
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to 
the entity; and

•	 		the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	reliably.

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an 
internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is 
incurred.

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the 
development phase of an internal project) is recognised 
when:

•	 	it	is	technically	feasible	to	complete	the	asset	so	that	
it will be available for use or sale.

•	 	there	is	an	intention	to	complete	and	use	or	sell	it.

•	 	there	is	an	ability	to	use	or	sell	it.

aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

•	 	it	will	generate	probable	future	economic	benefits.

•	 	there	 are	 available	 technical,	 financial	 and	 other	
resources to complete the development and to use or 
sell the asset.

•	 	the	 expenditure	 attributable	 to	 the	 asset	 during	 its	
development can be measured reliably.

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing 
titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not 
recognised as intangible assets.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be finite. 
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful 
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there 
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. 
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at 
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life 
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic 
benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing 
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and 
treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation 
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised 
in profit or loss in the expense category consistent with the 
function of the intangible asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognising of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 
when the asset is derecognised.

a) Patents
 Patents have been granted for periods ranging from  
 ten to fifteen years respectively.

b) Computer software
  Computer software is amortised on periods ranging 

from two to eight years.

1.3.5  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (purchase cost) 
and net realisable value. Raw materials are calculated using 
the	first	in,	first	out	method,	except	in	the	case	of	Hazmat	
Protective Systems where it is calculated at weighted 
average. Write downs to net realisable value and inventory 
losses are expensed in the period in which the write down 
or losses occur. Finished goods and work in progress are 
stated at actual cost of direct materials and labour and a 
proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal 
operating capacity but excluding borrowing costs.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of 
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make 
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those 
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in 
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of 
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and 
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in 
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of 
any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from 
an increase in net realisable value, are recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an 
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

1.3.6  Non Distributable reserves

All reserves are considered to be non distributable. The 
full share capital and reserves are required for the total 
net capital requirement of the Group. Cash is therefore 
retained to meet future commitments, and is consequently 
not available for the distribution of dividends.

a)  Capital and building maintenance reserve
  The reserve was established for comprehensive 

upgrading and replacement of obsolete capital 
equipment and maintenance of major building 
systems.

b) Computer upgrading reserve
  The purpose of this reserve is for the upgrading 

and replacement of obsolete, outdated computer 
technology.
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aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

c) Marketing promotion reserve
  The reserve was established to supplement the 

financing of exhibition costs in order to promote the 
local defence industry which is part of Armscor’s 
mandate, but which is not provided for via the 
transfer payment from the Department of Defence. 

d) Internal Insurance Reserve
  Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost 

to benefit relationship exceeds the risk and the 
incidence of losses is of a minor and infrequent 
nature. Self-insured risks are reviewed annually to 
ensure cover is adequate and an amount is held in 
an internal insurance fund to cover these risks.

e) Revaluation reserve
  The revaluation surplus in equity is related to land 

and buildings and is transferred directly to retained 
earnings as the asset is used. The amount transferred 
is equal to the difference between depreciation based 
on the revalued carrying amount and depreciation 
based on the original cost of the asset.

1.3.7 Foreign currency conversion

Transactions and balances
A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition 
in Rand, by applying to the foreign currency amount the 
spot exchange rate between the functional currency and the 
foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of the reporting period, foreign currency monetary 
items are translated using the closing rate.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary 
items or on translating monetary items at rates different from 
those at which they were translated on initial recognition 
during the period or in previous financial statements are 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Cash flows arising from transactions in a foreign currency 
are recorded in Rand by applying to the foreign currency 
amount the exchange rate between the Rand and the 
foreign currency at the date of the cash flow.

1.3.8  Revenue recognition

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the 
following conditions have been satisfied:

•	 	the	Group	has	transferred	to	the	buyer	the	significant	
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

•	 	the	 Group	 retains	 neither	 continuing	 managerial	
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

•	 	the	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;

•	 	it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

•	 	the	costs	incurred	or	to	be	incurred	in	respect	of	the	
transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering 
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated 
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting 
period. The outcome of a transaction can be estimated 
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

•	 	the	amount	of	revenue	can	be	measured	reliably;

•	 	it	is	probable	that	the	economic	benefits	associated	
with the transaction will flow to the Group;

•	 	the	stage	of	completion	of	the	transaction	at	the	end	
of the reporting period can be measured reliably; 
and

•	 	the	costs	incurred	for	the	transaction	and	the	costs	to	
complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering 
of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue shall be 
recognised only to the extent of the expenses recognised 
that are recoverable.

Contract revenue comprises:

•	 	the	initial	amount	of	revenue	agreed	in	the	contract;	
and

•	 	variations	 in	 contract	 work,	 claims	 and	 incentive	
payments:
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aCCOunTinG POLiCiEs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

 -  to the extent that it is probable that they will 
result in revenue; and

 -  they are capable of being reliably measured.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable and represents the amounts receivable 
for goods and services provided in the normal course of 
business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and 
value added tax.

Service fees included in the price of the product are 
recognised as revenue over the period during which the 
service is performed.

1.3.9  Other income

a) Interest income
  Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, 

taking account of the principal outstanding and the 
effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is 
determined that such income will accrue to the Group.

b) Rental income
  Rental income is accounted for on a straight line 

basis over the lease terms of ongoing leases.

c) Government grant
  Government grant is recognised when there is 

reasonable assurance that:

	 •	 	the	 Group	 will	 comply	 with	 the	 conditions	
attaching to them; and

	 •	 the	grant	will	be	received.

  Government grant is recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs that they are intended to compensate.

  A Government grant that becomes receivable as 
compensation for expenses or deficits already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate 
financial support to the entity with no future related 
costs is recognised as income of the period in which 
it becomes receivable.

  Government grant related to assets, including non-
monetary grants at fair value, is presented in the 
statement of financial position by setting up the grant 
as deferred income.

  Grant related to income is presented as a credit in 
the profit or loss (separately).

  Armscor’s operating funds are obtained via the 
defence budget and recognised as a grant via 
revenue (transfer payment) as and when received 
and together with interest earned thereon are utilised 
to finance operating expenditure, the acquisition 
of fixed assets and expenditure for the creation of 
facilities and services.

  Secondary grants received, based on Memorandums 
of Agreement with the DOD, for specific services are 
recognised as revenue as and when the conditions 
of receipt thereof has been fulfilled and are included 
in sale of goods and services.

d) Dividend income
	 	Dividends	are	 recognized	 in	profit	or	 loss	when	 the	

Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

1.3.10  Insurance and risk management

The insurance and risk management policies adopted by the 
Armscor Group are aimed at obtaining sufficient cover at 
the minimum cost to protect its asset base, earning capacity 
and legal obligations against unacceptable losses.

All fixed assets are insured at current replacement value. Risks 
are identified and insured while paying specific attention to 
the specialised nature of the Group’s various activities and 
exposures. Self-insurance has been instituted where the cost-
to benefit relationship exceeds the risk and the incidence of 
losses is of a minor and infrequent nature. Self-insured risks 
are reviewed annually to ensure cover is adequate. 

1.3.11  Financial instruments

Recognition and measurement
Financial instruments are initially recognised on the statement 
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of financial position when the Group becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and 
liabilities are initially measured at fair value, which includes 
directly attributable transaction cost in the case of financial 
assets and liabilities not at fair value through profit and loss. 
Subsequent measurement for each category is specified in 
the sections below.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial 
liabilities
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial 
asset or part of a Group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired. A financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires.

The resulting difference between the carrying value on the 
derecognition of the financial instrument and the amount 
received or paid is taken to profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group categorises its financial assets in the following 
categories: loans and receivables and fair value through profit 
or loss. The classification depends on the purpose for which 
the financial assets are acquired. Management determines 
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables
After initial recognition, such assets are carried at amortised 
cost, using the effective interest rate method, less accumulated 
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the loans and receivables are derecognised or 
impaired, and through the amortisation process. 

The Group has classified the following financial assets as 
loans and receivables:

a) Trade and other receivables
  Trade and other receivables comprise all trade and 

non-trade debtors. Short-duration receivables with 
no stated interest rate are measured at original 
invoice amount unless the effect of imputing interest 
is significant.

b)  Cash and cash equivalents
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, 

deposits held on call and investment instruments, all 
of which are readily convertible to cash, available 
for use by the Group unless otherwise stated and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

c) Other loans
  Other loans comprise of employee loans. These loans 

are interest bearing over periods that vary between 
one and twelve months in terms of conditions of 
employment.

Offset
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount reported in the balance sheet when the company 
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts, and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities consist of trade and other payables. 
After initial recognition, financial liabilities are recognised 
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, 
finance costs on financial liabilities at amortised cost are 
expensed in profit or loss in the period in which they are 
incurred using the effective interest rate method. In addition, 
gains and losses on these financial liabilities are recognised 
in profit or loss when the liability is derecognised.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those 
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails 
to make a payment when it becomes due in accordance 
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequently, 
the contract is measured at the higher of the amount 
determined in accordance with IAS 37 and the amount 
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised 
in accordance with IAS 18, unless it was designated as at 
fair value through profit or loss at inception and measured 
as such. Financial guarantees are derecognised when 
the obligation is extinguished, expire or transferred. The 
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Group currently does not recognise any financial guarantee 
contracts as, in the opinion of the directors; the possibility of 
loss arising from these guarantees is remote.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each statement of financial position 
date whether objective evidence exists that a financial asset 
or a group of financial assets is impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there 
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of 
financial assets are impaired. A financial asset or group 
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are 
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment 
as a result of one or more events that have occurred after 
the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets 
that can be reliably estimated. If there is objective evidence 
that an impairment loss has been incurred on a financial 
asset, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected 
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the 
financial assets original effective interest rate. The amount 
of the impairment shall be recognised in the statement of 
comprehensive income.

When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against 
the related provision for impairment. Such receivables are 
written off after all the necessary procedures have been 
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined. 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off 
decrease the amount of the provision for loan impairment in 
the statement of comprehensive income.

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an 
allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in 
profit or loss within operating expenses. When such assets are 
written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance 
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written 
off are credited against operating expenses.
For certain categories of loans and receivables, provisions 

for impairment are recognised based on the following 
considerations:

a) Trade and other receivables
  For trade and other receivables, a provision for 

impairment is established when there is objective 
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect 
all amounts due according to the original terms of the 
receivables. Indicators of impairment include long 
overdue accounts, significant financial difficulties of 
the debtors and defaults in payments.

1.3.12 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for 
which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The 
expense relating to any provision is presented in the profit 
or loss, net of any reimbursement.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not 
recognised, but reflected in a separate note to the financial 
statements.

The Group has the following provisions at year end:

a)  Performance remuneration
  The payment of performance remuneration is subject 

to the Groups’ achievement of set performance 
criteria. The Group uses the Balanced Score Card 
method for evaluating individual performance. 
Performance remuneration is based proportionally 
on the individual performance as measured and 
expressed by the individual’s performance score 
and also on Group department’s performance 
as measured and expressed by their calculated 
performance score.

b) Provision for leave
  Provision is calculated on leave days outstanding at 

end of year multiplied by remuneration rate based 
on the applicable remuneration package of each 
employee.
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1.3.13 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains 
a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at 
inception date of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement 
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or 
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset. A 
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if one 
of the following applies:

a)   There is a change in contractual terms, other than a 
renewal or extension of the arrangement;

b)   A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, 
unless the term of the renewal or extension was 
initially included in the lease term;

c)  There is a change in the determination of whether 
fulfilment is dependent on a specified asset; or

d)  There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall 
commence or cease from the date when the change in 
circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios 
a), c) or d) and at the date of renewal or extension period 
for scenario b).

Leases of assets to the Group under which all the risks and 
benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor, 
are classified as operating leases. Payments made under 
operating leases are charged against income on a straight 
line basis over the period of the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms 
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee.

Operating leases – lessor
Operating lease income is recognised as an income on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset and recognised as an expense over the lease 
term on the same basis as the lease income.

Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in profit or loss.

Operating leases – lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset. Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they 
are incurred.

1.3.14  Impairment of tangible and 
intangible assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period 
whether there is any indication that an asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates 
the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the 
recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. 
If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of 
the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating 
unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a 
revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is 
any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist 
or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than 
goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the 
asset in prior periods.
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A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost 
less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than 
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any 
reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated 
as a revaluation increase.

1.3.15 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure 
which was made in vain as well as penalties levied on 
late deliveries and which would have been avoided had 
reasonable care been exercised.

1.3.16 Share capital and equity

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

1.3.17 Employee benefits

a) Short-term employee benefits
  The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those 

payable within 12 months after the service is 
rendered, such as paid vacation leave and sick 
leave, bonuses, and non monetary benefits such as 
medical care), are recognised in the period in which 
the service is rendered and are not discounted.

  The expected cost of compensated absences is 
recognised as an expense as the employees render 
services that increase their entitlement or, in the case 
of non accumulating absences, when the absence 
occurs.

  The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus 
payments is recognised as an expense when there 
is a legal or constructive obligation to make such 
payments as a result of past performance.

b) Defined contribution plans
  Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit 

plans are charged as an expense as they fall due.

  Payments made to industry managed (or state plans) 

retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined 
contribution plans where the Group’s obligation 
under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a 
defined contribution retirement benefit plan.

c) Retirement benefits
  The Group contributes towards and operates the 

Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and 
the Armscor Provident Fund, which offer benefits 
based on the contributions of and on behalf of every 
member, as well as on investment yields.

  The Group also provides post retirement health 
care benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post 
retirement health care benefits is based on the 
employee remaining in service up to retirement age 
and the completion of a minimum service period. 
The expected costs of these benefits are accrued 
over the period of employment. Valuations of these 
obligations are carried out by independent qualified 
actuaries. The cost of providing benefits under 
the defined benefits plan is determined using the 
projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

  Actuarial gains or losses in respect of defined benefit 
plans are recognised as income or expense if the net 
cumulative unrecognised actuarial gains and losses 
at the end of the previous reporting period exceeded 
the greater of:

	 •	 	10%	of	the	present	value	of	the	defined	benefit	
obligation at that date before deducting plan 
assets, and

	 •	 	10%	of	the	fair	value	of	any	plan	assets	at	that	
date.

The amount recognised is the excess determined above, 
divided by the expected average remaining working lives 
of the employees participating in that plan.

1.3.18 Taxation

Current taxation
Current taxation comprises tax payable calculated on the 
basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using the 
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tax rates enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment 
of tax payable for the previous year.

Deferred taxation
Deferred taxation is provided using the financial position 
liability method, based on temporary differences. Temporary 
differences are differences between the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and 
their tax values.

The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the 
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying 
amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is 
recognised in the income statement except to the extent that 
it relates to a transaction that is recorded directly in equity, 
or a business combination that is an acquisition. The effect 
on deferred tax of any changes in tax rates is recognised 
in the statement of comprehensive income, except to the 
extent that it relates to items previously charged or credited 
directly to equity.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be available against 
which the associated unused tax losses and deductible 

temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets 
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
the related tax benefit will be realised.

1.3.19 Restatements

a) Software
  Management reclassified Computer Software from 

Property, Plant and Equipment to Intangible Assets. 
The net effect of this error is that Intangible Assets 
were understated and Property, Plant and Equipment 
were overstated in the Statement of Financial Position.

b)  Revenue and cost of sales from the SA Navy
  In the previous financial year transactions between the 

Armscor Dockyard and the SA Navy were incorrectly 
recognised in the Group’s financial statements. These 
transactions related to services provided on behalf 
of the SA Navy where the Group was acting as an 
agent of the SA Navy. The incorrect treatment resulted 
in the over statement of revenue and cost of sales 
by R14,5 million. The misstatement has no effect on 
prior year Group profits or retained earnings.

The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:

GROUP

2014 2014
(Restated) (Previously 

reported)

Rm Rm

Previously reported
Property, plant and equipment 1 229,8 1 230,8 

Intangible assets (Cost) 1,1 0,1 

Profit or loss
Revenue 345,5 360,0 

Cost of sales 129,5 144,0 
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1.3.20  Reporting framework

Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice 
were withdrawn by the Accounting Practices Board on 1 
December 2012.

National Treasury instructed that those Government Business 
Enterprises that apply Statements of SA GAAP, as an interim 
measure, should continue to apply Statements of GAAP (as 
issued at 1 April 2012) until the Board has undertaken more 
extensive research to identify the most appropriate reporting 
framework.

Statements of GAAP are drawn from International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International Accounting 
Standards (IASs), Interpretations issued by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRICs 
and SICs).  Section 56 of the Financial Management 
of Parliament Act (Act No 10 of 2009) requires that 
Parliament prepares its financial statements in accordance 
with standards of generally recognised accounting practice. 
‘‘Standards of generally recognised accounting practice’’ 
in that Act means an accounting practice complying with 
the standards approved by the Minister of Finance on the 
advice of the Accounting Standards Board.

The effect of the APB not adopting any Standards or 
amendments after May 2011 means that the following 
pronouncements or amendments are not included in the 
GAAP Reporting Framework:
 
(a)  IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 

Joint Arrangements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in 
Other Entities and IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 
and any consequential amendments to existing IFRSs 
or IASs as a result of issuing these IFRSs. 

(b)  IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (issued in 
May 2011) and IAS 28 Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures (issued in May 2011). 

(c)  IAS 19 Employee Benefits as revised in June 2011. 

(d)   Amendments to existing pronouncements 
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive 
Income (Amendments to IAS 1) issued in June 
2011. 

(e)  IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of 
a Surface Mine issued in October 2011. 

(f)   Amendments to existing pronouncements 
Mandatory Effective Date and Transition Disclosures 
(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) issued in 
December 2011. 

(g)   Amendments to existing pronouncements 
Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7) issued 
in December 2011. 

(h)   Amendments to existing pronouncements 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
(Amendments to IAS 32) issued in December 
2011. 

(i)   Amendments to existing pronouncements 
Government Loans (Amendments to IFRS 1) issued 
in March 2012. 

(j)   Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2009-2011 Cycle) 
issued in May 2012.



114

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

nOTEs TO THE annuaL FinanCiaL sTaTEmEnTs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

2.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

LAND BUILDINGS
PLANT, 

MACHINERY 
& EQUIPMENT

OFFICE 
EQUIPMENT, 
FURNITURE & 
COMPUTERS

VEHICLES & 
VESSELS TOTAL

2015
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Cost 373,0 759,7 110,9 154,4 58,0 1 456,0 

Accumulated depreciation - (59,8) (60,3) (106,5) (37,6) (264,2)

Accumulated impairment - (2,7) - - - (2,7)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2015 373,0 697,2 50,6 47,9 20,4 1 189,1 

Current year movements:

Balance at the beginning of the year 373,0 725,8 53,5 54,2 23,3 1 229,8 

Additions - 3,1 6,5 11,0 3,2 23,8 

Disposals - - (0,2) (0,1) - (0,3)

Reclassifications - - 0,4 (0,4) - -

Depreciation - (31,7) (9,6) (16,8) (6,1) (64,2)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2015 373,0 697,2 50,6 47,9 20,4 1 189,1 

2014

GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Cost 373,0 756,6 104,9 149,4 55,1 1 439,0 

Accumulated depreciation - (28,1) (51,4) (95,2) (31,8) (206,5)

Accumulated impairment - (2,7) - - - (2,7)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2014 373,0 725,8 53,5 54,2 23,3 1 229,8 

Current year movements:

Balance at the beginning of the year 483,0 751,9 42,6 28,7 15,9 1 322,1 

Additions - 4,8 19,5 38,0 12,0 74,3 

Disposals - - (0,1) (0,1) (0,2) (0,4)

Non current assets held for sale - (0,1) - (0,1) - (0,2)

Transfer to Investment property (110,0) - - - - (110,0)

Depreciation - (30,8) (8,5) (12,3) (4,4) (56,0)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2014 373,0 725,8 53,5 54,2 23,3 1 229,8 
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

2.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 
Included in land and buildings is the IMT building erected on leasehold premises with 
a net book value of R42,1 million (2014:  R46,3 million). The leasehold premises 
comprises a portion in extent 1,4475 ha of Erf 3779 in Simon’s Town which is 
leased from the Department of Public Works as well as lease hold improvements 
amounting to R1,5 million (2014: R2,3 million) for the year at Armscor Dockyard.  
Detail pertaining to land and buildings is available at the registered office of the 
Corporation.

Depreciation
Gross depreciation 66,2 59,4 

Less:  Change in the estimated useful life (2,0) (3,4)

64,2 56,0 

In line with the requirements of IAS 16 the Group reviewed the useful life, residual values and method 
of depreciation for all assets still in use. Based on the latest available and reliable information there 
was a change in the estimated useful life of some assets, which resulted in a decrease in depreciation 
of R2,0 million. (2014: R3,4 million decrease).

Other matters 
Included in the Group’s value of plant, machinery and equipment are assets at contractors with a cost 
of R4,7 million (2014:  R5,1 million) that are fully depreciated. These assets are no longer in use.

Assets with a carrying amount of R0,1 million (2014:  R0,2 million) at year end are held for disposal.  
The process of disposal is in place and will be disposed within the next 12 months.  

The asset held for sale is a residential property held by Armscor Research and Development at Prieska, 
Northern Cape amounting to R0,1 million (2014:  R0,1 million). This property will be sold to a 
potential buyer, with the lessee having the first option to buy.

Land and buildings were fair valued for the first time on 31 March 2013.
Had	these	asset	not	been	fair	valued	their	carrying	values	would	have	been	as	follows:	 	
 
Land          :  R11,6 million (2014:  R11,6 million)   
Buildings     :  R133,8 million (2014:  R139,3 million)   
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3.  INVESTMENT PROPERTY

LAND

2015
GROUP Rm

Fair value 110,0 

Fair value as at 31 March 2015 110,0 

Balance at the beginning of the year 110,0 

Fair value adjustment -

Fair value as at 31 March 2015 110,0 

2014

GROUP Rm

Fair value  110,0 

Fair value as at 31 March 2014 110,0 

Balance at the beginning of the year -

Additions -

Transfer to Investment property 110,0 

Fair value as at 31 March 2014 110,0 

The fair value was determined by an independent sworn appraiser using current market values on 31 March 2015.  The 
appraiser holds a recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location and category 
of the investment property being valued. The land was fair valued using the comparable sales method. 

Expenditure incurred relation to land amounted to R16 586 (2014:  R6 373).
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4.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

PATENTS, 
TRADEMARKS AND 

OTHER RIGHTS
TOTAL

2015
GROUP Rm Rm

Cost 5,2 5,2 

Accumulated amortisation (4,3) (4,3)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2015 0,9 0,9 

Current year movements:

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,1 1,1 

Additions 0,2 0,2 

Amortisation (0,4) (0,4)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2015 0,9 0,9 

2014

GROUP Rm Rm

Cost 5,1 5,1 

Accumulated amortisation (4,0) (4,0)

Carrying value as at 31 March 2014 1,1 1,1 

Current year movements:

Balance at the beginning of the year 0,9 0,9 

Amortisation (0,6) (0,6)

Additions 0,8 0,8 

Carrying value as at 31 March 2014 1,1 1,1 
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5.  INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE

Armscor entered into a 33.3% partnership on 30 August 1999 with the South African Aerospace, Maritime and Defence 
Industries Association (AMD) and the Commercial Aviation Association of Southern Africa (CAASA). The partnership’s main 
business is hosting of the Africa aerospace and defence air show which take place bi-annually. 

The reporting period of Africa Aerospace and Defence (AAD) is from 1 March to 28 February annually. The following 
amounts represent the assets and liabilities, income and expenses of AAD. 

Summarised statement of financial position 2015 2014
Rm Rm

Assets 7,0 2,4 

Non current assets - -

Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents of R6,0 million (2014:  R2,0 million) 7,0 2,4 

Liabilities 4,1 3,9 

Current liabilities, including financial liabilities of R2,4 million (2014:  Nil) 4,1 3,9 

Non current liabilities - -

Equity 2,9 (1,5)

Group proportionate ownership 33,3% 33,3%

Group carrying amount of investment 1,0 (0,5)

Summarised statement of profit or loss

Revenue 46,2 -

Cost of sales (6,7) -

Other income 0,4 0,1 

Operating expenditure (22,7) (2,9)

Profit/(loss) for the year 17,2 (2,8)

Group proportionate ownership 33,3% 33,3%

Share of profits 5,7 (0,9)

Dividends received for the year (4,4) -

Total investment in Joint venture 1,3 (0,9)

There are no contigent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the Joint venture and no 

contigent liabilities in the Joint venture itself.



119

ARMSCOR ANNUAL REPORT 2014 | 2015

nOTEs TO THE annuaL FinanCiaL sTaTEmEnTs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

6.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS

6.1 Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund

6.1.1 Pension and provident schemes

The Group contributes towards and operates the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund and Provident Fund, which offer 
benefits based on the contributions by and made on behalf of every member as well as investment yields.  At the time of 
establishment of the Armscor Defined Contribution Pension Fund, Armscor guaranteed pensioners that were transferred from 
the previous pension fund to the current pension fund to receive a pension at least equal to the pension received in terms 
of the previous fund. Armscor’s liability in this regard for the remaining 6 members is R Nil (2014:  R Nil) as the pensioners 
account in the pension fund is sufficiently funded.

6.1.2 Government Employees Pension Fund - Dockyard

The Group contributes towards the Government Employees Pension Fund, which offer benefits based on the contributions by 
and made on behalf of every member as well as investment yields. 

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

The amount of contributions to the above scheme 58,7 54,2 

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

The amount of contributions to the above scheme 11,7 11,2
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6.2  Post-retirement medical benefits

The IAS19 valuation of the Group’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2015. Based on the latest 
projection performed at 31 March 2015 the present value of the obligation is R571,4 million (2014: R513,1 million).

6.2.1   Post-retirement medical benefits (Excluding Armscor Dockyard Personnel 
transferred from the South African Navy)

The Group currently provides post-retirement health care benefits to its retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health care 
benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service 
period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations are 
carried out by independent qualified actuaries.

Reconciliation of the present value of the funded obligations (Group – excluding Dockyard)

Based on the projection performed at 31 March 2015 financial assets held aside specifically for this purpose are in excess 
of the accrued liability.  The financial assets held aside are R747,7 million (2014:  R712,5 million).

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Present value of funded obligations 718,6 607,5 569,5 467,4 393,2 

Net obligation 718,6 607,5 569,5 467,4 393,2 

Unrecognised	actuarial	gains/(losses) (147,2) (94,4) (109,4) (49,7) (9,8)

Unrecognised	past	service	gains - - 0,2 1,0 2,0 

Net liability in statement of financial position 571,4 513,1 460,3 418 ,7 385,4 

Figures above include Armscor Corporate, Armscor Research & Development and Armscor Dockyard

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Opening balance 491,3 454,7 

Current service cost (includes interest to year end) 19,3 19,8 

Interest cost 53,3 43,2 

Expected employer benefit payments (18,6) (16,1)

Expected closing balance 545,3 501,6 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 3,0 (10,3)

Actual closing balance 548,3 491,3 
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Reconciliation of the net liability in the statement of 
financial position and amounts recognised in profit/loss

Opening balance 491,3 439,9 

Expense recognised in employee remuneration costs 75,6 67,5 

Employer benefit payments (18,6) (16,1)

548,3 491,3 

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee remuneration costs)

Current service cost 19,3 19,8 

Interest cost 53,3 43,2 

Actuarial (gains)/loss recognised 3,0 4,7 

Past service cost recognised - (0,2)

75,6 67,5 

The main actuarial assumptions are:

2015 2014

Discount rate 8,50% 9,25%

Health	care	cost	inflation 7,75% 8,00%

CPI Inflation 6,25% 6,50%

Average retirement age 60 60
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A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in discount rate costs would have the following effects for the Group:

Discount  Rate

Central 
Assumption % -1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2015 (Rm) 695,5 828,8 592,6

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2014/15 (Rm) 81,2 90,9 73,6

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 9,25% -1% +1%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm) 72,6 60,7 88,1

6.2.2   Post-retirement medical benefits for Armscor Dockyard Personnel transferred 
from the SA Navy

The Group also provides post-retirement health care benefits to the Dockyard retirees. The entitlement to post-retirement health 
care benefits is based on the employee remaining in service up to retirement age and the completion of a minimum service 
period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment. Valuations of these obligations are 
carried out by independent qualified actuaries.

The IAS19 valuation of the Dockyard’s post-employment benefits was carried out at 31 March 2015. This actuarial valuation 
of the employer’s liability as at 31 March 2015 arises as a result of post-employment health care benefits enjoyed by former 
SA Naval Dockyard employees. Based on the projection performed at 31 March 2015 the cash held aside specifically for 
this purpose is in excess of the accrued liability.  The cash held aside is R31,8 million (2014:  R27,9 million).

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

The cash held aside specifically for this purpose at 31 March 2015 is in excess of 
the accrued liability and is summarised below:

Present value of the unfunded obligation 23,1 21,8 

Net obligation 23,1 21,8 

Less: Cash received (31,8) (27,9)

Net liability/(assets) as at 31 March 2015 (8,7) (6,1)

A projection of results of the valuation as at 31 March 2015 to 31 March 2016
is set out below:

Accrued liability as at 31 March 2015 23,0 21,8 

Interest cost 1,8 1,7 

Service cost (including interest to year end) 0,4 0,4 

Expected employer benefit payments (1,0) (0,9)

Projected accrued liability as at 31 March 2016 24,2 23,0 
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Discount Rate

Central 
Assumption % -1% +1%

Accrued Liability 31 March 2015 (Rm) 21,8 24,5 19,5

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2014/15 (Rm) 2,2 2,3 2,2

Sensitivity Results from Previous Valuation 9,25% -1% +1%

Current Service Cost + Interest Cost 2013/14 (Rm) 2,1 1,9 2,4

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Reconciliation of present value of the unfunded obligation

Opening balance 21,8 20,4 

Current service cost 0,4 0,5 

Interest cost 1,7 1,6 

Expected employer benefit payments (0,8) (0,7)

Closing balance 23,1 21,8 

Reconciliation of the present value of the unfunded obligation with the liability 
recognised in the Statement of financial position

Present value of unfunded obligation 21,8 19,2 

Unrecognised	actuarial	gains/(losses) 1,3 2,6 

23,1 21,8 

Net benefit expense (recognised in employee remuneration)

Current service cost 0,4 0,5 

Interest cost 1,7 1,6 

2,1 2,1 

The main actuarial assumptions are:

2015 2014

Discount rate 8,50% 9,25%

Health	care	cost	inflation 7,75% 8,00%

CPI Inflation 6,25% 6,50%

Average retirement age 65 65

A one percentage point change in the assumed rate of increase in discount rate costs would have the following effects for 

the Group:
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

6.2.3.  SUMMARY OF DEFINED MEDICAL BENEFIT EXPENSE FOR ALL FUNDS
Defined medical benefit expense (post-retirement) included in employee 
cost:
Current service cost 19,7 20,3 

Interest cost 55,0 44,8 

Actuarial loss 3,0 1,0 

Past service cost - (0,2)

77,7 65,9 

7.  INVENTORIES
Raw materials, components 1,1 1,1 

Work in progress 2,5 23,7 

Consumables 3,7 3,6 

Finished goods 0,8 0,9 

8,1 29,3 
The amount of inventories written off during the year is R Nil (2014:  R Nil), 
inventories expensed during the year is R12,8 million (2014:  R79,4 million)

8.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables 37,6 12,2 

Trade receivables - related parties 28,3 60,2 

Total trade receivables 65,9 72,4 

Other receivables 21,2 24,8 

Other receivables - related parties 12,7 20,4 

Personnel loans 0,1 0,5 

Interest receivable on investments 0,8 2,6 

100,7 120,7 

As at 31 March 2015 the ageing analysis of trade receivables was as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired: 45,2 23,9 

30 - 60 days 15,1 32,0 

60 - 90 days 0,8 8,6 

Past due but not impaired:

90 - 120 days 1,3 2,3 

120 days and older 3,5 5,6 

65,9 72,4 

Neither past due nor impaired trade receivables relates to goods and services provided 
to debtors. Management has made an assesment and they concluded that there are no 
indications of impairment.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
Balance at the beginning of the year 121,8 98,2 

Impairment losses recognised on receivables 34,7 23,8 

Amounts written off as uncollectable - (0,1)

Amounts recovered during the year (2,6) (0,1)

Balance at the end of the year 153,9 121,8 

Terms and conditions of the above financial assets:

Trade and other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on thirty to 
ninety days terms.

Interest is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the principal 
outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined 
that such income will accrue to the Group.

For terms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer to related party 
disclosure note.

9.  CASH AND SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash at banks and in hand 127,5 179,0 

Short-term deposits 750,0 520,0 

877,5 699,0 

Included in cash and short-term deposits is an amount of R16,2 million (2014:   
R20,1 million) in respect of cash allocated to the insurance reserve.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-
term deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and twelve months 
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and earn interest at the 
respective short-term deposit rates.  

Cash reserves are earmarked for upgrading of systems, capital expenditure approved 
but not yet contracted and other maintenance requirements.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

10.  ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

•	1	000	000	000	ordinary	shares	of	R1	each 1 000,0 1 000,0 

Issued 
•	Ordinary 75,0 75,0 

Share Capital is under the control of the Executive Authority.

11.  DEFERRED INCOME
Deferred income relates to cash, stock and assets received from the Department of 
Defence, of which the recognition of the income needs to be aligned with the incurring 
of the expenditure, or the fulfillment of the conditions of receipt.

Non-current liabilities 69,4 128,4 

Current liabilities 59,5 50,5 

128,9 178,9 

12.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade payables 49,7 39,9 

Trade payables - related parties 55,4 33,8 

Other payables 85,1 73,0 

Other payables - related parties 24,3 11,8 

214,5 158,5 

Trade payables 85,8 54,9 

Other payables  124,9 84,8 

Current 210,7 139,7 

Trade payables

> 30 Days - 9,3 

> 60 Days 3,8 9,5 

214,5 158,5 
Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on thirty day terms.

For terms and conditions relating to related parties, refer to related party disclosure 
note.

nOTEs TO THE annuaL FinanCiaL sTaTEmEnTs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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13.  PROVISIONS

OPENING 
BALANCE

ADDITIONS UTILISED 
DURING THE 

YEAR

TOTAL

RECONCILIATION OF PROVISIONS

2015
GROUP Rm Rm Rm Rm

Provision for leave 56,2 25,9 (25,4) 56,7 

Provision for performance remuneration 48,6 52,9 (48,3) 53,2 

104,8 78,8 (73,7) 109,9 

2014 Rm Rm Rm Rm
Provision for leave 50,3 27,7 (21,8) 56,2 

Provision for performance remuneration 43,2 48,6 (43,2) 48,6 

93,5 76,3 (65,0) 104,8 

Performance remuneration for 2014/2015 will be paid upon completion of the performance evaluation process.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

14.  DEFERRED TAXATION
The deferred taxation liability is attributable to the following

Fair value adjustment on investments 17,8 38,2 

The movement between the balances of deferred taxation at the beginning of the year 
and the end of the year can be analysed as follows:

At the beginning of the year 38,2 22,7 

Current year movement on fair value adjustment (20,4) 15,5 

•	Current	year	movement	on	fair	value	adjustment (20,4) 15,5 

Closing balance 17,8 38,2 

NORMAL TAXATION

Current tax 38,0 5,1

•	Current	year 35,2 5,1

•	Prior	year 2,8 -

Deferred tax (20,4) 15,5 

•	Current year movement on fair value adjustment (20,4) 15,5 

17,6 20,6 

Reconciliation of tax expense
Accounting profit before income tax 74,8 110,1 

Non-taxable income (155,1) (135,1)

Non-deductible expenditure 89,6 22,6 

Net capital gain 78,8 15,2 

Taxable income 88,1 12,8 

Current income tax at 40% 35,2 5,1 

Total normal income tax 35,2 5,1 
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Reconciliation of income tax (receivable)/payable

Outstanding at beginning of year 1,1 2,8 

Normal income tax for current year 38,0 5,2 

Income tax paid during the year (41,2) (7,0)

Penalties and interest levied by SARS - 0,1 

Income tax (receivable)/payable at the end of the year (2,1) 1,1 

% %
Reconciliation of income tax rate
Current year's charge as a percentage of income before taxation 47,10 4,65 

Non taxable income 82,92 49,08 

Non deductible expenditure (47,87) (8,20)

Capital gains (42,15) (5,53)

Standard income tax rate 40,00 40,00 

Taxation disclosed above relates to tax (receivable)/payable by the Armscor Medical 
Benefit Fund as Armscor is exempted from paying income tax.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Fair Value Carrying 

Value
Fair Value Carrying 

Value
Rm Rm Rm Rm

15.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
15.1  Category analysis of financial instruments

ASSETS
Loans and receivables 978,2 978,2 819,7 819,7 
Trade and other receivables 100,7 100,7 120,7 120,7 

Cash and cash equivalents 829,5 829,5 651,0 651,0

Cash allocated to insurance reserve 16,2 16,2 20,1 20,1 

Cash allocated to Dockyard post-retirement benefit 31,8 31,8 27,9 27,9

Designated at fair value through profit and loss 747,7 676,2 712,5 565,1 
Government and other bonds 39,4 38,9 42,3 42,6 

Shares - listed 184,6 139,3 421,4 320,2 

Deposits at banking institutions 473,7 473,7 159,1 159,1 

International investments 50,0 24,3 89,7 43,2 

1 725,9 1 654,4 1 532,2 1 384,8 

LIABILITIES (214,5) (214,5) (158,5) (158,5)
Trade and other payables (214,5) (214,5) (158,5) (158,5)

1 511,4 1 439,9 1 373,7 1 226,3 

The carrying amounts for cash, cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and current liabiities approximate fair value 
due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

16.  REVENUE
Sale of goods - Research & Development 13,1 15,0 

Services revenue - Armscor Corporate 5,7 6,8 

Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard 1,4 3,3 

Services revenue - Research & Development 361,2 320,4 

Contributions - Medical Benefit Fund 19,1 -

400,5 345,5 

17.  COST OF SALES
Sale of goods
Sale of goods - Research & Development 6,2 8,9 

Rendering of services
Services revenue - Armscor Dockyard - 0,4 

Services revenue - Research & Development 133,0 120,2 

133,0 120,6 

Total
Sale of goods 6,2 8,9 

Rendering of services 133,0 120,6 

139,2 129,5 

18.  GROSS PROFIT
Armscor Corporate 5,7 6,8 

Armscor Dockyard 1,4 2,9 

Research & Development 235,1 206,3 

Medical Benefit Fund 19,1 -

261,3 216,0 

19.  OTHER OPERATING REVENUE
Armscor Corporate rental income 50,5 46,0 

Armscor Corporate other income 9,9 14,9 

Research & Development other income 8,5 7,3

Armscor Dockyard 0,2 0,4 

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund dividend income 7,3 10,7 

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund profit on investment sold 128,6 44,1 

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund fair value adjustment on investments (76,0) 59,2 

129,0 182,6
*	Armscor	Corporate	relates	to	Head	Office	and	AB	Logistics	results.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

20.   ALLOCATION FOR OPERATING EXPENDITURE (GOVERNMENT GRANT)
Transfer payment - Armscor Corporate 719,9 660,3 

Transfer payment - Armscor Dockyard 193,4 210,4 

913,3 870,7 

21.  OPERATING EXPENSES
Armscor Corporate 763,6 698,6 

Armscor Dockyard 196,9 212,5 

Research & Development 296,6 245,7

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 30,0 36,5 

1 287,1 1 193,3 

22.  PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
Armscor Corporate 22,4 29,4

Armscor Dockyard (1,9) 1,2

Research & Development (53,0) (32,1 )

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 49,0 77,5

16,5 76,0 

Is arrived at after taking into account:

Operating lease charges
Premises
•	Contractual amounts 3,7 3,6 

Motor vehicles
•	Contractual amounts 0,2 0,2 

•	Contingent amounts 0,1 0,1 

Equipment
•	Contractual amounts 1,8 1,6 

•	Contingent amounts 0,2 0,2 

nOTEs TO THE annuaL FinanCiaL sTaTEmEnTs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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2015 2014
Rm Rm

Profit/(loss) from operations is arrived at after taking into account

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 0,4 0,1 

Investment expenses 12,2 23,5 

Impairment on trade and other receivables 34,7 23,8 

(Profit) on exchange rate differences (2,3) (3,1)

Amortisation on intangible assets 0,4 0,2 

Impairment and write-off of property, plant and equipment - 0,2 

Auditors remuneration 4,5 3,4 

Investment expenses 2,0 23,5 

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 64,2 56,0 

Employee costs 914,5 836,8

Post-retirement benefits (included in employee cost) 70,4 85,5 

Direct employee cost reflected under Cost of Sales 45,4 37,8 

Excluded under operating income of Armscor Corporate and operating expenses of the 
Armscor Dockyard is an amount of R2,7 million (2014:  R2,6 million ) and Armscor's 
Research and Development is an amount of R11,2 million (2014:  R9,5 million) relating 
to a service level agreement (SLA) between Armscor, the Dockyard and Research and 
Development	where	Armscor	is	rendering	human	resources	(HR)	and	information	technology	
(IT) services on their behalf.

23.  INVESTMENT REVENUE
Finance income - Armscor Corporate 53,9 37,3 

Finance income - Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 25,7 11,5 

79,6 48,8 

nOTEs TO THE annuaL FinanCiaL sTaTEmEnTs
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

24.  PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAX
After elimination of inter-group transactions
Armscor Corporate 82,0 65,8 

Armscor Dockyard (1,9) 1,2 

Research & Development (53,0) (32,1)

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 57,1 68,4 

84,2 103,3 

The following figures are divisional contributions before elimination of inter-
divisional transactions, revaluation of assets and excluding the loan write-off
Armscor Corporate 10,4 55,4 

Armscor Dockyard 3,6 4,1 

Research & Development 11,6 18,3 

Armscor Medical Benefit Fund 57,1 89,5 

82,7 167,3 

Inter-divisional transactions include office rental, service level agreement and transfer 
payments.  Armscor Corporation profit excludes loan write-off gain of R445.6 million 
from Armscor Defence Institute SOC Ltd which occurred in 2014.
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

25.  CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation 101,8 123,9

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 64,6 56,6

Dividends received (11,7) (10,7)

Impairment and assets written off - 0,2 

Gain on investment sold (128,6) (20,6)

Fair value adjustments 76,1 (59,0)

Acturial adjustments - 63,1 

Share of (profit)/loss in joint venture (1,3) 0,9 

Loss on sale of assets 0,3 0,2 

Loss on investment sold 14,3 -

Finance income (79,6) (48,8)

Movements in retirement liabilities 58,2 (10,3)

Movements in provisions 5,1 11,3 

Changes in working capital:

Trade and other receivables 17,0 (8,8)

Inventories 21,2 (17,6)

Trade and other payables 61,8 (58,9)

Deferred income (49,9) 36,0 

149,3 57,5 
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GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

26.  CONTRACTUAL LIABILITIES
Projected outstanding commitments in respect of orders placed for expected deliveries 199,8 178,5 

Contractual commitments which may arise out of these contracts are covered in full by 
means of financial authorisations. In other cases cover is obtained by means of back-to-
back orders amounting to R174,4 million (2014: R151,7 million). These amounts include 
both Armscor Group and the Department of Defence projected outstanding commitments.

27.  CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
Authorised capital expenditure
Capital expenditure approved but not yet contracted

Property, plant and equipment 54,9 51,8 

This committed expenditure relates to plant and equipment and will be financed by 
retained surpluses, existing cash resources and funds internally generated.

28.  OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS – GROUP AS LESSEE AND LESSOR

Lessee disclosure

The Group has entered into operational leases on certain motor vehicles and items of machinery and equipment. Most of the 
leases have expired and are running on a month to month basis.  The leases that haven’t expired have lease terms between 
one and twenty four months remaining.  There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.  The 
portion of rental paid during the year which relates to contingent rentals is R0,3 million (2014:  R0,3 million).

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 31 March 2015 are as follows:

Lessor disclosure

The Group entered into operating lease in regards to office space and parking. The lease has expired and is on a month to 
month basis. The Group is in a process of entering into a new lease agreement with the existing tenant.

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Within one year 0,9 1,2 

After one year but not more than five years 1,1 0,6 

2,0 1,8 
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29.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

30.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Guarantees

Bank guarantees have been issued for Armscor in favour of a local contractor amounting to R7,0 million (2014: R6,9 million) 
and	to	a	foreign	contractor	amounting	to	R34,3	million	(USD	2,8	million	[2014:		R29,4	million	USD	2,8	million])	for	an	
advance payment received.

Bank guarantees have been issued on behalf of Armscor in favour of the South African Revenue Services: Customs and 
Excise and other creditors amounting to R9,1 million (2014: R10,2 million) with regard to local guarantees.

Alkantpan

At 31 March 2015 the Group had a contingent liability in respect of rehabilitation of the test range at Alkantpan.

In terms of the National Environmental Management Act (Act 107 of 1998), section 28 (1) which came into effect on 29 
January	1999,	Alkantpan	must	 take	 reasonable	steps	 to	avoid,	stop	or	minimize	degradation	of	 the	environment.	Certain	
options were investigated and, as no intention currently exist to cease activities at Alkantpan because Alkantpan is regarded 
as a strategic facility which is partially funded by the Department of Defence, Alkantpan has elected to manage the range in 
compliance with the Act and to continue with its day to day clearing actions.

A steering committee was formed between Alkantpan and the Department of Tourism, Environment and Conservation of which 
the first meeting took place on 5 September 2006. It was confirmed at this meeting that the committee is to guide and advise 
Alkantpan on the environmental way forward and to ensure legislative compliance to the Act.

Annual meetings are scheduled to monitor the process and provide feedback on the progress. The last meeting of the 
Alkantpan Environmental and Conservation Steering Committee was held on 12 August 2013. No new issues or risks were 
reported at the meeting held and it was reported that the current measures in place is sufficient to manage the range in 
compliance with the Act.

The cost incurred for rehabilitating the site during the period under review was an amount of R2 330 098 (2014:  R1 988 
908).

The Group’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, certain investments and accounts 
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The principle market risks to which the Group is exposed through financial instruments are:

•	 Foreign	exchange	transaction	gain	and	losses
•	 Interest	rates
•	 Credit	risk
•	 Liquidity	risk
•	 Investment	risk
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Interest Rate Management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s short term loan and 
cash and cash equivalents. In the ordinary course of business, the Group receives cash from the transfer payment to fund its 
operations as well as to fund working capital and capital expenditure requirements. This cash is managed to ensure surplus 
funds are invested in a manner to achieve maximum returns while minimising risk.

Credit Risk Management

The Group only deposits cash surpluses with major banks of high quality credit standing.

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. The granting of credit is controlled by well established criteria, which are 
reviewed and updated on an ongoing basis.

At year end, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not been insured 
or adequately provided for. With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets of the Group, the Group’s 
exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these 
instruments.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of call accounts. 
The Group maintains a sufficient level of liquidity to be able to meet all its obligations. The Group has no overdraft facility but 
has other facilities which include guarantees and letters of credit.

Capital Management

Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to 
ensure that it maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratio’s in order to support its business. The Group manages 
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. No changes were made in 
the objective, policies or processes for the year ended 31 March 2015. The Group does not have external imposed capital 
requirements. The Group does not make use of capital from outside providers other than trade and other payables and have 
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to cover its net debt.

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Trade and other payables (214,5) (158,5)

Cash and cash equivalents 877,5 699,0 
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Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk in market interest rates relates primarily to interest received on call accounts and fixed deposits.

Interest rate risk (sensitivity analysis)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a change in interest rates with all other variables held constant.

Investment risk

Investments in equities are valued at fair value and therefore susceptible to market fluctuations.

Investments are managed with the aim of maximising the Group’s returns while limiting risk to acceptable levels.

Continuous monitoring takes place to ensure that appropriate assets are held where the liabilities are dependent upon the 
performance of the investment portfolio and that a suitable match of assets exists for all liabilities.

Foreign currency risk

The Group does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of an instrument will fluctuate in South African rands due to changes in foreign 
exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to both foreign currency risk on investments that are denominated in a currency other than the respective 
functional	currency	of	Armscor	and	transactional	currency	exposures.	The	currency	giving	rise	to	the	risk	is	primarily	US	dollars	(USD).

These investments are monitored to ensure that the exposure to foreign currency risk is maintained within internal diversification 
guidelines.

Increase/decrease in basis 
points

Increase/decrease in surplus 
for the year and equity

2015 ± 50 ± R4,6 million

± 25 ± R2,3 million

2014 ± 50 ± R3,8 million

± 25 ± R1,9 million

31.  INFORMATION REQUIRED IN TERMS OF SECTION 55(2) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT

An amount of R890 (2014: R103 565) relating to unrecoverable debts was written off during the year.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure amounting to R790 (2014: R393 892) was incurred as a result of interest paid on late payments.

During the year under review Armscor continued to apply a 25% Black Equity selection criterion as requirement, in accordance 
with the supply chain policy of the group.  Armscor engaged extensively with National Treasury on this matter during the 
course of the financial year, which culminated in an application made to National Treasury for exemption from the Preferential 
Procurement Policy Framework Act (PPPFA), 2000 and the Procurement Regulations, 2011.  The outcome of the application is 
still	pending.		The	application	of	this	principle	was	stopped	from	all	tenders	published	from	1	September	2014.		However,	as	
this selection criterion was deemed to be in conflict with the PPPFA, the total value of contracts placed R34,5 million (2014:  
R68,5 million) while applying this principle, is deemed to be irregular expenditure.
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32.  DIRECTORS’/EXECUTIVE MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS

FEES AND
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION

BASIC
SALARy

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 9 10 11 

R R R R R R

31 MARCH 2015

Directors' Emoluments

Executive Directors

JG Grobler - 1 357 893 337 756 103 404 257 131 2 056 184 

JS Mkwanazi - 1 899 369 443 466 284 977 310 254 2 938 066 

Subtotal  - 3 257 262 781 222 388 381 567 385 4 994 250 

Non-Executive Directors

31 MARCH 2015

EL Borole 3 20 373 - - - - 20 373 

Adv S Baloyi 2 41 104 - - - - 41 104 

Adv VLA de la Hunt 2 68 185 - - - - 68 185 

Dr PP Dyantyi 2 20 373 - - - - 20 373 

Dr JL Job 3 17 111 - - - - 17 111 

Dr MB Khanyile 2 81 513 - - - - 81 513 

Dr RR Mgijima 3 17 111 - - - - 17 111 

BMF Mobu 2,13 66 349 - - - - 66 349

LW Mosiako 3 23 635 - - - - 23 635 

SA Msibi 3 20 373 - - - - 20 373 

Vice Admiral (Ret) J Mudimu 2 138 218 - - - - 138 218 

T Skweyiya 2 165 796 - - - - 165 796 

NM Tyibilika 2 77 773 - - - - 77 773 

RM Vokwana 2 75 461 - - - - 75 461 

Subtotal 833 375 - - - - 833 375

Total 31 March 2015 833 375 3 257 262 781 222 388 381 567 385 5 827 625 
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32.  DIRECTORS’/EXECUTIVE MEMBERS’ EMOLUMENTS

FEES AND
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION

BASIC
SALARy

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 9 10 11 

R R R R R R

31 MARCH 2014

JG Grobler - 1 261 119 222 461 103 404 235 369 1 822 353 

JS Mkwanazi - 1 767 513 510 805 271 792 288 487 2 838 597 

Subtotal - 3 028 632 733 266 375 196 523 856 4 660 950 

31 MARCH 2014

EL Borole 244 481 - - - - 244 481 

Dr PP Dyantyi 244 481 - - - - 244 481 

Dr JL Job 205 332 - - - - 205 332 

Dr RR Mgijima 205 332 - - - - 205 332 

R Mokoena 1 152 362 - - - - 152 362 

LW Mosiako 283 630 - - - - 283 630 

MM Motau 1 222 251 - - - - 222 251 

SA Msibi 244 481 - - - - 244 481 

Subtotal 1 802 350  -  -  -  - 1 802 350 

TOTAL 31 MARCH 2014 1 802 350 3 028 632 733 266 375 196 523 856 6 463 300 
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FEES AND
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION

BASIC
SALARy

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 9 10 11 

R R R R R R

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

EMOLUMENTS

Executive Members

31 MARCH 2015

TT Goduka - 1 286 364 308 773 133 932 217 734 1 946 803 

D Griesel - 1 183 209 225 567 308 824 215 171 1 932 771 

SP Mbada - 1 213 917 273 946 169 452 224 075 1 881 390 

JL Mzili 7 - 1 119 480 205 525 131 604 175 731 1 632 340 

CVV Ramphele 8 - 1 042 200 230 254 159 612 218 456 1 650 522 

NM Mabaso 14 - 200 794 - 1 934 30 261 232 989 

TC Raman 6 - 1 203 249 338 016 111 780 226 561 1 879 606 

Total - 7 249 213 1 582 081 1 017 138 1 307 989 11 156 421 

Non-Executive Audit Committee Member, not member of Board of Directors

31 MARCH 2015

RD Marule 3 3 262 - - - - 3 262 

TOTAL 3 262 - - - - 3 262 
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FEES AND
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION

BASIC
SALARy

OTHER
BENEFITS

ALLOWANCES RETIREMENT
AND OTHER

CONTRIBUTIONS

TOTAL

Notes 9 10 11 

R R R R R R

31 MARCH 2014

TT Goduka - 1 192 323 364 651 133 932 202 537 1 893 443 

D Griesel - 1 093 893 209 568 297 561 200 026 1 801 048 

SP Mbada - 1 122 348 236 770 169 452 213 838 1 742 408 

L Keyise 4 - 918 846 177 163 90 554 154 934 1 341 497 

JL Mzili 7 - 1 036 740 68 399 131 604 163 719 1 400 462 

CVV Ramphele 8 - 962 745 65 680 159 612 207 036 1 395 073 

LR Mathieson 5 - 357 632 311 209 19 868 66 954 755 663 

TC Raman 6 - 617 096 159 873 164 082 132 209 1 073 260 

Total - 7 301 623 1 593 313 1 166 665 1 341 253 11 402 854 

Non-Executive Audit Committee Member, not member of Board of Directors

31 MARCH 2014

RD Marule 3 39 149 - - - - 39 149 

TOTAL 39 149 - - - - 39 149 
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Information applicable to note 32

1.  On 14 August 2013 the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans informed the Armscor Board of Directors of her 
decision to terminate the services of both the Chairperson and Deputy Chairperson.  Subsequent to an appeal they 
were reinstated on 18 September 2013 and remunerated.  When the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans 
lodged an appeal the reinstatement was suspended and the suspension was upheld by the court.

2. On 1 May 2014 the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans appointed a new Board of Directors:
 * Chairperson of the Board - Vice Admiral (Ret) RJ Mudimu
 * Deputy Chairperson of the Board - Ambassador T Skweyiya
 * Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of Acquisition 
  Committee of the Board - Mr MBF Mobu
 * Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of the Audit and 
	 	 Risk	Committee	of	the	Board	 -	 Dr	M	Khanyile
 * Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of the 
	 	 Human	Resources,	Social	and	Ethics	Committee	of	the	Board	 -	 Adv	VL	de	la	Hunt
 * Non-Executive Director - Mr RM Vokwana
 * Non-Executive Director - Adv S Baloyi
 *  Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of the Technology 
  and Industry Support Committee of the Board - Mr NM Tyibilika

3. Term as Board of Directors members expired 30 April 2014.
4.  Appointed from 1 February 2013 as Executive Committee member (Chief Information Officer) and resigned on 3 

February 2014.
5.  Appointed as Executive Committee member (General Manager:  Research and Development) on 1 February 2013 

and resigned on 31 July 2013.
6.  Appointed as Executive Committee member (Acting General Manager:  Research and Development) from 1 August 

2013 and permanently appointed on 1 April 2014.
7.  Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Executive Committee member (General Manager: Marketing and Business  

Development).
8. Appointed from 1 March 2013 as Executive Committee member (General Manager: Corporate Compliance).
9. Other benefits include bonus (13th cheque), performance related payments and leave capitalisations.
10.  Allowances include sums paid by way of expense allowances, i.e. motor, cell phone and acting allowance as well 

as long service awards.
11.  Retirement benefits include contributions made to Armscor pension fund; medical benefit fund; medical aid;  

unemployment and funeral scheme.
12.	 	No	emoluments	are	paid	to	Armscor	Defence	Institutes	ex-officio	Directors:	messrs	JG	Grobler,	SP	Mbada,	JS	Mkwanazi	

and LR Mathieson (resigned on 31 July 2013).
13.  Mr MBF Mobu, Non-Executive Director and Chairperson of the Acquisition Committee of the Board passed away on 

8 May 2015.
14. Appointed from 1 February 2015 as Executive Committee member (Chief Information Officer)

Share options

No share options exist and therefore no share option gains are included in the amount of emoluments received as directors 
of the Corporation.
Directors’ service contracts
Notice periods in respect of employment contracts of executive directors do not exceed one year. Non-Executive Directors 
are appointed for a three year period and not bound by employment contracts.
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Pensions

Pensions paid or receivable by executive directors are paid or received under defined contribution pension schemes.

33.  RELATED-PARTY DISCLOSURES

The Armaments Corporation of South Africa SOC Ltd (“ARMSCOR”) is a statutory body, wholly owned by the State, established 
in terms of the Armaments Development and Production Act (Act No 57 of 1968), and continues, its existence through the 
Armaments Corporation of South Africa Ltd Act (Act No 51 of 2003).

To execute its mandate, Armscor received a Government grant of R913,3 million (2014: R870,7 million) from the State 
through the Department of Defence (DOD) as well as a secondary transfer payment (in terms of a separate Memorandum 
of Agreement) for services rendered from the Department of Defence to the value of R77,5 million (2014:  R84,4 million).

Armscor has a 33,3% Joint investment in Africa Aerospace and Defence, refer to note 5 for disclosure. 
 
The following table provides the total amount of transactions, which have been entered into by the Group with related parties 
for the relevant financial year.

Government grant and the secondary transfer payment received from the Department of Defence are not included in the 
figures above.

Issued share capital

2015 2014
Dormant subsidiaries (At 100% Holdings) R R

Armscor Defence Institutes SOC Ltd (loan to) 4 000 4 000 

Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd (loan from) 1 1

Oospark SOC Ltd (loan from) 1 1

Sportrand SOC Ltd (loan from) 1 1

Sales of goods 
and services to 
related parties

Purchases of 
goods from 

related parties

Amounts 
owed by 

related parties

Amounts 
owed to 

related parties

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Department of Defence 240,8 127,0 10,6 14,9 15,0 19,5 151,2 167,3 

State controlled entities

Major national public entities 
(Schedule 2 and 3 public entities) 365,2 305,4 54,7 52,8 27,2 38,6 19,9 30,7 

National Government 48,4 44,7 0,2 0,3 1,6 22,8 7,7 0,5 
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Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at normal market prices. Outstanding balances at the year-end are 
unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related 
party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has made provision for doubtful debts of 
R141,6 million (2014: R113,7 million) relating to amounts owed by related parties.

In accordance with Armscor’s mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the Department of Defence. These transactions 
are set out in annexure A of the financial statements.

Assets and stock transferred to the Dockyard with an effective date of 1 April 2010 has been fair valued at R42,7 million and 
accounted for as deferred income, with the purpose of recognising it in line with the utilisation of the assets and stock.  During 
the financial year an amount of R2,3 million (2014:  R4,8 million) was recognised as income in accordance with the utilisation 
thereof, of which R2,1 million (2014:  R4,4 million) relates to assets and R0,2 million (2014:  R0,4 million) relates to stock.

Retirement benefits

Details of the Armscor retirement benefits are disclosed in note 6.

Directors

Directors’ interests in related parties: No interests in related parties have been declared by Armscor Directors.

Two of Armscor’s Executive Directors and two Armscor Management Board Members are ex-officio directors of the Armscor 
Defence Institutes’ Board of Directors at 31 March 2015. One Armscor Executive Director is also ex-officio director on the 
Boards of Erasmusrand Eiendomme SOC Ltd, Sportrand SOC Ltd and Oospark SOC Ltd.  These companies are dormant.

Key management personnel

Information on the remuneration of all key management personnel is disclosed in note 32.

GROUP

2015 2014
Rm Rm

Reconciliation of transfer payments received from the  
Department of Defence

•			Primary	transfer	payment	recognised	in	comprehensive	income 913,3 870,7 

•			Secondary	transfer	payment	received 77,5 84,4 

•				Funds	received	for	Maritime	domain	awerness	centres	transferred	to	Deferred	income	
due to outstanding conditions                                                            - 16,2 

•				Funds	received	for	Dockyard	transferred	to	Deferred	income	due	to	outstanding												
conditions - 79,3 

•				Deferred	Income	recognised	as	transfer	payment																															 (29,2) (54,7)

Total transfer payments reflected - Department of Defence 961,6 995,9 
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34.  ENTITY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

35.  EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Entity financial statements have not been prepared as they are similar to Group financial statements.  The only difference 
relates to the inclusion of a Joint venture transaction which amounts to R1,3 million.

Post-retirement medical liability

Armscor has been considering alternative options to reduce its post-retirement medical liability. An alternative was approved 
by the Board of Directors on the 12th of June 2015 whereby in-service employees and retired employees were voluntarily 
offered to accept the alternative benefits in lieu of the post-retirement medical benefit.  In-service employees received lump sum 
payments amounting to R349,3 million on the 19th June 2015.  Pensioners were offered a choice between two annuities and 
a taxable cash lump sum. The payment for the purchase of annuities for the pensioners is in the process of being finalised.  
The medical benefit liability will decrease from R695,5 million to R86,9 million in the next financial year (2015/16).  
Financial instruments held aside to meet the obligation have decreased from R747,7 million to R398,4 million (this is before 
the payment to the financial services provider and the pensioners who opted for a taxable cash lump sum). R229,6 million 
will be paid to the financial services provider to purchase the annuities for the pensioners and R26,9 million will be paid to 
the pensioners who opted for a taxable cash lump sum.

Armscor Dockyard

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, the Minister of Defence and Military Veterans announced that a decision has 
been	taken	to	move	Dockyard	operations	from	Armscor	back	to	the	SA	Navy.	However,	the	implementation	date	has	not	
been announced, and discussions between the affected parties are still held in this regard. The current indication is that the 
implementation of the transfer will take more than 12 months to complete. For this reason, the results of the Dockyard are 
reflected as part of normal operations of Armscor.

Reconciliation of entity profits to Group profits: Rm
Entity profit after tax 82,9 

Joint venture transaction 1,3 

Group profit 84,2

Financial position differences: Entity Group
Investment in Joint venture 0,1 1,6 

Equity 1 993,7 1 995,0 
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annEXurE a

TOTAL VALUE OF ACQUISITION ACTIVITIES

Government grants for operating expenditure are obtained to undertake acquisition actions.  In accordance with Armscor’s 
mandate, acquisition was undertaken on behalf of the following organisations:

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Rm Rm Rm Rm Rm

Department of Defence

•				Special	Defence	Account 4 481,0 5 170,2 3 580,8 4 573,8 4 518,0 

•				General	Defence	Account 2 859,6 2 647,7 2 288,6 1 815,2 1 441,0 

SA Police Service 88,1 94,7 71,8 96,5 101,3 

Other 25,5 60,9 72,6 93,7 66,3 

7 454,2 7 973,5 6 013,8 6 579,2 6 126,6 
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ABET  Adult Based Education and Training
AET  Adult Education and Training
AFB  Air Force Base
BBBEE  Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment
BoD  Board of Directors
CAE  Computer Aided Engineering
CISS  Close-in Surveillance System
CPD  Continuous Professional Development
CSI  Corporate Social Investment
DED  Docking and Essential Defects
DERI  Defence Evaluation Research Institutes
DFR  Department of Foreign Relations
DIP  Defence Industry Participation
DMA  Defence Matériel Acquisition
DMD  Defence Matériel Disposal
DOD  Department of Defence
Dti  Department of Trade and Industry
ECSA  Engineering Council of South Africa
EDM  Engineering Development Model
ERP  Enterprise Resources Planning
EW  Electronic Warfare
GAAP  Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
GBADS  Ground Based Air Defence System
GFCS  Gun Fire Control System
GPS  Global Positioning System
IMT  Institute for Maritime Technology
INCOSE  International Council on Systems Engineering
IP  Intellectual Property
LIFT  Lead-In Fighter Trainer
MAAC  Military Attaches and Advisory Corps
MOU	 	 Memorandum	of	Understanding
NCACC  National Conventional Arms Control Committee
NSTF  National Science and Technology Forum
PFMA  Public Finance Management Act
PMBOK	 	 Project	Management	Body	of	Knowledge
SABS  South African Bureau of Standards
SADC  Southern African Development Countries
SADI  South African Defence Industry
SA GAAP   South African Generally Accepted Accounting Practices
SAMHS	 	 South	African	Military	Health	Services
SAN  Storage Area Network
SANAS  South African National Accreditation System
SANDF  South African National Defence Force
SAPS  South African Police Service
SARS  South African Revenue Services
SDP  Special Defence Package
SDP  Strategic Defence Package
SLA  Service Level Agreement
TDP  Talent Development Programme
UBRD	 	 Ultra	Broken	Rail	Detector	(UBRD
WAN  Wide Area Network
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